
Meeting of the TPO Board 
Wednesday, August 10, 2022 @10:00am 
Hillsborough County Center, 601 E. Kennedy Blvd., 26th Floor 

All voting members are asked to attend in person, in compliance with Florida’s 
Government in the Sunshine Law.  Please RSVP for this meeting. Presenters, 
audience, and members in exceptional circumstances may participate remotely. 

This meeting may be viewed on Hillsborough Television (HTV) by visiting Spectrum: 
637, Frontier: 22 or live stream from Hillsborough County's Live YouTube Channel or 
the County website's Live Meetings link, also found in the County Newsroom.  The 
agenda packet, presentations, and any supplemental materials are posted on the 
TPO’s online calendar. 

Public comment opportunities: 
To speak during the meeting - No later than 30 minutes before the meeting, please 
sign up here or phone 813-756-0371 for assistance. Provide the phone number you 
will call in from, so that we can recognize your call in the queue. You will receive an 
auto-reply confirming we received your request, along with instructions. 
Comments may also be given up to 5pm the day before the meeting: 

• by leaving a voice message at (813) 756-0371
• by e-mail to tpo@plancom.org
• by visiting the event posted on the Facebook page.

Advance comments will be provided in full to the board members and verbally 
summarized during the meeting by TPO staff. 

Rules of engagement: Professional courtesy and respect for others at this meeting are 
expected, and failure may result in dismissal from the meeting. For more information 
on expectations for participation, please see the TPO’s Social Networking & Media 
Policy. 

Agenda 

I. Call to Order & Pledge of Allegiance

II. Roll Call & Declaration of Quorum (Gail Reese, TPO Staff)

A. Vote of Consent for Remote Member Participation – if applicable

III. Approval of Minutes – June 8, 2022

Commissioner Harry Cohen 
Hillsborough County 

MPO Chair 

Commissioner Pat Kemp 
Hillsborough County 

MPO Vice Chair 

Paul Anderson 
Port Tampa Bay 

Councilman Joseph Citro 
City of Tampa 

Mayor Nate Kilton
City of Plant City 

Adelee Marie Le Grand, AICP 
HART 

Joe Lopano 
Hillsborough County 

Aviation Authority 

Councilman Guido Maniscalco 
City of Tampa 

Commissioner Gwen Myers 
Hillsborough County 

Commissioner 
Kimberly Overman 

Hillsborough County 

Cody Powell 
Planning Commission 

Mayor Andrew Ross 
City of Temple Terrace 

Greg Slater 
Expressway Authority 

Commissioner 
Mariella Smith 

Hillsborough County 

Jessica Vaughn 
Hillsborough County 

School Board 

Beth Alden, AICP 
Executive Director

Plan Hillsborough 

planhillsborough.org 
planner@plancom.org 

813 - 272 - 5940 
601 E Kennedy Blvd 

18th Floor 
Tampa, FL, 33602 

https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fyoutube.com%2Fc%2Fhillsboroughcountymeetings%2Flive&data=04%7C01%7CBrewerJ%40hillsboroughcounty.org%7C43688ddff02d4b15539208d87779f4ce%7C81fe4c9d9bb849bd90ed89b8063f4c8a%7C1%7C0%7C637390712981295169%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=nM2MCfkP9u3hdwo9mMPwAcz1nOFY0r3pi4Z%2B9G4amXA%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fhillsboroughcounty.granicus.com%2Fplayer%2Fcamera%2F2%3Fpublish_id%3D3&data=04%7C01%7CBrewerJ%40hillsboroughcounty.org%7C43688ddff02d4b15539208d87779f4ce%7C81fe4c9d9bb849bd90ed89b8063f4c8a%7C1%7C0%7C637390712981295169%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=Ga4okbrQ1qu3Qrep5BFVeb%2BrObVlZVW0HqyT2WL8VRw%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.hillsboroughcounty.org%2Fen%2Fnewsroom&data=04%7C01%7CBrewerJ%40hillsboroughcounty.org%7C43688ddff02d4b15539208d87779f4ce%7C81fe4c9d9bb849bd90ed89b8063f4c8a%7C1%7C0%7C637390712981305125%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=tSNG9oSK%2F1tp6NoWX6TrhqhtkK1O%2BzErSvEQ%2BnjF%2FcI%3D&reserved=0
https://planhillsborough.org/event/metropolitan-planning-organization-board-meeting-43-2-2-2-2-2-3-2-2-2-2-3-2-2-2-3/?instance_id=9014
https://forms.office.com/Pages/ResponsePage.aspx?id=91ScfXoFoEmFSNx8h65V10wk09oVBMdPmi-svsj8ix9UMkJESjBIQ1JaRVNMOUFUTkdVV01WQ1I2Uy4u
mailto:tpo@plancom.org
https://www.facebook.com/HillsboroughMPO
http://www.planhillsborough.org/wp-content/uploads/2020/12/MPO_PPP_DRAFT_Appendix-H-PPP-ADDED-FB-Rules-of-Engagement-2020-1.pdf
http://www.planhillsborough.org/wp-content/uploads/2020/12/MPO_PPP_DRAFT_Appendix-H-PPP-ADDED-FB-Rules-of-Engagement-2020-1.pdf
https://www.hillsboroughcounty.org/library/hillsborough/media-center/images/covid19/american-flag.jpg
http://www.planhillsborough.org/
mailto:planner@plancom.org


IV. Public Comment on Agenda Items – 30 minutes total, with up to 3 minutes per 
speaker. Staff will unmute you when the chair recognizes you. As needed, the 
chair may allow for additional time later in the agenda.

V. Committee Reports and Advance Comments (Bill Roberts, CAC Chair, Davida 
Franklin, TPO Staff and Beth Alden, TPO Director)

VI. Consent Agenda
A. Committee Appointments

B. Storm Evacuation and Shelter-in-Place Study Report – Reviewed by committees

C. Amendment to Fellowship Agreement with USF Dept. of Urban & Regional Planning

D. General Planning Consultant Contract Extensions

VII. Action Items
A. Public Participation Plan Amendments

(Davida Franklin, TPO Staff)

B. TPO Apportionment Plan (Elizabeth Watkins, TPO Staff)

VIII. Status Reports
A. FDOT Electric Vehicle Plan (April Combs, FDOT)

B. FDOT District 7 Safety Program Update (Peter Hsu, FDOT)

C. Bylaws Amendment for Transportation Disadvantaged Coordinating Board (Joshua 
Barber, TPO Staff)

IX. Executive Director’s Report
• CAC demographic representation review

• Sunrunner BRT field trip?

X. Old Business & New Business

XI. Adjournment

XII. Addendum
A. Announcements

• TMA Leadership Group Meeting, September 23, 9:30am, Tampa Bay Regional 

Planning Council

B. Project Summaries, Fact Sheets & Other Status Reports

• FDOT District 7 DRAFT Cost Feasible Plan for SIS 2033-2050

• FL MPO Advisory Council Annual Report

C. Correspondence



• From Mayor Ross regarding consideration of LRTP amendment 

D. Articles Related to TPO Work 

• $562 million boost for Hillsborough transportation | WFLA News Radio | 07.15.22  
• Money from All for Transportation will soon be spent on Hillsborough County 

roads | WFTS ABC Action News | 07.14.22  
• Judge makes final All for Transportation ruling on 2018 Hillsborough surtax funds 

| Tampa Bay Business Journal | 07.14.22  
• Leaders focus on road design as Tampa Bay continues to be one of the most 

dangerous areas for pedestrians | FOX 13 News | 07.12.22  
• Bloomberg Associates, transportation expert Janette Sadik-Khan help Tampa 

craft mobility vision | 83 Degrees Media | 07.12.22  
• Walkers, bikers call for infrastructure changes as Hillsborough County sees rise 

in deaths | 10 Tampa Bay News | 07.11.22  
• Planning commission to vote on contract for Fowler Avenue redesign | WFLA 

News Channel 8 | 07.11.22  
• Planning commission to vote on agreement with Kimley-Horn for Fowler Avenue 

vision plan | Tampa Bay Business Journal | 07.06.22  
• Sustainable Living: Community Gardens | 88.5 WMNF | 07.06.22  
• El 2021 fue uno de los años más mortíferos en las carreteras | Tampa Bay Times - 

Centro | 07.05.22  
• 2021 was one of the deadliest years to be on roads in Tampa Bay counties. Why? | 

Tampa Bay Times | 07.01.22  
• Closing the Gap - Chloe Coney and her son Ernest have been working to elevate 

East Tampa for 30 years — and they’re not done yet | Tampa Bay Business Journal | 
07.01.22  

• Tampa’s historic streetcar is back big time. Wait till you see what’s next. | Tampa 
Bay Times | 06.29.22  

 Double hit-and-run: Pedestrian dies on roadway after being hit by 2 vehicles in 
Temple Terrace, deputies say | FOX 13 News | 06.27.22 

 SCTPA unveils Tri-County Trails Map |Tampa Bay Newspapers Weekly - Around 
Town: Pinellas news briefs | 06.22.22 

The full agenda packet is available on the MPO’s website, www.planhillsborough.org, or by 
calling (813) 272-5940. 

The MPO does not discriminate in any of its programs or services. Public participation is solicited 
without regard to race, color, national origin, age, sex, religion, disability or family status.  Learn 
more about our commitment to non-discrimination. 

Persons needing interpreter services or accommodations for a disability in order to participate in 
this meeting, free of charge, are encouraged to contact Joshua Barber, (813) 273-3774, ext. 313 
or barberj@plancom.org, three business days in advance of the meeting. If you are only able to 
speak Spanish, please call the Spanish helpline at (813) 273-3774, ext. 211. 

Se recomienda a las personas que necesiten servicios de interpretación o adaptaciones por una 
discapacidad para participar en esta reunión, o ayuda para leer o interpretar los temas de esta 
agenda, sin costo alguno, que se pongan en contacto con Joshua Barber, (813) 273-3774, ext. 
313 o barberj@plancom.org, tres días hábiles antes de la reunión. Si sólo habla español, por 
favor llame a la línea de ayuda en español al (813) 273-3774, ext. 211. 

mhtml:file://C:%5CUsers%5Cwilkeningc%5CAppData%5CLocal%5CMicrosoft%5CWindows%5CINetCache%5CContent.Outlook%5CJ6YB4CVY%5Cemail.mht!https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001XbyUugjkyNinZDV1wG2DFVBitNLVV90uVuJIFxU9Q2fjefaS9hkZO0FQf-rpHwgstlG_GOd9NmH7hzNgNtzWE6x-JRjlIDyKeGQh-neapNUpSQTw8dlLhxRRFod6r6ttD1YTzogrp7ZAmARUpKPLAYP5RqOxsO5AJ51xEbQ6If0jQ04q8WlkMskVedcs4ZOAeUTwSIxl8WiKHd-w1BTpmzJR8zl_0i5Z6ciWJHLi-zUfMp57FqShnzCaimx8lG4B8R6azesybR2ZZqXFIG75vFE1l-g_VXqW&c=Sn_mSpgFPUHj-Hm2J_X_64CZ_nu68r7bB57x7KII6VSpcbzfY2q2dA==&ch=bkO4f66FWm-V2UogWIl5zPoXbsSlN6nPbZWo06nO1OuVOT4zwjqp0g==
mhtml:file://C:%5CUsers%5Cwilkeningc%5CAppData%5CLocal%5CMicrosoft%5CWindows%5CINetCache%5CContent.Outlook%5CJ6YB4CVY%5Cemail.mht!https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001XbyUugjkyNinZDV1wG2DFVBitNLVV90uVuJIFxU9Q2fjefaS9hkZO0FQf-rpHwgs9FhG4bMFLZOnM6XqgvvdJbCTGDwrP5w5qh3h76z9Fo3b27gsf5eUcq2gYqynD-ekWr0GALcPbihMcFH8tQFv426nKSv3Wc6lOSTvF_m_NSgStcQX_lEimm5szTR9OOXr5bXBE6RWSL0h-wiqf1kbtTfh1YN1xyr6Hjtam_rrd3ErxDJLEFDsixpsaWhMUMwV29MB_OSaga_QWr1Yrrpo1hH0IIvB4g4rH8Fn9Y49REk=&c=Sn_mSpgFPUHj-Hm2J_X_64CZ_nu68r7bB57x7KII6VSpcbzfY2q2dA==&ch=bkO4f66FWm-V2UogWIl5zPoXbsSlN6nPbZWo06nO1OuVOT4zwjqp0g==
mhtml:file://C:%5CUsers%5Cwilkeningc%5CAppData%5CLocal%5CMicrosoft%5CWindows%5CINetCache%5CContent.Outlook%5CJ6YB4CVY%5Cemail.mht!https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001XbyUugjkyNinZDV1wG2DFVBitNLVV90uVuJIFxU9Q2fjefaS9hkZO0FQf-rpHwgs9FhG4bMFLZOnM6XqgvvdJbCTGDwrP5w5qh3h76z9Fo3b27gsf5eUcq2gYqynD-ekWr0GALcPbihMcFH8tQFv426nKSv3Wc6lOSTvF_m_NSgStcQX_lEimm5szTR9OOXr5bXBE6RWSL0h-wiqf1kbtTfh1YN1xyr6Hjtam_rrd3ErxDJLEFDsixpsaWhMUMwV29MB_OSaga_QWr1Yrrpo1hH0IIvB4g4rH8Fn9Y49REk=&c=Sn_mSpgFPUHj-Hm2J_X_64CZ_nu68r7bB57x7KII6VSpcbzfY2q2dA==&ch=bkO4f66FWm-V2UogWIl5zPoXbsSlN6nPbZWo06nO1OuVOT4zwjqp0g==
mhtml:file://C:%5CUsers%5Cwilkeningc%5CAppData%5CLocal%5CMicrosoft%5CWindows%5CINetCache%5CContent.Outlook%5CJ6YB4CVY%5Cemail.mht!https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001XbyUugjkyNinZDV1wG2DFVBitNLVV90uVuJIFxU9Q2fjefaS9hkZO0FQf-rpHwgs-HKlJBxn1UaiPD5TgnygcKn__uvr3EYf7t0kFC83_cGp2beQnCKvsInyfMkf2pgqqCroXHFX3e28ObJfP5UFivd5qbUycwS7rqzL2VvzvbhcgkxUae76NR7C3DFg7AmlkM_36bqdqjtsOfpUirWV-iTJPKsOIAcgFy_lM-nD8uQ=&c=Sn_mSpgFPUHj-Hm2J_X_64CZ_nu68r7bB57x7KII6VSpcbzfY2q2dA==&ch=bkO4f66FWm-V2UogWIl5zPoXbsSlN6nPbZWo06nO1OuVOT4zwjqp0g==
mhtml:file://C:%5CUsers%5Cwilkeningc%5CAppData%5CLocal%5CMicrosoft%5CWindows%5CINetCache%5CContent.Outlook%5CJ6YB4CVY%5Cemail.mht!https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001XbyUugjkyNinZDV1wG2DFVBitNLVV90uVuJIFxU9Q2fjefaS9hkZO0FQf-rpHwgsNsPQPO7V5llNxbSNH-5h9AwUtG7BmybLGMWUDLAoOO1_nh8LpNW6wM6ds9LPIwARkhB5NvdLqgn8xD8K-8NCLEJezoaBBE3LO3pXx7GwkSWfPTWBh6FjPtvGPfcOaRroC6qi91AiUuMzVa5yU2HSHOVA69CkKypg3wFZohEKPAw8vnmgfKnsgi5OYdeMgvPIPc5it6HXqPD6jZURoFlVrZAzTF0jJYiR_IWGTTrN7BQ=&c=Sn_mSpgFPUHj-Hm2J_X_64CZ_nu68r7bB57x7KII6VSpcbzfY2q2dA==&ch=bkO4f66FWm-V2UogWIl5zPoXbsSlN6nPbZWo06nO1OuVOT4zwjqp0g==
mhtml:file://C:%5CUsers%5Cwilkeningc%5CAppData%5CLocal%5CMicrosoft%5CWindows%5CINetCache%5CContent.Outlook%5CJ6YB4CVY%5Cemail.mht!https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001XbyUugjkyNinZDV1wG2DFVBitNLVV90uVuJIFxU9Q2fjefaS9hkZO0FQf-rpHwgsNsPQPO7V5llNxbSNH-5h9AwUtG7BmybLGMWUDLAoOO1_nh8LpNW6wM6ds9LPIwARkhB5NvdLqgn8xD8K-8NCLEJezoaBBE3LO3pXx7GwkSWfPTWBh6FjPtvGPfcOaRroC6qi91AiUuMzVa5yU2HSHOVA69CkKypg3wFZohEKPAw8vnmgfKnsgi5OYdeMgvPIPc5it6HXqPD6jZURoFlVrZAzTF0jJYiR_IWGTTrN7BQ=&c=Sn_mSpgFPUHj-Hm2J_X_64CZ_nu68r7bB57x7KII6VSpcbzfY2q2dA==&ch=bkO4f66FWm-V2UogWIl5zPoXbsSlN6nPbZWo06nO1OuVOT4zwjqp0g==
mhtml:file://C:%5CUsers%5Cwilkeningc%5CAppData%5CLocal%5CMicrosoft%5CWindows%5CINetCache%5CContent.Outlook%5CJ6YB4CVY%5Cemail.mht!https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001XbyUugjkyNinZDV1wG2DFVBitNLVV90uVuJIFxU9Q2fjefaS9hkZO0FQf-rpHwgsL738WCXJpwv9CuOZsoIfBywRstR0H6M3Vt4jUulFsRmDZiex5GLcf0rV5R-4_wBLaOpzfNlHJa-ubueg3npHJEgvZumnPYEwTEj4Ggihm1uWu7eHgYUNI0JoLJi8pPGYg-tUrJCN9Z9WXaxe_nv8vZIkO0jk-M0UkQDyxcVsBrRd9CF_C_jwok59eirOBizspxFpWEV46z1RlLmGqZp3d5nEJdmDVf8h&c=Sn_mSpgFPUHj-Hm2J_X_64CZ_nu68r7bB57x7KII6VSpcbzfY2q2dA==&ch=bkO4f66FWm-V2UogWIl5zPoXbsSlN6nPbZWo06nO1OuVOT4zwjqp0g==
mhtml:file://C:%5CUsers%5Cwilkeningc%5CAppData%5CLocal%5CMicrosoft%5CWindows%5CINetCache%5CContent.Outlook%5CJ6YB4CVY%5Cemail.mht!https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001XbyUugjkyNinZDV1wG2DFVBitNLVV90uVuJIFxU9Q2fjefaS9hkZO0FQf-rpHwgsL738WCXJpwv9CuOZsoIfBywRstR0H6M3Vt4jUulFsRmDZiex5GLcf0rV5R-4_wBLaOpzfNlHJa-ubueg3npHJEgvZumnPYEwTEj4Ggihm1uWu7eHgYUNI0JoLJi8pPGYg-tUrJCN9Z9WXaxe_nv8vZIkO0jk-M0UkQDyxcVsBrRd9CF_C_jwok59eirOBizspxFpWEV46z1RlLmGqZp3d5nEJdmDVf8h&c=Sn_mSpgFPUHj-Hm2J_X_64CZ_nu68r7bB57x7KII6VSpcbzfY2q2dA==&ch=bkO4f66FWm-V2UogWIl5zPoXbsSlN6nPbZWo06nO1OuVOT4zwjqp0g==
mhtml:file://C:%5CUsers%5Cwilkeningc%5CAppData%5CLocal%5CMicrosoft%5CWindows%5CINetCache%5CContent.Outlook%5CJ6YB4CVY%5Cemail.mht!https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001XbyUugjkyNinZDV1wG2DFVBitNLVV90uVuJIFxU9Q2fjefaS9hkZO0FQf-rpHwgsUnxzasoEWjq7nHh6t94RHIW9fnRimp4b6j1WNei3nN-9mrWARWfu8Jf-hifszcjiml0Kz9bDG42MFq0btBoCdOIfFfvGJTVQKy2COdou07yOjXUaKlP5PamOruwAjwwo96GORe0EnbJkIxUQp7mOM_3aF_bUm3egFwBugfpRiAkRL7-XsSPvcmpG8G_QyXGVJtDojhQkqtfjy-scG8hIOMHUqUTrb2lALjvY2l06wZjbI6zlMESXyk2ZnBtBc7X2pF8LpXN7nHI=&c=Sn_mSpgFPUHj-Hm2J_X_64CZ_nu68r7bB57x7KII6VSpcbzfY2q2dA==&ch=bkO4f66FWm-V2UogWIl5zPoXbsSlN6nPbZWo06nO1OuVOT4zwjqp0g==
mhtml:file://C:%5CUsers%5Cwilkeningc%5CAppData%5CLocal%5CMicrosoft%5CWindows%5CINetCache%5CContent.Outlook%5CJ6YB4CVY%5Cemail.mht!https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001XbyUugjkyNinZDV1wG2DFVBitNLVV90uVuJIFxU9Q2fjefaS9hkZO0FQf-rpHwgsUnxzasoEWjq7nHh6t94RHIW9fnRimp4b6j1WNei3nN-9mrWARWfu8Jf-hifszcjiml0Kz9bDG42MFq0btBoCdOIfFfvGJTVQKy2COdou07yOjXUaKlP5PamOruwAjwwo96GORe0EnbJkIxUQp7mOM_3aF_bUm3egFwBugfpRiAkRL7-XsSPvcmpG8G_QyXGVJtDojhQkqtfjy-scG8hIOMHUqUTrb2lALjvY2l06wZjbI6zlMESXyk2ZnBtBc7X2pF8LpXN7nHI=&c=Sn_mSpgFPUHj-Hm2J_X_64CZ_nu68r7bB57x7KII6VSpcbzfY2q2dA==&ch=bkO4f66FWm-V2UogWIl5zPoXbsSlN6nPbZWo06nO1OuVOT4zwjqp0g==
mhtml:file://C:%5CUsers%5Cwilkeningc%5CAppData%5CLocal%5CMicrosoft%5CWindows%5CINetCache%5CContent.Outlook%5CJ6YB4CVY%5Cemail.mht!https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001XbyUugjkyNinZDV1wG2DFVBitNLVV90uVuJIFxU9Q2fjefaS9hkZO0FQf-rpHwgsI5Gx0GHTibV1Xed76LJbBGYF7j6xwqSy1p7zI8W8W8pHZLPvBjjjz4qSQMZI_Sc3M8HQ1fx2uOPamtXVDhPbMvqjv5CTlXdII-k7YXPmkwVHFRjadS0AhEW34jLGjtXJq6YwrcPy9-R3nBZyWfL05D37wMK1UyBfuTjK3RpHyjRnFN_Z-d5Zmx1u-H-XU9jh&c=Sn_mSpgFPUHj-Hm2J_X_64CZ_nu68r7bB57x7KII6VSpcbzfY2q2dA==&ch=bkO4f66FWm-V2UogWIl5zPoXbsSlN6nPbZWo06nO1OuVOT4zwjqp0g==
mhtml:file://C:%5CUsers%5Cwilkeningc%5CAppData%5CLocal%5CMicrosoft%5CWindows%5CINetCache%5CContent.Outlook%5CJ6YB4CVY%5Cemail.mht!https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001XbyUugjkyNinZDV1wG2DFVBitNLVV90uVuJIFxU9Q2fjefaS9hkZO0FQf-rpHwgseL79mZ6j6jukj1PBFacP0PtWpIaXM6PwMo9cpK0do0XJLJQRDDKYxlAyHIBiGx0KyHWvxg6wzL0SXxOAmnf0-iQeLYuyn1t0OWJ0aBmawEtEVrybA0SfZN9OEw-hRvZ5lKmGebh7UKBGh1A8DXPz0Y4b0Z8VOghypSsaTeVFuRu2mJwOX0KmFJlU84d5sOe3-DvptcHMvkg=&c=Sn_mSpgFPUHj-Hm2J_X_64CZ_nu68r7bB57x7KII6VSpcbzfY2q2dA==&ch=bkO4f66FWm-V2UogWIl5zPoXbsSlN6nPbZWo06nO1OuVOT4zwjqp0g==
mhtml:file://C:%5CUsers%5Cwilkeningc%5CAppData%5CLocal%5CMicrosoft%5CWindows%5CINetCache%5CContent.Outlook%5CJ6YB4CVY%5Cemail.mht!https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001XbyUugjkyNinZDV1wG2DFVBitNLVV90uVuJIFxU9Q2fjefaS9hkZO0FQf-rpHwgseL79mZ6j6jukj1PBFacP0PtWpIaXM6PwMo9cpK0do0XJLJQRDDKYxlAyHIBiGx0KyHWvxg6wzL0SXxOAmnf0-iQeLYuyn1t0OWJ0aBmawEtEVrybA0SfZN9OEw-hRvZ5lKmGebh7UKBGh1A8DXPz0Y4b0Z8VOghypSsaTeVFuRu2mJwOX0KmFJlU84d5sOe3-DvptcHMvkg=&c=Sn_mSpgFPUHj-Hm2J_X_64CZ_nu68r7bB57x7KII6VSpcbzfY2q2dA==&ch=bkO4f66FWm-V2UogWIl5zPoXbsSlN6nPbZWo06nO1OuVOT4zwjqp0g==
mhtml:file://C:%5CUsers%5Cwilkeningc%5CAppData%5CLocal%5CMicrosoft%5CWindows%5CINetCache%5CContent.Outlook%5CJ6YB4CVY%5Cemail.mht!https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001XbyUugjkyNinZDV1wG2DFVBitNLVV90uVuJIFxU9Q2fjefaS9hkZO0FQf-rpHwgsc6aqVUHRxPUSBnXsJU9lSCL1Bk_UD6Gp-8OpNFAazFqKrSq097SpDstfNWZjwdjDcSZRHmgQ_b8RtjP6ltl8VGBB0Rz7uBDnX0c35tQgK1U82gWCY4v1gQLFiW-9TcQH&c=Sn_mSpgFPUHj-Hm2J_X_64CZ_nu68r7bB57x7KII6VSpcbzfY2q2dA==&ch=bkO4f66FWm-V2UogWIl5zPoXbsSlN6nPbZWo06nO1OuVOT4zwjqp0g==
mhtml:file://C:%5CUsers%5Cwilkeningc%5CAppData%5CLocal%5CMicrosoft%5CWindows%5CINetCache%5CContent.Outlook%5CJ6YB4CVY%5Cemail.mht!https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001XbyUugjkyNinZDV1wG2DFVBitNLVV90uVuJIFxU9Q2fjefaS9hkZO0FQf-rpHwgstqHelS-3K13Xo4kfXuM-z6x2fhcIkZDZsHnQNTV0PQsIKOw-x8G92NSS-XFQnZG3OdWbswhM0kL7GWKYj7lAwKHgkjWdC9LmjXsepN2_veYCL5N9uIevTlpXQkSe3q5s-tAaLtM-HrdZFmNY8p1iNoqmwoze2b-6MOJ6TqopOASS-QGiq1PYVVhfRDpfXeUEaAgWQgo1mwI=&c=Sn_mSpgFPUHj-Hm2J_X_64CZ_nu68r7bB57x7KII6VSpcbzfY2q2dA==&ch=bkO4f66FWm-V2UogWIl5zPoXbsSlN6nPbZWo06nO1OuVOT4zwjqp0g==
mhtml:file://C:%5CUsers%5Cwilkeningc%5CAppData%5CLocal%5CMicrosoft%5CWindows%5CINetCache%5CContent.Outlook%5CJ6YB4CVY%5Cemail.mht!https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001XbyUugjkyNinZDV1wG2DFVBitNLVV90uVuJIFxU9Q2fjefaS9hkZO0FQf-rpHwgsaZGzaxgWYCBXJpF6daiuoBGYlUbQeSgvuGT3HloeUQ2KGdol5bgfmuiXUq-HSkbtWDBPd-CzB0zxvCchzWoi30b5oq3i0vu3P8CQ5jYM8Sa9Aw0ImMam_FBpsslj5NE84HJTOLylgJmu3ZavoJkVP_s-005tztHG-X5bkRfUz9ETIQZLApPbeVxpPVWfaK8-AEW6Dr8BISWv_5B6rnMJcvdKixLsPvi4SNI-PbczNCPNhFNaCPX15w==&c=Sn_mSpgFPUHj-Hm2J_X_64CZ_nu68r7bB57x7KII6VSpcbzfY2q2dA==&ch=bkO4f66FWm-V2UogWIl5zPoXbsSlN6nPbZWo06nO1OuVOT4zwjqp0g==
mhtml:file://C:%5CUsers%5Cwilkeningc%5CAppData%5CLocal%5CMicrosoft%5CWindows%5CINetCache%5CContent.Outlook%5CJ6YB4CVY%5Cemail.mht!https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001XbyUugjkyNinZDV1wG2DFVBitNLVV90uVuJIFxU9Q2fjefaS9hkZO0FQf-rpHwgsn_ycYqJdu279BhYUxYa8AfboqOuCQeQ9ac69Ylxkd2sLdM3nhRZBkdbW0xybKXUWZ-piRv1-lZbJUQ4GSVnqBdzjfojMBMTIaT5YbjYZboIx_R9FMGKhnqkgEnS2YXgtuQF0RO3LAKVeB_Hgle84HINdumj2XgwebKAjPh5nbNo=&c=Sn_mSpgFPUHj-Hm2J_X_64CZ_nu68r7bB57x7KII6VSpcbzfY2q2dA==&ch=bkO4f66FWm-V2UogWIl5zPoXbsSlN6nPbZWo06nO1OuVOT4zwjqp0g==
mhtml:file://C:%5CUsers%5Cwilkeningc%5CAppData%5CLocal%5CMicrosoft%5CWindows%5CINetCache%5CContent.Outlook%5CJ6YB4CVY%5Cemail.mht!https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001XbyUugjkyNinZDV1wG2DFVBitNLVV90uVuJIFxU9Q2fjefaS9hkZO0FQf-rpHwgsn_ycYqJdu279BhYUxYa8AfboqOuCQeQ9ac69Ylxkd2sLdM3nhRZBkdbW0xybKXUWZ-piRv1-lZbJUQ4GSVnqBdzjfojMBMTIaT5YbjYZboIx_R9FMGKhnqkgEnS2YXgtuQF0RO3LAKVeB_Hgle84HINdumj2XgwebKAjPh5nbNo=&c=Sn_mSpgFPUHj-Hm2J_X_64CZ_nu68r7bB57x7KII6VSpcbzfY2q2dA==&ch=bkO4f66FWm-V2UogWIl5zPoXbsSlN6nPbZWo06nO1OuVOT4zwjqp0g==
mhtml:file://C:%5CUsers%5Cwilkeningc%5CAppData%5CLocal%5CMicrosoft%5CWindows%5CINetCache%5CContent.Outlook%5CJ6YB4CVY%5Cemail.mht!https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001XbyUugjkyNinZDV1wG2DFVBitNLVV90uVuJIFxU9Q2fjefaS9hkZO0FQf-rpHwgsGir_941tgP8T4wahijip9UVQRWMA49R-9c1gqBQ3IFcSIIAmuZba9rdExLCMG_03bBrVHSLJ9JU1dPJoonTsddkrJn1A2UpppvqOrw0IqMgabKmOrofVQ0euIyNscZrVhqzNL_kFCidMvJv_aD5112kLAHXxbqxpiFndMzlMqDd_1c5GdsexXwLhgf5qELtlqRrd9wwNtaxeVbGrJrVru5Y6LlZh75TtJRwq8h-AmVU=&c=Sn_mSpgFPUHj-Hm2J_X_64CZ_nu68r7bB57x7KII6VSpcbzfY2q2dA==&ch=bkO4f66FWm-V2UogWIl5zPoXbsSlN6nPbZWo06nO1OuVOT4zwjqp0g==
mhtml:file://C:%5CUsers%5Cwilkeningc%5CAppData%5CLocal%5CMicrosoft%5CWindows%5CINetCache%5CContent.Outlook%5CJ6YB4CVY%5Cemail.mht!https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001XbyUugjkyNinZDV1wG2DFVBitNLVV90uVuJIFxU9Q2fjefaS9hkZO0FQf-rpHwgsY2dvqvjxRS0R_pwYeMIEnRVYeZ8oVxSCxNbXHmbWCw1MNt5EG-xEjLt4Y79MFWtM_lXSVTh5_r9MIpDVW3bgLRevPugNUmLThjBkY_CUd717HegzPjUPxmlHPQcyhzPYl5rBEwFRbWVAUhCZAHLnqTBPJupsqr9w5dvHWnXu85BbRa8p34DIOejelLe26nPHkyeAuvDWdN_I3ArGN_QvRZU-RWAeAoqYUQnYG3GR6g4=&c=Sn_mSpgFPUHj-Hm2J_X_64CZ_nu68r7bB57x7KII6VSpcbzfY2q2dA==&ch=bkO4f66FWm-V2UogWIl5zPoXbsSlN6nPbZWo06nO1OuVOT4zwjqp0g==
mhtml:file://C:%5CUsers%5Cwilkeningc%5CAppData%5CLocal%5CMicrosoft%5CWindows%5CINetCache%5CContent.Outlook%5CJ6YB4CVY%5Cemail.mht!https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001XbyUugjkyNinZDV1wG2DFVBitNLVV90uVuJIFxU9Q2fjefaS9hkZO0FQf-rpHwgsY2dvqvjxRS0R_pwYeMIEnRVYeZ8oVxSCxNbXHmbWCw1MNt5EG-xEjLt4Y79MFWtM_lXSVTh5_r9MIpDVW3bgLRevPugNUmLThjBkY_CUd717HegzPjUPxmlHPQcyhzPYl5rBEwFRbWVAUhCZAHLnqTBPJupsqr9w5dvHWnXu85BbRa8p34DIOejelLe26nPHkyeAuvDWdN_I3ArGN_QvRZU-RWAeAoqYUQnYG3GR6g4=&c=Sn_mSpgFPUHj-Hm2J_X_64CZ_nu68r7bB57x7KII6VSpcbzfY2q2dA==&ch=bkO4f66FWm-V2UogWIl5zPoXbsSlN6nPbZWo06nO1OuVOT4zwjqp0g==
mhtml:file://C:%5CUsers%5Cwilkeningc%5CAppData%5CLocal%5CMicrosoft%5CWindows%5CINetCache%5CContent.Outlook%5CJ6YB4CVY%5Cemail.mht!https://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001XbyUugjkyNinZDV1wG2DFVBitNLVV90uVuJIFxU9Q2fjefaS9hkZO0FQf-rpHwgsoOuaCU_T_1skDrcuYE4OZ3Kg0gI6jBPv-N0C0jEP6Usl4GXSCGka534n7Shi_EB3BuEou8O2q8KYh7q88kCL9T_Dix0TKiCtGvuIJPDrjkNhF0Ge4gTUN2FRdbnrtih_cvyfY31_tH4oXz5Uo8hmnZU177dyL2yKNAxmEPjGKPY=&c=Sn_mSpgFPUHj-Hm2J_X_64CZ_nu68r7bB57x7KII6VSpcbzfY2q2dA==&ch=bkO4f66FWm-V2UogWIl5zPoXbsSlN6nPbZWo06nO1OuVOT4zwjqp0g==
http://www.planhillsborough.org/
http://www.planhillsborough.org/non-discrimination-commitment
http://www.planhillsborough.org/non-discrimination-commitment
mailto:barberj@plancom.org
mailto:barberj@plancom.org


 
In accordance with Title 17 U.S.C. Section 107, materials attached are for research and 
educational purposes, and are distributed without profit to MPO Board members, MPO staff, or 
related committees or subcommittees the MPO supports. The MPO has no affiliation whatsoever 
with the originator of attached articles nor is the MPO endorsed or sponsored by the originator. 
Persons wishing to use copyrighted material for purposes of their own that go beyond ‘fair use’ 
must first obtain permission from the copyright owner. The MPO cannot ensure 508 accessibility 
for items produced by other agencies or organizations.  

If a person decides to appeal any decision made by the board, he or she will need a record of the 
proceedings, and for such purpose may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings 
is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. 

 



 pg. 1 TPO Board Meeting and Public Hearing, June 8, 2022 

HILLSBOROUGH TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION BOARD 
HYBRID MEETING AND PUBLIC HEARING, JUNE 8, 2022 

DRAFT MINUTES 

I. CALL TO ORDER, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE (Timestamp 0:05:03)

Commissioner Cohen, called the meeting to order at 6:00 PM and led the pledge of allegiance. The
Public Hearing was held in person and virtual via WebEx.

II. ROLL CALL  (Gail Reese, TPO Staff) (Timestamp 0:00:00)

The following members were present in person: Commissioner Harry Cohen, Commissioner Pat
Kemp, Commissioner Kimberly Overman, Commissioner Gwen Myers, Commissioner Mariella
Smith, Councilmember Guido Maniscalco, Councilmember Joseph Citro, Councilmember Lynn
Hurtak, Mayor Andrew Ross, Commissioner Nate Kilton, Joe Lapano, Greg Slater, Charles Klug

The following members were present virtually: Adalee Le Grand

The following members were absent/excused: Cody Powell, Jessica Vaughn

A quorum was met in person.

A. Vote of Consent for Remote Member Participation.

Councilman Maniscalco so moved, seconded by Councilman Citro; Voice vote, motion passes
unanimously.

III. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  (Timestamp 0:07:10) – May 11, 2022

Chair Cohen sought a motion to approve the May 11, 2022 minutes. Councilman Maniscalco so
moved, seconded by Commissioner Kemp. Voice vote: motion carries unanimously.

IV. PUBLIC COMMENT ON ITEMS OTHER THAN THE TIP (Timestamp 0:07:27) (30 minutes total, with
up to 3 minutes per speaker) Additional comments made via Social Media and Email can be found
at the end of these minutes.

• None at this time.

V. COMMITTEE REPORTS & ADVANCE COMMENTS ON ITEMS OTHER THAN THE TIP (Bill Roberts,
CAC Chair; Davida Franklin, TPO Staff) (Timestamp 0:00:00)

A. CAC – Bill Roberts, CAC Chair (June 1, 2022 meeting)
• In-person quorum voted to allow virtual members to participate.
• Considerable discussion about items in the TIP. Have discussed the TIP on three occasions, 2

regular meetings and a workshop



 

 pg. 2 TPO Board Meeting and Public Hearing, June 8, 2022 

o Heard 2 public comment emails. One about the toxic dust from construction on I-275 
north of I-4 and one about the South County Ferry. 

o Passed three motions at the meeting. 
o Recommended that FDOT items 440511-7 and 440511-8 be removed from the TIP as a 

result of the removal of the BRT lanes on Florida and Tampa Streets. Those being deferred 
and transferred to HART. FDOT’s Justin Hall joined virtually. He explained that the road 
improvements included that those TIP provisions are needed to make the BRT lanes on 
those two streets. 

o Requested specific explanations about the intent to impose tolls on the express lanes to 
be built on the Howard Franklin Bridge on the segment between Downtown and 
Westshore. 

o Discussed the funds for the Westshore Interchange. It was not clear that the funding 
described in the TIP was budgeted through the five-year Work Program. Justin Hall 
explained how the Work Program works and that the funds are there. 

o There was a discussion about the Downtown Interchange. Line items 66 and 67. It was 
pointed out that two general-purpose lanes north of the interchange were previously 
removed at the request of the TPO Board. 

o A vote was taken on the TIP. The CAC Vice-Chair noted that the action of approving the TIP 
amounts to rescinding a prior action taken by the CAC regarding those two general-
purpose lanes north of the junction. Subsequently, the TPO Legal Council affirmed the 
appropriateness of the CAC’s action in recommending the TIP to you. 

 
B. TAC – June 6, 2022 (Davida Franklin, TPO Staff) 

• Approved  
o TIP update and priority list approval – questioned timetable for the Dale Mabry Overpass 

(#71 on the table 2 – list of candidates for new funding, received clarification that the 
overpass is included in the State Road 60 interchange project with construction in 2030. 

C. LRC – May 25, 2022 (Davida Franklin, TPO Staff) 
• Approved 

o TIP update and priority list. 
 Passed a motion to consider the integration of transportation demand management 

strategies and commuter assistance into the process of allocating funds for the next 
TIP update. 

 Reflected on a previous motion to require that all projects should start with a Vision 
Zero lens and then apply other criteria. 

D. BPAC – May 25, 2022 (Davida Franklin, TPO Staff) 
• Approved 

o  TIP update and priority list. 
 Confirmed that priorities come from jurisdictional applications and will complete 

projects already underway. 
 

E. Public Comments Received Through Email & Social Media (Davida Franklin, TPO Staff). 

Detailed Email and Social Media are located at the end of the minutes. 
 



 

 pg. 3 TPO Board Meeting and Public Hearing, June 8, 2022 

 
VI. CONSENT AGENDA (Timestamp 0:15:06) 

 
A. Committee Appointments 

• TDCB – Kristen Thomas representing Veterans’ Affairs, with Meghan Krieger as the alternate. 
• LRC – Waldo Carbo, Jr. representing Westshore Alliance 

B. Proposed edit of TPO Bylaws, Sections 4.2 and 7.6 – included in the June 8, 2022 Agenda Packet 
 
Motion to approve the consent agenda from Councilman Maniscalco, seconded by Commissioner 
Kemp. Voice vote, the motion passes unanimously.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING: (Timestamp 0:15:23) 

A. Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) Annual Update (Timestamp 0:15:45) Effective 
October 1, 2022 – September 30, 2027 
 
Staff Presentation (Johnny Wong, TPO Staff) 
• Review of the three tables in the TIP and their purpose. 
• Went over how projects are submitted by the jurisdictions and agencies. 
• Identified how projects are funded and pointed out new funding sources for this year that are 

included in Table 2 
• Review of Table 1 – existing priorities funded for construction 

o Noted projects that have been completed and removed for this update. 
• Review of Table 2 – the priority list. Identified the columns and what they mean. Added the 

column of “No Return” and if funding is received and allocated, it is at the point of no return 
would indicate a joint action from the TPO Board and FDOT.  

• Quick review of Table 3 – these are CIP projects and are allocated outside the TPO purview. 
o Went over funding percentages of the projects. 

• Next Steps 
o Coordination with and reviewed by partners and committees 
o Regional Project review for TRIP and MUT being presented to the Sun Coast XXX on Friday, 

June 10, 2099. 
o Will make sure the TIP is all in compliance with rules and regulations with FDOT. 

 
Presentation: TIP FY2022/23 - 26/27 Presentation  
Draft: Measures of Effectiveness Report 
Public Hearing Flyer (English): TIP Public Hearing Flyer - English Version 
Public Hearing Flyer (Spanish): TIP Public Hearing Flyer - Spanish Version 
FY2022/23 – 26/27 TIP Tables 1, 2, 3 Included: TIP FY22/23-26/27 
Priority Request Letters submitted to the TPO by the Jurisdictions  

 
Recommendation: Approve the TIP Update for FY2022/23 – 26/27 And Approve the TIP Priority 
List (Table 2). 

https://planhillsborough.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/06/June-TPO-Agenda-Packet.pdf
https://planhillsborough.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/05/Attach-TIP-Presentation-Slides.pdf
https://planhillsborough.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/04/Measures-of-effectiveness-Report-Draft-04-15-22.pdf
https://planhillsborough.org/wp-content/uploads/2021/08/TPO-June-8-TIP-Hearing-notice-English-FINAL-for-web-051922.pdf
https://planhillsborough.org/wp-content/uploads/2021/08/Spanish-TPO-June-8-TIP-Hearing-notice-FINAL-for-web-051922.pdf
https://planhillsborough.org/wp-content/uploads/2021/08/TIP-FY-22-23-5-25-22-3-1.pdf
https://planhillsborough.org/tip-priority-request-letters-submitted-by-the-jurisdictions_2022_2023/


 

 pg. 4 TPO Board Meeting and Public Hearing, June 8, 2022 

Public Comment on the TIP – Time allotted to each speaker may be adjusted by the chairman to 
accommodate as many as possible. (Timestamp 0:35:00) 

Rick Fernandez – Is out of Tampa Heights and is the CAC Vice-Chair. Incorporates, by reference, 
written comments. The principal ask is to have the TPO strike the three DTI Lane Movements 
making up the Quick Fix project in Table 1: FPN #s 20561, 20562, and 0571. There are other 
pressing concerns including dedicated transit lanes on Florida and Tampa Streets, the retention 
walls along the eastern boundary of Tampa Heights, and several underpasses in Tampa Heights 
and Seminole Heights. Expressed disappointment by the Boards engagement with the public, 
especially the locally elected members. Noted that the acceptance of the TIP tonight would 
indicate approval of Jim Crow era racism and environmental pollution; suggests approval of 
people being displaced from their homes in VM Ybor, intrusion of interstate retention walls in 
Tampa Heights, disruption of residents’ quiet enjoyment and threats to their health and safety all 
along the urban interstate corridor, devaluation and damage to private property, FDOT’s disregard 
for historic preservation and community standards, abandonment of dedicated transit lanes for 
BRT on Florida and Tampa, and the failure of FDOT’s and the TPO Board’s public outreach related 
to the Quick Fix project. It was asked that the TPO Board strike the lane movements in Table 1, 
stop the intrusion of the retention walls in Tampa Heights, support the dedicated transit lanes on 
Tampa and Florida Streets, and step into the discussion of vertical retention walls at Floribraska, 
Lake, Osborn, and Chelsea underpasses. 

James Dunbar – Resident and works along Tampa Street. Excited to see some of the changes to 
make it safer. Has worked there for ten years and has seen many, many fatalities along those 
corridors. They are three-lane highways in each direction. Noted that he drove to County Center 
on the Crosstown and realized that the roads in front of his house and work are wider than the 
Crosstown. The speeds driven on the three-lane roads are vey high. Noted Tampa and Florida 
going from Tyler to Floribraska changes will make great impact going through the southern part of 
The Heights creating more safety for walkability, the designated bus lanes, and the sidewalks. 
What doesn’t make sense is north of Floribraska to MLK. There is a ½ mile from Floribraska to 
MLK, where he lives, which will continue to be three lanes in each direction. Sees the reduction 
above and below this stretch but not in this ½ mile. 

Mauricio Rosas – (Chair Cohen went through the list of individuals who signed up donating their 
time to Mr. Rosas). Thanked the TPO Board and HTV for allowing the playing of a video. Thanked 
Secretary Gwynn for opening up FDOT and working with the public. Went over changes that have 
taken place in the urban corridor and the history of racial injustices. Gave an example of what 
New York City has done with its infrastructure. Referenced that if the current path is followed, 
there will be no mass transit in the region. Noted that East Tampa is a food desert; place-making is 
critical. Asked that FDOT be proud of what they are doing with beautification and aesthetics with 
the DTI project and underpasses. Stated that trees are necessary along the roads to make them 
beautiful and walkable in the sun and pedestrian-friendly. Said that the only way to get to Vision 
Zero is by reducing the number of vehicles on the road. Video shown with interviews of two 
residents of East Tampa and I-275 roadway. 

Michael Maurino – Executive Director of the Westshore Alliance. Sent in a letter but would like to 
highlight a few things. The presented TIP, there are two projects in Vision Zero that are in 



 

 pg. 5 TPO Board Meeting and Public Hearing, June 8, 2022 

Westshore; a signal at Boy Scout and Hatton. That came from the community and was identified in 
2018. Lois Ave. is a Complete Streets project. There are two others for Westshore. Those types of 
projects move Vision Zero forward but also increase community and economic development. The 
Gray Street Bicycle project; with the projects of the Westshore Interchange, there is the real 
possibility for a pedestrian-friendly neighborhood where one does not exist. There is a gap in the 
system, that is Gray Street. Elements are there, it would get the East-West connection before 
2030 when the interchange is done. 

Candace Lane Savitz – Homeowner in Tampa Heights. Speaking up about the FDOT I-275 project; 
it is toxic and hurting the residents. In Tampa Heights, Seminole Heights, and Ybor Heights. Asked 
that her environmental reports receive attention and be looked into further. Stated that the dust 
from the project is in violation of the Clean Air Act and subsequent amendments. The Robles Park 
Community has federal protections.  

Shane Ragiel – Resident of Tampa Heights. Fifth-year speaking to the TPO Board during the TIP 
Hearing. Is asking that the promises to make transit a priority are upheld. The county is 
transforming rapidly and it needs transformation. Noted that the county looks nothing like it did 
five years ago and asked why the TIP has the same priorities. Enough roads cannot be built to keep 
up with the population growth, need to have mass transit so that cars are optional. Stop leaving 
things in the TIP until FDOT can better define them. FDOT is focused on cars; they can come back 
and amend the TIP when they have better definitions. Objects to projects that increase capacity, 
impact historic neighborhoods and sacrifice the urban core. Increased capacity is for the 
increasing population of neighboring counties and leads to urban sprawl. 

Will Greaves – Lifetime Tampa resident, business owner, and is on the Boards of multiple local 
non-profit organizations. Is engaged and passionate about this city. No one has asked for the 
widening of I-275, believes it is a mandate from Tallahassee. Residents of the city and county have 
been asking for real transit options. That can be seen in the votes for the AFT in 2018 and the push 
to return it to the ballot in 2022; it can also be seen in the ridership of the ferry and streetcar. We 
do not need a decades-long project that further divides our communities and be inadequate when 
complete. Let’s put the money where it can do the best good and in projects that the local citizens 
want. 

Sharon Graham Barrett – Resident and healthcare worker in Tampa. Widening highways 
perpetual racism and it is ineffective in solving our transportation and traffic concerns. Invest in 
focused, public transportation infrastructure. Walking and bicycle paths have health benefits by 
way of decreased rates of asthma, cancer, heart disease, obesity, and diabetes. Is asking for no 
further intrusion of the interstate into Tampa Heights, VM Ybor, Ybor City, Seminole Heights, and 
Old Seminole Heights and to remove all highway expansion from the annual transportation 
budget. Replace it with sidewalks, bike lanes, bus lanes, and mass transit. In 2020, this Board 
wrote a resolution supporting racial justice. It acknowledged that the construction of I-275 and I-4 
was used to divide African American communities and eliminate the Central Avenue Business 
District. Asked that the TPO Board vote in line with the resolution.  

Cindy Davis – Is the co-owner of Paws Paradise for Life on George Road. Is primarily concerned 
about the George Road and Memorial Boulevard intersection, they see about one to two 
accidents a month if not more that result in bodily injuries, property damage, and have seen a 



 

 pg. 6 TPO Board Meeting and Public Hearing, June 8, 2022 

pedestrian being hit while trying to cross the road. People park on the sidewalks instead of in the 
7Eleven parking lot causing problems with pedestrians walking along the sidewalk. Something has 
to be done about this intersection. The accidents are traumatizing to watch. It is a small area and 
feels that small areas get pushed to the back burner, feels this needs to get pushed to the front 
burner. 

Dayna Lazarus – Has learned a lot about the TIP process since first standing in front of the Board 
in 2016. The TPO Board does not have the ability to put projects into the TIP, that is up to 
implementing agencies. Noted that it must be frustrating when the community begs for transit, 
protected bike lanes, wider sidewalks, safety infrastructure, etc. The Board has expressed the 
desire to want to make a difference. The power is in being able to take things out of the TIP and in 
prioritizing what is there. Asked that the Board remove projects that widen highways and slash 
through communities. The staff has done their best to put together a TIP based on the requests 
and funding sources available. It is time for the Board to remove items and prioritize items the 
community really wants. You are the only ones who can tell FDOT no. There are funding sources in 
the pipeline and the future pipeline.  

Zulema Ramos – Has lived in Tampa for fifteen years and runs a local non-profit. The state of 
public transit and gentrification is dire to people living in the city. Immediate free 24-hour access 
and real safety measure can mean the difference between making it to a hospital and dying on the 
street. Saw a man dead in a bush because he couldn’t afford to call 911 and there wasn’t a bus or 
a tram available. Remembers when she was a disabled college student and was stuck in the city 
because her work schedule made her late for the last bus. Jobs require time past midnight. Human 
trafficking victims would have a better chance of escape. Transportation is a right and honors the 
people the Board is supposed to be working for. Public transit should be free and expanded 
without TBX, there would be fewer accidents and deaths. Change the way we travel and where 
structures are built to reduce the number of crashes, amount of pollution, and criminal acts of 
survival.  Transit reduces the amount of gasoline burned. If it was solar-powered, imagine how 
much better our kids could breathe. For every $10 million of transit investment, business sales 
increase by $30 million. Solutions are there. Taxes would not have to increase if the bloated police 
and sheriff’s budges were used for transportation.  

Kat – Gas is the highest it has ever been. Is a teacher and either subs or is full-time depending on 
the time of year. The average pay for subs is between $8 and $12. Does not understand how we 
can expect teachers to be able to afford to live and drive to get to work. Other cities around the 
country that are poorer have free public transport. Tampa is a much richer city. Does not 
understand why buses aren’t treated as a public service here. Was trying to bike on Dale Mabry to 
Downtown. There were no sidewalks and a lot of car exhaust in the air that had an effect on his 
health. None of the residents want more highways. They want more transit. (speaker went off the 
topic of the TIP, Chair Cohen requested that comments be kept to items in the TIP). 

Lena Young Green – Noted that we are here, again, for another year. Asked that the TPO Board be 
sensitive to those in the Urban Core, particularly to those in Tampa Heights. Thought there were 
changes when working with TBX. This year, there are walls changing. Tampa Heights has been 
overburdened by the interstate. Have talked about this many times. Tampa Heights has been the 
most impacted in the urban core. The environmental injustice map released a few weeks shows 



 

 pg. 7 TPO Board Meeting and Public Hearing, June 8, 2022 

how disadvantaged this area of the city is. This map shows that Tampa Heights has had a legacy of 
pollution, health burdens, particulate matter exposure, traffic proximity, and traffic volumes. The 
community speaks up at every opportunity to tell the Board how they are impacted by the 
highway and high-traffic areas. Are asking for the removal of the three lane movements. Also 
asking to move forward with the Heights Mobility project with the dedicated transit lanes on 
Florida and Tampa Streets. Thanked the Board for including the Green ARTery. She personally 
worked with 22 communities on that project. Asked that concrete walls not be built at Robles Park 
at the interstate and to use trees and plants as the noise walls instead to improve the quality of air 
in that area. 

David Coleman – Noted that he was told there would be positive things done for safety. Noted 
that gun violence is a terrible thing needlessly taking lives and something needs to be done. Said 
he felt the same about traffic deaths. In Hillsborough last year, there were 255 deaths and 7300 
hits and runs. At a recent event with the City of Tampa Mayor, the speed limit on I-275 from Busch 
Boulevard to the Howard Franklin was stated incorrectly by the mayor’s traffic person. There are 
few signs and no enforcement on this stretch. Noted that in two days, three people were killed on 
North Florida Avenue. One was by a police officer going 66 mph in an unlit, residential area. Began 
attending FDOT meetings. Did not receive adequate responses as to why there was nothing being 
done to reduce the deaths in the county. Signs won’t help as redesigns are necessary. Lowered 
limits won’t help because there is not enough enforcement. Spent hundreds of thousands of 
dollars with a Miami company on landscaping the apex in front of Avalon with a flashing crosswalk 
because of the direction from Tallahassee. It was unneeded and not asked for. Believes that other 
citizens would be willing to add a few more minutes to their travel times, lowering and obeying 
speed limits on secondary roads with the 35 Arrive Alive Campaigns is warranted. Using black spot 
signs where people have been killed would make a difference. Increased penalties for leaving the 
scene of an accident involving a pedestrian are needed. The speed limit on I-275 in the city limits is 
55 mph and is the best-kept secret in Tampa. 

Kevin O’Hare – Lives in Westshore and works in Ybor City. Asked that the three additional lane 
movements from the DTI Quick Fix project be stricken from Table 1; support additional funding for 
the Green ARTery Trail sections D and E; and continue funding the Heights Mobility Study and the 
arterial bus rapid transit project not on the highway to encourage urban core transportation and 
reduce traffic. Noted that in 2018, the citizens of Hillsborough County voted for no further 
interstate expansion. Noted that the speakers tonight are all asking for the same thing. Asked for a 
diverse set of options to move around Hillsborough County. 

Summary of Public Comments on the TIP Submitted in Advance (Davida Franklin, TPO Staff) 
(Timestamp 1:41:46) – included at the end of the minutes in the Email and Social Media sections.  

Board Discussion and Action (Timestamp 1:48:10) 

Councilman Maniscalco – Noted that this is his 8th TIP hearing. Has never been a supporter of 
widening the interstate. Has seen the destruction from the past and what will happen in the future 
by accommodating vehicles and not the communities. Said there are many beneficial projects in the 
TIP update. The Westshore Interchange includes new express lanes, but he does not agree with 
those or widening the highway. The Downtown Interchange, he does not support those TIP projects. 



 

 pg. 8 TPO Board Meeting and Public Hearing, June 8, 2022 

There are items that are already funded and do not believe they can be removed. Asked if that is 
possible. 

Cameron Clark – Removal from the TIP has to do with the stage of development of a project. Things 
can be removed only by joint action of the MPO and the FDOT. The statute does not define the 
“design stage or preliminary engineering phase”. The TPO Staff does not track the stages of the 
projects. There is no legal guidance from a legal standpoint. It’s not that something has been in the 
TIP in the past, it’s what stage of development the project is at. 

There was a discussion about Table 2 and the column labeled as “Point of no return” and 
clarification. 

 It was clarified that that this column is included to let the Board members know what stage a 
project is at. That information is provided by the agencies requesting the project. Anything that has 
been reported as being in the design, design/construction, or construction phase is designated with 
a “Yes” in that column. Transit projects do not follow the same stages as construction projects, an 
example is bus replacement. Once that money is allocated, it can’t be taken back as buses will be 
purchased and can’t be returned. 

Board members stated that there are a lot of amazing projects on this TIP such as the Vision Zero 
projects. It was asked if the three lane movement in Table 1 are able to be removed or if there is any 
influence the Board can have on design. It was also noted that the community would like 
connections and not more segmentation. Secretary Gwynn defined the “design” stage and when a 
project reaches it. There is some flexibility, but the contract will be awarded soon. There are new 
underpass designs and will be bringing them back to the community, 

The Board asked about the dedicated transit lanes in The Heights Mobility project. FDOT is waiting 
for HART to submit their final application based on their study and what type of premium service 
will be offered for those lanes. Once that is done and approved, FDOT will approve it and 
incorporate it. FDOT is using the RAISE Grant funds to get the roadway ready for the dedicated 
transit lane. FDOT is not a transit provider, that is why they are waiting on HART. 

The Vision Zero project involving Fowler Avenue was asked about. It has pieces on Tables 2 and 3. It 
looks like the part from 56th Street to I-75 is going to linger and slip further down. It was stated that 
there is a recommendation to allocate $5 million in 2027 for design and will be in the 2027 FDOT 
Work Program. 

There was discussion about the additional lanes on I-275 north of the DTI to Bearrs and how to get 
the process started to remove them from the LRTP. They are no longer in the TIP and want to 
explore options for the future. 

Commissioner Kemp moved to begin the process to remove the additional two lanes of I-275 North 
from the LRTP so that they are no longer there, seconded by Councilmember Hurtak.  

Discussion: 

It was noted that this could have dramatic future consequences and that this is a multi-step process. 
It was also pointed out that the current TPO is dealing with things that were done decades ago. It 



 

 pg. 9 TPO Board Meeting and Public Hearing, June 8, 2022 

was asked if this changes is being asked for the current LRTP or the LRTP update coming in the next 
two years, 

Commissioner Kemp modified her motion to have this set for the August 2022 agenda. Does not 
want future TPOs to get stuck with this. Would like to get the process started now to avoid the 
problems that the DTI is causing now. Seconded by Commissioner Myers. 

It was noted that there is a public notification process for changing the current LRTP and that staff 
will need to bring back information regarding traffic impacts. Asked for clarification on what the TPO 
Board would like to have brought back in August. 

Commissioner Kemp – Would like the process to start for the 2050 LRTP to address these two lanes. 

Roll Call vote – passes 14 to 0 

The HART Heavy Maintenance Facility was asked about. It is in the Major Investment section of 
Table 2 at #94. The City of Tampa and Hillsborough County have put money to match funding. This 
facility is critical and unsafe. It is low on the priority list due to the criteria used to rank projects. Will 
be working with HART to find funding. It was also noted that HART has indicated that #95 needs to 
be at the same and the cost goes to $125 million. HART is waiting until the FDOT Work Program is 
updated in December as well. One year of vehicle replacement funds has been moved to the heavy 
maintenance facility; it still requires four additional years of funding. It would be beneficial to move 
it higher on the list particularly if HART has identified that this project is more important than the 
passenger rail study. HART confirmed that this facility is their number one priority. 

Commissioner Smith moved to move #94 and #95 to the top of the Major Improvement Projects, 
seconded by Mayor Ross and Councilmember Citro. 

Discussion: 

Commissioner Kemp – Noted that HART desperately needs this; it is the number one need to move 
people in the region. 

Roll call vote, motion passes 14 – 0.  

Councilmember Hurtak moved to move item #65 further down the priority list after #75, CSX has 
expressed that they have no interest in this at this time. There is no second.  

Discussion: 

There was discussion about the fact that the CSX conversation has been on the list for several years, 
HART has it scheduled to be moved forward in 2027. Does not believe moving the maintenance 
facility up will change the prioritization of the CSX study. Reviewed what was heard at TBARTA. On a 
regional level, it will be looked at how passenger rail could evolve over time in the entire region. 
Item #65 is the only anchor keeping this on the TIP. This was moved from #95 last year. 

There was discussion regarding the project in Table 2, item 67, referencing new express lanes. There 
was a discussion at the TPO level that for any project that addresses express lanes the TPO Board 
would have communication on what managed express lanes will be. Either they are tolled or not. 
This project references managed express lanes. Would like clarification on this. Does not want this 



 

 pg. 10 TPO Board Meeting and Public Hearing, June 8, 2022 

to mean that they are approving toll lanes. Secretary Gwynn stated that the Westshore Interchange 
project is 8 to 10 years from opening up. As it gets closer to opening, FDOT will hold public hearings 
and the strategies for the express lanes. There will be opportunities for the public and the TPO 
Board to have input on this. It was asked for clarification on the standing that this project is at the 
point of no return and whether or not lane management would be able to be addressed in the 
future. It has been agreed on in the past that when the Board is voting on any item that includes 
managed lanes, they would have the information on the management strategy before the vote. 
Secretary Gwynn stated that a contractor will be selected in the next few months, will take 8 to 10 
years since traffic has to keep flowing, and will cost $1.2 billion. It will be built in multiple phases. 
They do not know what management options will be available closer to the time the lanes open up. 
It can be built for tolls and then not be tolled. There is precedent for that in Florida. Tolling or not 
tolling is a policy decision and not related to the RFP. 

Councilmember Hurtak – Noted that she cannot support the TIP with this on it. 

Charles Klug moved to approve the TIP, seconded by Joe Lopano. 

Commissioner Cohen – Thanked everybody for a good discussion. There is a lot of good stuff in the 
TIP. Every year we hear the public pleading with us for transit and additional safety measures. There 
has been enormous frustration with our inability to deliver on major transit solutions for this 
community. It is no accident that the five County Commissioners sitting on this Board placed 
something on the ballot this November to try and give our community some options on how to 
move forward. Safety and the idea of reducing the number of cars on the road by giving other 
options are at the centerpiece of the directions we are trying to move. We are doing the best we can 
with the money we have. There is a lot of money left on the federal and state table because we 
don’t have the money to match. And if we had the money to match, we would be in an entirely 
different circumstance. 

Roll call vote, motion passes 12 – 2. (“No” votes from Councilmembers Maniscalco and Hurtak)  

 
VII. OLD & NEW BUSINESS (Timestamp 3:10:46) 

 
A. Councilmember Citro – Wishes Ronald Weaver a Happy Birthday, is usually in the audience at TPO 

meetings. 
B. Commissioner Cohen – Some members of the Board are going to the meeting of the Suncoast 

Transportation Planning Alliance and the TMA Leadership Group on June 10th.  
C. Next meeting is on August 10, 2022. 

 
VIII. ADJOURNMENT – The meeting adjourned at 9:07 PM  

The recording of this meeting may be viewed on YouTube: Meeting Recording 

  

https://www.youtube.com/c/HillsboroughCountyMeetings/videos


 

 pg. 11 TPO Board Meeting and Public Hearing, June 8, 2022 

 

 

 

 



 

 pg. 12 TPO Board Meeting and Public Hearing, June 8, 2022 

 

 

 

 



 

 pg. 13 TPO Board Meeting and Public Hearing, June 8, 2022 

 

 

  



 

 pg. 14 TPO Board Meeting and Public Hearing, June 8, 2022 

Social Media  

 
 Facebook 

5/11  

In another individual’s post stating it’s highly unlikely the TPO Board will revert to only elected 
officials having a vote 

Vela Christopher 

Walter John Slupecki that is why I’m also concerned about the referendum verbiage. 

A lot of future projects will be determined by tally seats and even nonelective seats on the 
Hillsborough TPO 

This is why zero funding to the interstates needs to be guaranteed under any referendum. 

Knowing how the Blue Ripple and lame duck appointees act, this referendum must not past. It wont. 

5/17 

In response to a job posting for the TPO 

Mike Lamarca 

Interesting. Get paid to beat my head against the wall. 

Greenways under transportation is an odd place to put recreational facilities.  

5/21 

In response to a post about Plan Hillsborough receiving the Gold Bicycle Friendly Business Award 
from the League of American Bicyclists 

Pedal Power Promoters, LLC 

Congratulations on your award from League of American Bicyclists! Thank you for celebrating 
#bikemonth with Walk Bike Tampa and Pedal Power Promoters, LLC! 

6/3 

In a post about increased outreach efforts by TPO staff 

Forward Pinellas 

Way to go 

In a shared post about Brightline’s new funding for the I-4 corridor 

Tatiana Morales 

I just wanna never drive on i4 ever again 

Dayna Sparkle-Pony 



 

 pg. 15 TPO Board Meeting and Public Hearing, June 8, 2022 

Tatiana Morales ME TOO 

Tatiana Morales 

Dayna Sparkle-Pony and alligator alley 

6/5 

Regarding a post about the TPO’s survey for the CAC 

Frances Fernandez  

(posted the thumbs up emoji) 

Patrick Darden 

Super cool 

6/8 

Posted on the Board meeting event page about the TIP public hearing 

Rick Fernandez 

To: Transportation Planning Organization Board 

From: Rick Fernandez 

Subject: Transportation Improvement Program (TIP), June 8, 2022 

I incorporate by reference my written comments submitted via email on June 7. 

My principal ask tonight is for you to strike the three DTI lane movements making up the DTI Quick Fix 
project in TIP Table 1: 

 

- Westbound I-4 to Northbound I-275 (FPN 445056-1). This movement impacts VM Ybor, taking 
additional Right-of-Way and several homes. 

- Westbound I-4 to Southbound I-275 (FPN 4455056-2). This movement impacts Tampa Heights 
retention walls south of Palm Ave. to south of 7th Ave. 

- Southbound I-275 to Eastbound I-4 (FPN 445057-1). This movement impacts Tampa Heights 
retention walls between Floribraska Ave. and Palm Ave. 

There are other important concerns related to dedicated transit lanes on Tampa Street and Florida 
Avenue, retention walls along the eastern boundary of Tampa Heights and at several underpasses in 
Tampa Heights and Seminole Heights.  

We’ve been talking about these things for months and in some cases years. Personally, I am frustrated 
and disappointed by the lack of engagement by this Board with the Community. FDOT’s failures in this 
regard are legend … but I hoped for more from you … especially the locally elected class. 



 

 pg. 16 TPO Board Meeting and Public Hearing, June 8, 2022 

In this moment I want to focus on what a vote advancing the TIP as presented by staff tonight would 
say about each of you as public servants. It would mean you approve:   

_ further expansion of a monument to Jim Crow era racism and an environmental polluter …  

_ Displacement of individuals from their homes in VM Ybor in service to ROW acquisition and 
Interstate expansion 

_ Intrusion of Interstate retention walls in Tampa Heights 

_ Disruption of residents’ quiet enjoyment and threats to their health and safety all along the urban 
Interstate corridor  

_ Devaluation and damage to private property 

_ FDOT’s disregard for historic preservation and community standards (1902 Lamar Ave and sloping 
underpass retention walls come to mind) 

_ The abandonment of dedicated transit lanes for BRT on Florida Ave. and Tampa Street. 

_ the abysmal failure that has permeated FDOT’s and TPO’s public outreach related to the DTI Quick 
Fix project since at least 2019. 

A vote for this year’s TIP, as presented, is a nod to the wrongheaded notion that we in Urban Tampa 
exist for the convenience of regional and even national interests …  

I live and vote locally … those of you privileged to hold elected office have secured your votes locally … 
there are responsibilities …  I hope you will begin to meet them …  

Strike the three DTI lane movements in Table 1, stop the intrusion of retention walls in Tampa Heights, 
support the dedicated transit lanes on Tampa Street and Florida Avenue and step into the discussion 
regarding vertical retention walls at the Floribraska, Lake, Osborne and Chelsea underpasses. 

 

Rick Fernandez, 2906 N Elmore Ave., Tampa, FL 33602, TPO CAC Vice Chair, Tampa Heights Civic 
Association, Transportation Chair 

Nicole Perry 

To: TPO for Public Comment 6/8/22 Meeting 

My name is Nicole Perry. I live at 602 E Frances Ave, right by the downtown interchange in Tampa 
Heights. Our beloved neighborhood, Tampa's first suburb, has already borne the effects of the 
highway during its creation and continues to weather the effects every day.  We are exposed to air 
pollution, sound pollution, and decreased property values for those who live closest to it. Historic 
properties have been destroyed because of it. It has been shown time and again across the world that 
wider highways will NOT improve traffic in the long run due to induced demand. Tampa needs real 
solutions, real mass transit, and to stop destroying its history and hurting its residents, such as my 
family.  



 

 pg. 17 TPO Board Meeting and Public Hearing, June 8, 2022 

I oppose further I-275 retention wall intrusions along the eastern boundary of Tampa Heights. I ask 
you to strike the line items concerning further expansion of the highway through the DTI. This area has 
suffered enough at the hands of FDOT. Residents of Tampa and even surrounding neighborhoods have 
made it clear that WE WANT REAL TRANSIT not wider highways. FDOT keeps pushing the same old 
agenda over and over and quite honestly the fight against them is exhausting. I’m a busy, working 
momma of three little ones. They know that most residents don’t have the energy to fight this, so they 
think that one more time of pushing it will win. We need YOU to help the residents of our beloved city 
and strike these motions that will only further HURT the residents with increased noise, pollution, 
safety concerns, and reduced property values. There are so many other important transit focused 
opportunities to focus on instead. 

Christopher Martinez 

Tampa Heights residents are working very hard to restore the neighborhood to its former pre-275 
glory as much as possible. The number one impediment and threat to the historic nature of the 
neighborhood and its future growth and strengthening is the freeway. We should be moving to lessen 
the impact of 275 and move to smarter, more sustainable transportation options - walking, biking, 
clean and safe and truly useful public transport. Please consider the following items, thank you. 

Take all possible action to stop the further intrusion of Interstate walls along the eastern border of 
Tampa Heights. This was recommended by the Citizens Advisory Committee in January 2022. 

Strike the following lane movements from the DTI-Quick Fix Project (TIP Table 1) 

-Westbound I-4 to Northbound I-275 (FPN 445056-1). This movement impacts VM Ybor and results in 
the taking of additional Right-of-Way and several homes 

-Westbound I-4 to Southbound I-275 (FPN 4455056-2). (Strike recommended by the TPO CAC in March 
2022). This movement impacts retention walls south of Palm Ave. to south of 7th Ave. 

-Southbound I-275 to Eastbound I-4 (FPN 445057-1). (Strike recommended by the TPO CAC in March 
2022). This movement impacts retention walls between Floribraska Ave. and Palm Ave. 

 

Advance the Heights Mobility Project with dedicated transit lanes on Florida Ave. and Tampa St. 

Fund trails and sidewalks, including the Green ARTery. 

 

Twitter 

5/19 
In response to a HART post about bus shelter installations 
Tolar Manufacturing 

Great job by the @GoHART maintenance team #transitworks #communitymatters 

In response to an ABC Action News post about rising traffic fatalities 



 

 pg. 18 TPO Board Meeting and Public Hearing, June 8, 2022 

Mauricio Rosas 

All the funding is needed to get Hillsborough mass transit infrastructure built, but if land-use policies 
continue to create sprawling suburbs, we will not reach #VisionZero  

5/22 
Regarding a post by Walk Bike Tampa about rising cycling and pedestrian fatalities 

 
Jeff Redding 
Hi Neighbors, I  have a page about why so many #Pedestrians are being killed in #Florida. 
http://pedestriansmatter.org 

 
6/2 
Regarding a post from the Tampa Bay Times about a new terminal at Tampa International Airport  

 
TampaBayBeat 
Either add some meaningful international flights or change your name to Tampa Regional Airport. 

  
(Return to Minutes) 

 

Email  

From: neil.cosentino@icloud.com 
To: Beth Alden 
Subject: Re: Repurposing the Northbound I-275 Howard Frankland Bridge to include Green Mobility 
Date: Thursday, May 12, 2022 10:06:07 PM 
Beth 
Some facts* 
On May 12, 2022, at 4:12 PM, Beth Alden <aldenb@plancom.org> wrote: 
There may be trepidation about taking over the maintenance responsibilities for a large bridge that 
FDOT has indicated is at the end of its functional life. 
* FACT - the “ Functional Life “ based on a maximum number of 40 ton vehicles per span dynamic loads… 
and has a FDOT 7 health rating today at 89% …. We will limit the load to solar panels, cars and people … 
a four ton limit, i.e., 40 vs 4 . Extrapolated means the bridge is safe for a very long time and there will be 
enough funds from selling clean energy to pay salaries and maintenance .  
And Beth, we would like independent out of state FHWA bridge engineers to make the official 
evaluation of the potential life span of the bridge …  
Note their finding would needed to obtain bank or DOE loans to install the Solar Array. 
It will be an expensive bridge to remove, ( FACT - FDOT 7 plans to spend $35,000,000 the bridge is 
valued at $300,000,000 - so over $335,00,000 is on the table ) if it comes to that, as it did with the 
Gandy Friendship Trailbridge; and it may be even more expensive to maintain. 
However, if you’d like to discuss your ideas with the board (or any of the committees, for that matter) 
during the public comment portions of their public meetings, you are always welcome. 
From: neil.cosentino@icloud.com <neil.cosentino@icloud.com> 
Sent: Thursday, May 12, 2022 3:25 PM 
To: Beth Alden <aldenb@plancom.org> 

http://pedestriansmatter.org/


 

 pg. 19 TPO Board Meeting and Public Hearing, June 8, 2022 

Subject: Re: Repurposing the Northbound I-275 Howard Frankland Bridge to include Green Mobility 
Thanks Beth 
Thanks for sharing —Congratulations! you have come a GOOD long way since the Downtown 
Partnership… 
A very simple action plan would be for both counties to lease the bridge from FDOT 7 for a $1 year/50 
years; 
Then as the LEASORS to sublease it to a NFP power cooperative for $1/year 50 years to build and 
operate the Bridge solar array, sell the clean Kilowatts, maintain the bridge and manage the Trail as a 
GREEN tourism venue and operate a MID METRO GREEN electric charging location. 
Repurposing the bridge is “ A GOOD THING “ for Tampa Bay’s GREEN MOBILITY … 
What GREEN MOBILITY elements are identified as such and in your plans ? 
Thanks 
Neil 
 
From: Connor MacDonald 
To: Mauricio Rosas 
Cc: Brown, Amanda; Johnny Wong; Beth Alden; marlowj@hillsboroughcounty.org; 
guido.maniscalco@tampagov.net; Lisa Edwards; myersg@hillsboroughcounty.org; 
westw@hillsboroughcounty.org; 
Overman, Kimberly; Michelle Cookson; Rick Fernandez; lynn.hurtak@tampagov.net 
Subject: RE: Follow up of Segment D & E - Re: Green Artery 
Date: Monday, May 16, 2022 9:25:56 AM 
Good Morning Mr. Rosas, 
I sincerely apologize for the breakdown in coordination with our partners. We meet with jurisdictions 
and agencies several times each year to collaboratively review all tables and receive project updates. We 
have added additional rounds of review this year to catch things like this but will continue to seek ways 
of improving the process. 
We agree that those segments add value to the countywide bike/trail network, so we have prioritized 
them through the TIP process. Now that they seek funding again, we will coordinate with our partners to 
identify grant sources to move them forward. 
Regarding the Ola Ave project, according to the information provided to us by FDOT, yes- Ola Ave 
multimodal improvements are under design and scheduled for construction in FY23. 
Thank you, 
Connor MacDonald, Transportation Planning Organization, Planner I, He/him/his , 813.946.5334 (o) 
planhillsborough.org 
 
From: Mauricio Rosas <mrosas1001@mac.com> 
Sent: Saturday, May 14, 2022 2:33 PM 
To: Connor MacDonald <macdonaldc@plancom.org> 
Cc: Brown, Amanda <BrownAK@hillsboroughcounty.org>; Johnny Wong <wongj@plancom.org>; Beth 
Alden <aldenb@plancom.org>; marlowj@hillsboroughcounty.org; guido.maniscalco@tampagov.net; 
Lisa Edwards <lisa.edwards@tampagov.net>; myersg@hillsboroughcounty.org;  
westw@hillsboroughcounty.org; Overman, Kimberly <overmank@hillsboroughcounty.org>; Michelle 
Cookson <uppitygal@mac.com>; Rick Fernandez <rick@fernandezconsulting.net>; 
lynn.hurtak@tampagov.net 
Subject: Follow up of Segment D & E - Re: Green Artery 
Hello Mr. Connor, 

mailto:myersg@hillsboroughcounty.org


 

 pg. 20 TPO Board Meeting and Public Hearing, June 8, 2022 

Thank you for the follow-up. You see this as an error, and I see it as a setback, the question now is, how 
many more items are incorrectly labeled as funded but are not? 
These two projects are shovel-ready. They’re both projects that will mitigate the safety component of 
crossing Nebraska Ave and cycling along an 8ft wide sidewalk on Florida Ave. Segment E. It also aligns 
with the proposed dates of construction of the funded Ola Avenue bike blvd. So, the other concern is 
the Ola Ave Blvd is it really funded and is construction still on schedule for 2023? 
How can we make these two projects jump back to the funded priority list? 
Thank you, 
Mauricio Rosas, mrosas1001@mac.com, 118 West Mohawk Avenue, 813.727.6680 
 
From: Morris, Andrew 
To: Beth Alden 
Subject: RE: [e] MPOAC Freight and Rail Committee Passenger Rail Workshop April, 27, 2022 
Date: Tuesday, May 17, 2022 11:18:09 AM 
Congressman Bill Young Testimony and Other Documents 1983.pdf 
Beth Alden, 
Thank you for the update. I saw that the FRA released the Notice of Establishment of the Corridor 
Identification and Development Program. I included a link to it below. I will try to go to The TMA 
Leadership Group meeting in September since it will be in Pinellas County. It is exciting to see the FRA 
establish a program to help develop and expand intercity passenger rail service in the US. I did look up 
some background information related to how Pinellas County lost Amtrak passenger rail service in 1984. 
I am including a PDF copy of Representative Bill Young’s testimony in support of keeping Amtrak 
passenger rail service in Pinellas County and various documents from local entities that were in support 
of keeping Amtrak passenger rail service in Pinellas County. It is unfortunate that instead of improving 
the infrastructure to reduce travel times and expanding the State-Supported Silver Palm to Clearwater 
and St. Petersburg, we lost Amtrak passenger rail service instead. The CSX Clearwater Subdivision might 
not be the most direct alignment between Tampa, Clearwater, and St. Petersburg, but a one seat ride 
from Clearwater and St. Petersburg to other cities in Florida would still be competitive. Especially 
compared to multiple transfers and sitting in traffic on the Howard Frankland Bridge, Gandy Bridge, or 
Courtney Campbell Causeway. Also implementing Regional Rail in the Tampa Bay Metro Area would be 
significantly easier if the infrastructure was already improved to support Amtrak service. I look forward 
to hearing more news soon. 
Establishment of the Corridor Identification and Development Program 
https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2022/05/13/2022-10250/establishment-of-the-corridor-
identification-anddevelopment- 
program 
Best Regards, Andrew Morris, Planner/GIS Technician, 300 Municipal Drive, Madeira Beach, FL 33708 
O: 727-391-9951 Ext. 296, Email: amorris@madeirabeachfl.gov 
 
From: Beth Alden 
To: Jose Menendez 
Cc: Gena Torres; Wade Reynolds 
Subject: RE: Hillsborough County on pace for record bicyclist fatalities 
Date: Wednesday, May 18, 2022 1:42:00 PM 
Jose, thank you for the update. We are continuing to provide an annual review of our crash trends to the 
TPO Board and Committees every February, and this year recommended a couple of policy actions – 
including formally requesting the BOCC set aside funds in the new referendum specifically for safety 
improvements, which the BOCC did do. Vision Zero projects continue to be at the top of the TPO’s 

mailto:mrosas1001@mac.com


 

 pg. 21 TPO Board Meeting and Public Hearing, June 8, 2022 

priority list for the limited federal grant dollars that come to our area under the TPO’s purview, and the 
majority of our funds are programmed for crash reduction. I am sorry to see the numbers going in the 
direction they are going. Please stay safe. All the best to you- Beth 
From: Jose Menendez <linksmaster@netzero.net> 
Sent: Tuesday, May 17, 2022 4:06 PM 
To: Karen Kress <kkress@tampasdowntown.com>; Julie Bond <bond@cutr.usf.edu>; James Shirk 
<shirkje@gmail.com>; Beth Alden <aldenb@plancom.org>; Wade Reynolds <reynoldsw@plancom.org>; 
Gena Torres <torresg@plancom.org>; Ping Hsu <Ping.Hsu@dot.state.fl.us>; Craig Fox 
<Craig.Fox@dot.state.fl.us>; Stephen Benson <Stephen.Benson@tampagov.net>; 
danni.jorgenson@tampagov.net; Jackie Toledo <jackievtoledo@gmail.com>; Patricia Kemp 
<patriciakemp.law@gmail.com>; Christine Acosta <3301christineacosta@gmail.com>; J. Steele 
Olmstead <jsteele@jsteelelaw.com>; John Marsh <John.Marsh@tampagov.net>; Calvin Thornton 
<Calvin.Thornton@tampagov.net>; William Porth <William.Porth@tampagov.net>; Mike Flick 
<FlickM@hillsboroughcounty.org>; Bob Campbell <campbellr@hillsboroughcounty.org>; William Roll 
<williamroll@mac.com>; Demian Miller <dmiller@tindaleoliver.com>; Gary Tait 
<GTait@tindaleoliver.com>; George Edmiston <GEdmiston@tindaleoliver.com>; Jessica Brenner 
<jeccabrerr@gmail.com> 
Subject: Hillsborough County on pace for record bicyclist fatalities 
Hi everyone, 
I hope all of you and your families have been staying safe and healthy. 
Here's some grim news: According to the latest statistics from FLHSMV's Crash Dashboard, 8 bicyclists 
have been killed in Hillsborough County traffic crashes between 1/1/2022 and 5/6/2022. 
https://www.flhsmv.gov/traffic-crash-reports/crash-dashboard/ 
If the county were to maintain that bloody pace for the rest of the year, about 23 bicyclists would end 
up getting killed on our roads, smashing the old record of 17 set just last year. 
(Sometime after I emailed all of you on Jan. 31 with preliminary statistics for 2021, showing that 16 
bicyclists and 68 pedestrians had been killed in Hillsborough County last year, FLHSMV updated the 
stats to 17 bicyclists and 69 pedestrians killed.) 
For the same period this year, the Crash Dashboard shows 21 pedestrian fatalities for the county. At 
that pace, about 60 pedestrians would end up getting killed this year. 
So Hillsborough County seems to be headed for yet another horribly deadly year for its vulnerable 
road users. 
Jose Menendez, (813) 327-0709, P.S. For Pinellas County, the Crash Dashboard shows 3 bicyclists and 13 
pedestrians killed between 1/1/2022 and 5/6/2022. The updated numbers for last year are 17 bicyclists 
and 61 pedestrians killed. 
 
From: neil.cosentino@icloud.com 
To: Tampa Downtown Partnership; Beth Alden 
Subject: FEI Tampa is the " Aerial CrossRoad " for the NASA RAM Program. RE: Rpeort.pdf RE: 2021-04-
20-RAM.pdf 
Date: Friday, May 20, 2022 2:15:32 PM 
Attachments: PastedGraphic-3.tiff 
50e04916-4a03-442f-bbe9-a8951e9f1093.png 
FEI 
Florida is the optimum location-site to R&D and Test the NASA RAM Program and Tampa is the 
Aerial CrossRoads 
FMI, Neil Cosentino USAF Retired, Camelot Florida <> FASTA Florida, PM <> Florida RAM, 813-784-4669 
 



 

 pg. 22 TPO Board Meeting and Public Hearing, June 8, 2022 

Candace Savitz  
3812 N Arlington Ave, Tampa Heights 33603  
813-696-8836  
CAC MEETING - 6/1/2022  
My name is Candace Lane Savitz. I am a homeowner in Tampa Heights for 17 years now.  
I am again calling about the 275 Expansion project. This project is toxic and is hurting the residents of 
Tampa Heights and Seminole Heights.  
I collected over 50 top soil samples in May, marking each one on a map and securing them. I am 
following chain of custody procedures.  
Previously I worked at the Harbor Islands construction site in Hollywood Florida, where we built the 
infrastructure - utility backbone, all roads, a bridge into the project, also a marina. On a regular basis, 
soil samples were taken at this project. I know what I am doing.  
I took a large sample of wet dust off a barricade at the Lake / 275 underpass, and took it to an 
established environmental lab for analysis. The results show levels of nitrates, sulfates, poisonous silica 
and LEAD. This is what the people in these neighborhood are breathing as a result of this project.  
And it only makes sense that these are the results. The edge of these 50 year old overpasses were 
pulverized using jackhammers and the toxic concrete dust flew into the air from 20 feet above. There 
was NO DUST MITIGATION, no water trucks, no dust barriers. I saw it personally. And since then, I have 
taken soil samples and photographs of all the underpasses where toxic concrete dust was created.  
In particular, I'd like to point out that the residents of Robles Park village rely on window units for air 
conditioning. This toxic dust most likely has blown into the outside vent and filter of these units causing 
health hazards for this impoverished community. Does anyone care? Well, I DO.  
I am reminded of the serious consequences that occurred at the Gopher Resources lead plant here in 
Tampa. Toxic dust harmed many people. There is now a class action lawsuit as a result.  
On a personal note, I am also very sick as a result of living nearby and driving under the overpass at Lake 
Ave. This is a path that I always take when returning from Winn Dixie at MLK. Just last week, I was 
diagnosed with serious ear infections in both ears, plus nasal congestion and laryngitis. I also will be 
taking a blood test to see what toxins are in my bloodstream. If this dust can make me sick from driving 
by 2 or 3 times per week, think about the people who LIVE nearby, who walk their dogs, let their 
children play outside.  
Tampa is a beautiful city with historic neighborhoods and great job opportunities. Why are we doing this 
to our community?  
PLEASE, I implore anyone on this committee to care more about the people and less about the cars. This 
project is AWFUL AND IT IS HURTING US.  
I am submitting this written transcript to committee via email. Thank You. 
 
From: Jim Jennings 
To: Cheryl Wilkening 
Subject: TPO Public Hearing on 6/8/2022 
Date: Tuesday, May 31, 2022 6:11:15 PM 
South Hillsborough County has a population of 240,000+ residents. 
The South County ferry project (Table 2, Line 74) makes no sense. I have no problem with the 
procurement of an actual ferry boat which is the $5 million on this line item; my challenge is with the 
overall project and planned service area. It is going to be serving a very small portion of the citizens in 
the area while, potentially, impacting other transit riders currently using the existing HART system that 
runs to East and South County. Real transit alternatives do not exclude the majority of residents in an 
area in favor of serving a few. 



 

 pg. 23 TPO Board Meeting and Public Hearing, June 8, 2022 

The ferry from the Mosaic terminal in the Apollo Beach area to MacDill AFB is a commuter ferry for 
military personnel and civilians working at MacDill only. The schedule of the ferry will be every 15 
minutes during peak service hours Monday – Friday, starting at 5:30A to 8:30A in the morning and from 
3:00P to 6:00P in the afternoon/evening. The estimated travel time is 15 minutes between terminals. 
Between peak times, it will run hourly and may be able to take people from South County to Downtown 
Tampa. However, the daytime service is intended for MacDill. It is proposed to run an intercity service 
on weeknights and weekends with more runs during high-demand events. There is no mention of where 
non-MacDill travel will originate from in South County and it may run to the Downtown Tampa area 
where the Cross-Bay Ferry from St. Pete serves. For the MacDill commuters, HART is going to adjust the 
current service to shift to the Mosaic commuter terminal instead of going to MacDill. This project is 
estimated to cost $54 million dollars with operating costs on top of that. At this time, the Federal 
Government pays the cost of HART passes for military personnel and subsidizes civilians going to 
MacDill. It is likely that the same will happen for the commuter ridership of the ferry. That means GSA 
pricing will be in effect. 
Commissioner Kemp has noted that there are many other routes that can be done… when and for who? 
She has said that this was identified as the most viable route over a decade ago. How has South County 
changed in the last 10 years? This ferry route is based on 11-year-old information with updated data 
from MacDill employees only. It is beneficial to one group of the population in South County for a 
commute alternative. And for those trying to use it that are not covered under the MacDill 
pricing/subsidy in non-peak hours, it may be available, but it is going to be pricy based on the round-trip 
rates for the Cross-Bay ferry from St. Pete. $54 million of taxpayer money is going to bring a solution 
based on the threat of a military base being closed in the mass base shut-downs 10 – 15 years ago and 
for a small number of people who reside in the area. How does this pass the litmus test of equity? How 
is this a real transit solution of any kind? During peak times the service will be for MacDill only leaving 
the other residents to drive or try and figure out a way to get places via HART after they modify their 
routes to serve the MacDill commuters. Which HART routes are going to be impacted? 
Currently, there is one bus route that serves South County, it’s HART Route 31. This route runs every 30 
minutes from the South County Amazon Warehouse to the Brandon Town Center via US Highway 41, 
Gibsonton, US 301, and Providence Road. It runs on weekdays only from 5:30A to 8:30P. There is no 
weekend service. In South County, there is no park and ride facilities and most of the stops are a sign 
along the road with a grown-over sidewalk and no cover; not to mention the dangerous crossing of US 
41. There is HART Route 24LX from FishHawk to South Tampa. It is a limited express service that runs on 
weekdays only. In the morning, it goes from FishHawk, along Boyette, and the last pick-up is at US 301. 
From there, it goes to I-75 to the Selmon, to Kennedy where it drops off at Kennedy and Pierce then 
goes on to the Hospital/Clinic, Zemke, and the Hillsborough Loop. In the afternoon, it does the reverse 
with the last Downtown stop being Jackson and Pierce. The morning route picks up every 35 minutes 
from 5:10A to 6:20A (three pick-ups). In the afternoon, it runs from 3:15P to 4:00P. People in South 
County will still need to drive to get to a bus stop on this line. The average drive is 2 - 6 miles. If 
someone wants to try and use Route 31 and 24LX during the week, they have one inbound option on 
the 31-line. This is a difficult line due to lack of parking and the rider would need to be on the 5:30A bus 
in hopes of picking up the 24LX route at US 301 for a 6:01A or 6:36A pick-up. The walk time between 
stops at Boyette and US 301 is about five minutes. If there is no delay, a rider could potentially make the 
6:01A as Route 31 drops off at approximately 5:55A. If the rider misses that run, they would have to get 
on the 6:36A or they will not be able to get Downtown. 
So, instead of spending $54 million dollars on a ferry that serves a small number of riders, how about 
investing that money in a real solution that would serve the people of South County? How about a 
limited HART express bus from South County and real park and ride facilities? Better yet, let’s get that 
regional commuter rail going or open up the South County Ferry to general commuters and travelers 



 

 pg. 24 TPO Board Meeting and Public Hearing, June 8, 2022 

into Downtown. Instead of more express lanes on I-75 for through traffic, how about a commuter rail in 
that same space? It is long past time to get the Tampa Bay region off the road and into real transit. On 
the boards at the Open House in Ruskin on March 7th, there was a sticky note for bus service from Sun 
City Center and one for commuter rail. With the new Wimauma plans going into place, wouldn’t it be 
nice to have transit options there? You have heard the saying, “Build it and they will come…”. Fuel prices 
are going up. The price of fuel-efficient (hybrid, EV) vehicles is going up and production is behind 
demand. The goal is to reduce congestion, and the area around MacDill in South Tampa has a lot of 
congestion, as does I-75, US 41, and US 301. The only way to do that is to have real options when not 
driving… i.e., transit. Start now. Instead of $54 million going into a ferry to a restricted place for a 
specific audience and a PD&E study for express lanes on I-75 for through traffic, or widening US 301 
from SR 674 to the Manatee line, use that money for real solutions. If you are going to insist on moving 
ahead on the ferry, at least make it available to other commuters with a real transit center with a 
parking deck and HART service and make sure it is affordable to an average person or build it into 
Flamingo Fares.  
I appreciate that the TPO Board has a lot on its plate. I appreciate the time and consideration. 
Thank You 
Jim Jennings Resident of Wimauma/Apollo Beach area. 
 
From: Ansh Bhatt 
To: planning@dot.state.fl.us 
Subject: Inquiry Tampa Commuter Rail 
Date: Thursday, June 2, 2022 12:40:44 PM 
Hello, 
My name is Ansh Bhatt and I live in the unincorporated community of Valrico, FL in the Tampa Area. 
With the reason surge of growth in the area, and the need of many to commute to Tampa from 
unincorporated Hillsborough County have caused extreme congestion on the arterials of I4 and SR 60 
during rush hours. There are CSX tracks that run from Plant City to Tampa which could be used for this 
system, along with the segments that go to Apollo Beach, North of Temple Terrace, and St Pete. These 
four directionals could provide a cost effective backbone to a commuter rail system in the Tampa Area, 
although they would require the cooperation of CSX, The Hillsborough Airport Authority, TBARTA, HART, 
Hillsborough County, Plant City, Temple Terrace, St. Petersburg, FDOT, and The City of Tampa. 
Depending on need this system could run solely during rush hours to ease congestion on the arterials. 
Combined with increased multimodal transit I feel this could be a next step to increasing upward 
mobility and the strength of the Tampa Bay Area. 
 
Additionally, the North Portion of the CSX Track which has a segment which passes MOSI near USF and 
goes toward Tampa Intl TPA could provide an cost effective park and ride hub, as there is existing 
parking infrastructure, retail space, and a pedestrian bridge which connects across Fowler to the USF 
campus. This could add vitality to the soon to be abandoned site. 
 
This would greatly increase convenience, mobility, and economic impact of the over 50,000 students 
attending USF, and provide cross campus mobility from USF Tampa to St. Pete. 
 
Combined with Light Rail, Pedestrian and Bike Support, Arterial/Conventional BRT, CFIs, Xpress Tampa 
Project, increased use of Roundabouts in low throughput intersections we could make Tampa and 
example of cost effective transportation and mobility when it comes to flexibility with existing 
infrastructure. 
 



 

 pg. 25 TPO Board Meeting and Public Hearing, June 8, 2022 

I understand the issues of complying with FRA and local interests, but this has to be pursued 
to ease the stress on the transport system. 
Thank you, A concerned citizen 
 

 

 



 

 pg. 26 TPO Board Meeting and Public Hearing, June 8, 2022 

 

 



 

 pg. 27 TPO Board Meeting and Public Hearing, June 8, 2022 

 

 
 
From: MAC MCWHIRTER 
To: Cheryl Wilkening 
Subject: TIP 
Date: Saturday, June 4, 2022 5:57:12 PM 
Dear Commissioners, 
Received the notice about the June 8th Public hearing, thank you very much. I would like to propose a 
traffic light improvement in Seffner. 
The northbound Parsons Ave right turn lane at MLK Blvd is often used as a through lane. 
There is one "Right Lane Must Turn Right" sign by the McDonald's entrance on Parsons Ave, but is 
missed quite often and the vehicles almost get run off into the Crosswalk Signal. 
A simple fix of replacing the Red and Green lenses with Red and Green arrows pointing right might 
correct a wayward driver before entering the intersection. 
Just a thought. 
All the Best, Mr. MAC 
 
From: howard Harris 
To: Cheryl Wilkening 
Subject: Climate change and traffic lights 



 

 pg. 28 TPO Board Meeting and Public Hearing, June 8, 2022 

Date: Sunday, June 5, 2022 1:48:57 PM 
At about 5 pm on a Monday, it took me 5 minutes to travel on Columbus Drive from MLK pass Florida 
Ave. Stop and go traffic increase energy costs and puts more carbon into the environment. Pinnellas 
County for decades has not had this problem because that county synchronized traffic lights. 
Howard Harris, 214 773 7987 
 
From: Cameron Hunt McNabb 
To: Cheryl Wilkening 
Subject: TIP Public Hearing 
Date: Monday, June 6, 2022 10:19:32 PM 
Hello. 
I'm writing as a fourth-generation Tampa native and neighborhood advocate. I echo my fellow citizens 
that road widening is a waste and should be left in the past, while safe, quality community-focused 
public and active transportation infrastructure is what we need and want for a sustainable, equitable 
future. 
 
In particular, I implore TPO and FDOT to take action to stop further interstate intrusion in Tampa 
Heights, VM Ybor, Ybor City, Old Seminole Heights, and Seminole Heights. Currently, the FDOT has 
officially published plans to widen I-275 and I-4 up to FIFTY ADDITIONAL FEET into our historic 
neighborhoods. The TPO has the power to stop this. The TPO absolutely should remove all funding for 
highway expansion from the TIP. 
 
Additionally, as a highly diverse city, I implore the TPO Board to vote in line with the letter and spirit of 
the 2020 Resolution Supporting Racial Justice, which acknowledges that: "Whereas, locally, 
neighborhood clearing was manifested in the construction of I-275 and I-4 which were used to divide 
African American communities and eliminate the Central Avenue Business District..." and that further 
highway expansion is a continuation of this discriminatory legacy. 
Best, 
Cameron 
 
From: Andy Mikulski 
To: Cheryl Wilkening 
Subject: June 8th TIP Presentation Comments- Heights Mobility Project 
Date: Monday, June 6, 2022 10:15:37 PM 
My comments about the Heights Mobility Project: 
-I'm glad to see something is being done to improve this corridor. The corridor is an embarrassment and 
reflects poorly on the community, FDOT, and the City of Tampa. In its current state, it's evident that the 
values, needs, and concerns of the adjacent residents have been ignored for a long time. The 
surrounding neighborhoods have come back to life in spite of this corridor. This is an opportunity to turn 
a liability into an asset. 
-Please include future undergrounding of overhead utilities in the budget. While the roads are ripped 
up, please put some electrical conduit in the ground. While TECO may not be ready to underground this 
segment, it will make future undergrounding much cheaper and easier if the conduit is already in the 
ground, especially at intersection crossings. It should be a negligible cost to add the conduit. 
-Please include shade trees whenever possible. Currently, the corridor has no shade and is an 
inhospitable walking environment. Ideally, there would be stretches of continuous canopy coverage. 
-We need wider sidewalks and additional pedestrian crossings. I'm still concerned about the lack of 
planned cross connections along the corridor. The design speed needs to be decreased as well. It's a 



 

 pg. 29 TPO Board Meeting and Public Hearing, June 8, 2022 

terrifying experience to cross Tampa and Florida with two young kids. Honestly, these roads are one of 
the greatest threats to the safety of my kids, and unfortunately we have to cross the roads if we want to 
walk anywhere in the neighborhood. 
Andy 

From: Peter Crosby 
To: Cheryl Wilkening 
Subject: No more lanes 
Date: Monday, June 6, 2022 10:48:04 PM 
Folks, a few thoughts: 
More mass transit, not more lanes. If you plant roads, you’ll harvest traffic. We have enough already. 
Preserve (what’s left of) our historic neighborhoods. The past is important.  
Build more housing downtown, where transit can be optimized. Hot parking lots are not a good use of 
Tampa real estate. 
Plant more trees. It’s going to get a lot hotter down here soon. 
Stop overbuilding South of Gandy, people will die when (not if) hurricanes hit. 
Thanks for listening, Peter Crosby, South Tampa 
 

From Wayne Olson, 06/07/2022 7:19 AM 

 



 

 pg. 30 TPO Board Meeting and Public Hearing, June 8, 2022 

 
 
From: Joshua Barber 
To: Davida Franklin 
Cc: Vishaka Shiva Raman; Johnny Wong; Connor MacDonald 
Subject: TIP Comment 
Date: Tuesday, June 7, 2022 9:00:24 AM 
Attachments: image001.png 
Hi all 
I received the following comment from a citizen over the phone today: 
“2200 Block of E Fern – has not been paved in 30 years. Would like to see it taken care of. One block 
north of Hannah between 22nd and 24th.” - Inge Hildreph 
Joshua Barber | AICP, Planner II, He/Him. Office: 813.576.2313, planhillsborough.org. 
 
From: Elizabeth Corwin 
To: Cheryl Wilkening 
Subject: TIP 
Date: Tuesday, June 7, 2022 12:52:43 PM 
Widening I-275 and/or I-4 in Tampa would be a crime. 
 
Please do not widen these roads through Tampa Heights, VM Ybor, Ybor City, Old Seminole Heights, and 
Seminole Heights. These neighborhoods are historic. FDOT has already done a lot to damage them. 
Please don't add to this. 
 
The original construction of these roads divided Black communities, eliminated the Central Avenue 
Business District, and chopped up other neighborhoods. These roads have contributed to air and noise 
pollution and to unhealthy populations. 
 



 

 pg. 31 TPO Board Meeting and Public Hearing, June 8, 2022 

The original construction and plans for expansion have left these neighborhoods in limbo, with declining 
property values and disincentives to maintain the housing stock. and that further highway expansion is a 
continuation of this discriminatory legacy. 
 
It's time for this torture to end. Please decide once and for all to cancel the expansion of these 
highways. 
 
Please also find some way to make up to the homeowners along these corridors for the decay over 
these decades. 
 
Transportation funding should be spent on public transit, sidewalks, and bike paths. 
Sincerely, 
Elizabeth Corwin, Tampa 
 
From: Cynthia Peters 
To: Cheryl Wilkening 
Subject: 6/8/2022 5:30 meeting - Stop Widening Highways 
Date: Tuesday, June 7, 2022 2:06:18 PM 
Hello, 
I cannot attend tomorrow's meeting but please accept this as my comment: 
Please remove all funding in the TIP for the DTI and fund bike lanes, sidewalk and bus infrastructure 
instead. We do not want further interstate intrusion. It is is eating into historic homes as well as causing 
further division of communities. The 2020 Resolution Supporting Racial Justice says that the 
construction of I-275 and I-4 were used to divide African American communities and eliminate the 
Central Avenue business district. We must end the continuation of this discriminatory legacy. 
Thank you, 
Cynthia Peters, HIllsborough County Resident 
 
Good Morning Johnny and Connor! Just circling back as I apologize it’s taken so long to say thank you so 
much for your presentation to our committee on the 10th. They very interested and learned quite a bit I 
think at least for the majority of them. Thank you again for presenting and look forward to the results of 
your upcoming TPO meeting on June 8!  
Good Luck with your meeting and hope you both have a wonderful Memorial Holiday weekend!  
Corine Linebrink  
Urban Planner III, Ybor Community Redevelopment Area  
City of Tampa /2015 East 7th Avenue,Tampa, Florida 33605, p: (813) 274-7960/ c: (813) 310-5003  
e. Corine.Linebrink-Wain@tampagov.net  
Visit us on the web at www.tampagov.net/CRAs & www.yborcityonline.com  
Please note: This e-mail is public record. 
 
From: Tim Keeports 
To: Cheryl Wilkening 
Cc: A Getzoff; Bill Hunter; Charles Schaub; Jack Simmons; Jeffrey Silverstein; frank.joshua1@gmail.com; 
Michael R Guinn; Smith, Shirley; Alyssa Simpson Feliho; Doug Jesseph; Doreen Jesseph; Heather Culligan; 
Maureen Obrien; Theo C. Boylan; Mauricio Rosas; Rick Fernandez; Brian Seel; Bill Truett; 
jljnavy@verizon.net; Ellie Baggett; Sharlene Hartford; Sharlene H.; cgordonla; Susan Morgan; Tim 
Keeports 



 

 pg. 32 TPO Board Meeting and Public Hearing, June 8, 2022 

Subject: Old Seminole Heights Neighborhood Association Input to the TPO Board Regarding the 
Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) 
Date: Tuesday, June 7, 2022 3:36:53 PM 
TPO Board, 
As one of the urban core neighborhoods, we would again ask for the TPO to carefully consider the 
bolded concerns regarding the TIP review occurring on the evening of 6/8. 
 
We live, play, and work directly in the middle of Tampa and continue to have our daily lives negatively 
impacted by I-275 and the endless efforts to improve this highway's "safety and throughput". We have 
long advocated for no further highway expansion -- which FDOT acknowledges yet chooses to ignore. 
And we know what induced demand actually is -- build it and they will come. This time is no different. 
 
The current capacity improvement program will add sound walls and reconstruct overpasses. We are 
justifiable worried about this process as Tampa Heights (our neighbors immediately to the south) has 
experienced wall locations that shift, work done to a poor standard (uncontained cement dust from 
grinding), confusing and shifting timelines, and the removal of FDOT-acquired historic structures -- just 
because... 
 
We would ask for significant discussion and focus to be placed on the following concerns: 
A) FDOT needs to commit to fully finishing the highway "Capacity Improvements from north 
of I-4 to north US 92 -- post lane addition and post sound wall installation -- with robust 
and appropriate landscaping to further minimize noise and pollution; and enhance 
appearance. This was to have been done the last time the highway was expanded...and then 
the money ran out. We've asked and been told, "oh, that's a follow-on contract." Will the 
money run out again this time -- in 2026? 
1) Reconstructing I-275 overpasses with fully vertical walls on Floribraska, Chelsea, 
and Osborne; similar to Hillsborough and MLK. There is no reason for the underway 
partial wall pullback and then slope, other than an informal FDOT arbitrary decision. The 
reason given is wider sidewalks provide "safety". This is a red herring as these wide 
sidewalks then connect to regular, poorly maintained, or no sidewalks extending out the 
Florida and Nebraska Ave arterial roads. Why is FDOT not improving these sidewalks as 
well? The answer given was "Those are out of scope." 
2) Support funding for Green Artery Segment D and E. The Green Artery will provide a loop 
around Tampa for walking and biking. While not a perfect solution (as some segments 
share the road), it goes a long way toward supporting Vision Zero, reducing traffic with bike 
commuters, and providing the live, play, and work mentioned above. 
3) Continue funding the Heights Mobility Study and support the arterial BRT (not on the 
highway) to encourage urban core transportation and reduce traffic. 
4) Move the Highway BRT (often called the Fake BRT) to the Veteran’s Expressway to avoid 
the potential further expansion of I-275). 
5) Support, build and further expand the Green Spine! 
6) Add a sidewalk to the Eastside of I-275 along Taliaferro Road. This future sidewalk, which 
should be funded by FDOT, would connect the Robles area of Tampa Heights to 
transportation options and expanded employment options. 
7) Support Mayor Castor’s priorities submitted to the Hillsborough County Planning 
Organization on February 18, 2022 -- except for the section addressing the DTI. 
8) Stop further intrusion of Interstate retention walls along the eastern border of Tampa 
Heights. 



 

 pg. 33 TPO Board Meeting and Public Hearing, June 8, 2022 

9) Strike the following lane movements from the DTI-Quick Fix Project (TIP Table 1): 
- Westbound I-4 to Northbound I-275 (FPN 445056-1). This movement impacts VM Ybor 
and takes Right-of-Way and several homes. 
- Westbound I-4 to Southbound I-275 (FPN 4455056-2). This movement impacts retention 
walls south of Palm Ave. to south of 7th Ave. 
- Southbound I-275 to Eastbound I-4 (FPN 445057-1). This movement impacts retention 
walls between Floribraska Ave. and Palm Ave. 
Thank you, 
Tim Keeports, President 
Old Seminole Heights Neighborhood Association 
 
From: Rick Fernandez 
To: Cheryl Wilkening; CohenH@hcflgov.net; Kimberly Overman; KempP@HCFLGov.net; "Mariella 
Smith"; 
MyersG@hcflgov.net; guido.maniscalco@tampagov.net; Lynn.Hurtak@tampagov.net; 
Joseph.Citro@tampagov.net; jessica.vaughn@hcps.net 
Cc: "Brian Seel"; lenayoung@thjca.org; "Tim Keeports"; "Mauricio Rosas"; Rick Fernandez 
Subject: Rick Fernandez _ Input to the TPO Board Regarding the Transportation Improvement Program 
(TIP) _ June 8, 
2022 Public Hearing 
Date: Tuesday, June 7, 2022 5:07:58 PM 
Members of the TPO Board: 
I enthusiastically embrace the comments of my colleague, Tim Keeports, President of the Old Seminole 
Heights Neighborhood Association. Please see his trailing message. 
 
As a resident of Tampa Heights, living in the shadow of the DTI, I place particular emphasis on the 
following requests: 
Strike the following lane movements from the DTI-Quick Fix Project (TIP Table 1): 
- Westbound I-4 to Northbound I-275 (FPN 445056-1). This movement impacts VM Ybor and takes 
Right-of-Way and several homes. 
- Westbound I-4 to Southbound I-275 (FPN 4455056-2). This movement impacts Tampa Heights 
retention walls south of Palm Ave. to south of 7th Ave. 
- Southbound I-275 to Eastbound I-4 (FPN 445057-1). This movement impacts Tampa Heights 
retention walls between Floribraska Ave. and Palm Ave. 
 
Stop further intrusion of Interstate retention walls along the eastern border of Tampa Heights 
Continue funding the Heights Mobility Study and support the arterial BRT (not on the highway) to 
encourage urban core transportation and reduce traffic. Advance the original plan to include a 
dedicated transit lane on Tampa Street and Florida Avenue. The dedicated transit lane does not 
appear in the current TIP document (Table 1). 
 
Reconstruct I-275 overpasses with fully vertical walls on Floribraska, Lake, Chelsea, and Osborne; 
similar to Hillsborough and MLK. 
Rick Fernandez 
2906 N Elmore Ave 
Tampa, FL 33602 
Chair, Transportation Committee, Tampa Heights Civic Association 
TPO, CAC, Vice Chair (Hispanic Representative – At Large) 



 

 pg. 34 TPO Board Meeting and Public Hearing, June 8, 2022 

 

 

 



 

 pg. 35 TPO Board Meeting and Public Hearing, June 8, 2022 

 

 
 
From: Chrissy Gesmundo 
To: Cheryl Wilkening 
Subject: Public comments 
Date: Tuesday, June 7, 2022 9:09:15 PM 
Hi. 
I support priority future funding in particular for Greenways/trails/ walk and bike connections as well as 
all of the safety enhancements listed as considerations. 
Thank you. 
Christina Gesmundo 
 
From: lenayoung@thjca.org 



 

 pg. 36 TPO Board Meeting and Public Hearing, June 8, 2022 

To: Cheryl Wilkening; CohenH@hcflgov.net; Kimberly Overman; KempP@HCFLGov.net; "Mariella 
Smith"; MyersG@hcflgov.net; guido.maniscalco@tampagov.net; Lynn.Hurtak@tampagov.net; 
Joseph.Citro@tampagov.net; jessica.vaughn@hcps.net; Rick Fernandez 
Cc: "Brian Seel"; "Tim Keeports"; "Mauricio Rosas" 
Subject: Re: Rick Fernandez _ Input to the TPO Board Regarding the Transportation Improvement 
Program (TIP) _ June 
8, 2022 Public Hearing 
Date: Wednesday, June 8, 2022 7:23:12 AM 
Good Afternoon TPO Board Members. Thank you for another opportunity to provide our input relating 
to the TIP that you are considering at June 8, 2022 Public Hearing. I could write to you separately but 
because my fellow residents and community leaders Rick Fernandez and Tim Keeports, so succinctly 
stated the specific areas that are of equal concern to me, please accept these positions below, from 
their already submitted comments as fully supportes by me also. Much of these highlight the 
devastating impact of FDOT's projects in Tampa Heights and others are solutions that will improve our 
neighborhood. Thank you. 
Lena Young Green 
 
From: Magalys Oro 
To: Cheryl Wilkening 
Subject: June 8 Meeting Comment 
Date: Wednesday, June 8, 2022 8:24:47 AM 
Hello, 
I would like to leave a public comment for today’s meeting: 
Tampa has been rapidly changing and developing but many problems are arising. The addition of 
highway lanes are causing massive disruptions environmentally and socially and quite honestly are not 
the best solution. The City of Tampa should focus on making itself more walkable and have incentives 
for people to use the bus. With the cost of gas rising and the climate crisis we are currently in, we need 
more than ever to switch to a different way of transporting ourselves. Many people are moving to 
Tampa and now what would be a 5-10 minute drive is now 25+ minutes of sitting in traffic. Buses are 
very crowded around 4-5pm, which means we should have more buses that come more often. Public 
transportation options that are actually appealing (meaning we don’t take 2 hours to reach our 
destination), is exactly what we need now. It would reduce traffic and help our climate and create some 
jobs. I hope you all consider this as it is something that me and my community have been wishing for 
and discussing for quite some time. Thank you! 
 
From: Nicole Perry 
To: Cheryl Wilkening 
Subject: TIP Meeting Public Comment 
Date: Wednesday, June 8, 2022 8:25:46 AM 
Hello 
My name is Nicole Perry. I live at 602 E Frances Ave, right by the downtown interchange in Tampa 
Heights. Our beloved neighborhood, Tampa's first suburb, has already borne the effects of the highway 
during its creation and continues to weather the effects every day. We are exposed to air pollution, 
sound pollution, and decreased property values for those who live closest to it. Historic properties have 
been destroyed because of it. It has been shown time and again across the world that wider highways 
will NOT improve traffic in the long run due to induced demand. Tampa needs real solutions, real mass 
transit, and to stop destroying its history and hurting its residents, such as my family. 
 



 

 pg. 37 TPO Board Meeting and Public Hearing, June 8, 2022 

I oppose further I-275 retention wall intrusions along the eastern boundary of Tampa Heights. I ask you 
to strike the line items concerning further expansion of the highway through the DTI. This area has 
suffered enough at the hands of FDOT. Residents of Tampa and even surrounding neighborhoods have 
made it clear that WE WANT REAL TRANSIT not wider highways. FDOT keeps pushing the same old 
agenda over and over and quite honestly the fight against them is exhausting. I’m a busy, working 
momma of three little ones. They know that most residents don’t have the energy to fight this, so they 
think that one more time of pushing it will win. We need YOU to help the residents of our beloved city 
and strike these motions that will only further HURT the residents with increased noise, pollution, safety 
concerns, and reduced property values. There are so many other important transit focused 
opportunities to focus on instead. 
Thank you for your time. 
Nicole Perry, 602 E Frances Ave, 678-468-5748 
 
From: Matthew Perry 
To: Cheryl Wilkening 
Date: Wednesday, June 8, 2022 8:42:31 AM 
My name is Matt Perry. I live at 602 E Frances Ave, right by the downtown interchange in Tampa 
Heights. Our beloved neighborhood, Tampa's first suburb, has already borne the effects of the highway 
during its creation and continues to weather the effects every day. We are exposed to air pollution, 
sound pollution, and decreased property values for those who live closest to it. Historic properties have 
been destroyed because of it. It has been shown time and again across the world that wider highways 
will NOT improve  
traffic in the long run due to induced demand. Tampa needs real solutions, real mass transit, and to stop 
destroying its history and hurting its residents, such as my family. 
I oppose further I-275 retention wall intrusions along the eastern boundary of Tampa Heights. I ask you 
to 
strike the line items concerning further expansion of the highway through the DTI. This area has suffered 
enough at the hands of FDOT. Residents of Tampa and even surrounding neighborhoods have made it 
clear 
that WE WANT REAL TRANSIT not wider highways. FDOT keeps pushing the same old agenda over and 
over and quite honestly the fight against them is exhausting. I’m a busy, working father of three. They 
know 
that most residents don’t have the energy to fight this, so they think that one more time of pushing it 
will 
win. We need YOU to help the residents of our beloved city and strike these motions that will only 
further 
HURT the residents with increased noise, pollution, safety concerns, and reduced property values. There 
are 
so many other important transit focused opportunities to focus on instead. 
Thank you for your time. 
Matt Perry 
404-368-2713 
 
From: Ute Duquemin 
To: Cheryl Wilkening 
Subject: Hwy Expansion 
Date: Wednesday, June 8, 2022 8:54:49 AM 



 

 pg. 38 TPO Board Meeting and Public Hearing, June 8, 2022 

I totally oppose Hwy Expansion along 275 / Downtown/ Tampa HeightsDTI. That planning committee 
should be ashamed of themselves and I don’t know how they can sleep at night, knowing full well the 
negative effect it will have on beautiful historic neighborhoods around!!! You can read my comments at 
meeting. Sincerely, Ute S Duquemin, Sent from my iPhone 
 
From: tbscdillon@aol.com 
To: NSB@groups.io; Cheryl Wilkening 
Cc: "Liz Hays"; "Robert Turner, Sr"; "Donna Marino" 
Subject: RE: [NSB] MacDill 
Date: Wednesday, June 8, 2022 9:50:00 AM 
Agree! With the dip in the road and that little narrowing or jog in the road at that same spot it is a recipe 
for trouble. I’ve always felt it unsafe to walk that portion of the sidewalk also. 
Cheryl Dillon, Sunset 
From: NSB@groups.io <NSB@groups.io> On Behalf Of stephen hays 
Sent: Wednesday, June 8, 2022 9:25 AM 
To: tpo@plancom.org 
Cc: Liz Hays <liamclare@aol.com>; Robert Turner, Sr <rturner23@tampabay.rr.com>; Donna Marino 
<donnamarinoturner@gmail.com>; 'NSB@groups.io' <NSB@groups.io> 
Subject: [NSB] MacDill 
The corner of MacDill and Neptune has been the scene of multiple accidents and losses. Each of these 
could have resulted in deaths and all of them represent the magnitude of liability that should make 
remediation more than a mere notion for the future. 
 
Additionally, on MacDill between the light at Palma Ceia and the light at Morrison you have a drag strip 
in effect with too many vehicles approaching 60 mph. 
 
That the City of Tampa has known about these issues and merely puts remediation as an idea for the 
future bespeaks a massive pending liability for both the City and prospective victims of these accidents. 
 
Any prudent planning should address potential death and proven safety issues before greenways. Sadly, 
it appears the City chooses to live dangerously. 
...sent by phone 
Stephen H. Hays, 2636 W. Prospect Rd, Tampa, FL 33629, 813-892-0966 
 
From: stephen hays 
To: Cheryl Wilkening 
Cc: Liz Hays; Robert Turner, Sr; Donna Marino; "NSB@groups.io" 
Subject: MacDill 
Date: Wednesday, June 8, 2022 9:24:52 AM 
The corner of MacDill and Neptune has been the scene of multiple accidents and losses. Each of these 
could have resulted in deaths and all of them represent the magnitude of liability that should make 
remediation more than a mere notion for the future. 
 
Additionally, on MacDill between the light at Palma Ceia and the light at Morrison you have a drag strip 
in effect with too many vehicles approaching 60 mph. 
 
That the City of Tampa has known about these issues and merely puts remediation as an idea for the 
future bespeaks a massive pending liability for both the City and prospective victims of these accidents. 



 

 pg. 39 TPO Board Meeting and Public Hearing, June 8, 2022 

 
Any prudent planning should address potential death and proven safety issues before greenways. Sadly, 
it appears the City chooses to live dangerously. 
...sent by phone 
Stephen H. Hays, 2636 W. Prospect Rd, Tampa, FL 33629, 813-892-0966 
 
From: Christopher Martinez 
To: Cheryl Wilkening 
Subject: Tampa Heights Transportation Needs 
Date: Wednesday, June 8, 2022 9:58:04 AM 
Tampa Heights residents are working very hard to restore the neighborhood to its former pre-275 glory 
as much as possible. The number one impediment and threat to the historic nature of the neighborhood 
and its future growth and strengthening is the freeway. We should be moving to lessen the impact of 
275 and move to smarter, more sustainable transportation options - walking, biking, clean and safe and 
truly useful public transport. Please consider the following items, thank you. 
Take all possible action to stop the further intrusion of Interstate walls along the eastern border of 
Tampa Heights. This was recommended by the Citizens Advisory Committee in January 2022. 
 
Strike the following lane movements from the DTI-Quick Fix Project (TIP Table 1) -Westbound I-4 to 
Northbound I-275 (FPN 445056-1). This movement impacts VM Ybor and results in the taking of 
additional Right-of-Way and several homes -Westbound I-4 to Southbound I-275 (FPN 4455056-2). 
(Strike recommended by the TPO CAC in March 2022). This movement impacts retention walls south of 
Palm Ave. to south of 7th Ave. -Southbound I-275 to Eastbound I-4 (FPN 445057-1). (Strike 
recommended by the TPO CAC in March 2022). This movement impacts retention walls between 
Floribraska Ave. and Palm Ave. Advance the Heights Mobility Project with dedicated transit lanes on 
Florida Ave. and Tampa St. Fund trails and sidewalks, including the Green ARTery. 
 
From: Cindy Davis 
To: Cheryl Wilkening 
Subject: Hybrid Public Hearing June 8th 
Date: Wednesday, June 8, 2022 11:09:55 AM 
Hello! 
We received the notice for the public hearing that is occurring today. 
 
We wanted to give you some information that would help determine what kind of plan should occur for 
the safety enhancements for the George Rd area. 
 
We own Paws Paradise Fur Life located at 4408 George Rd. Since we have been here we have assisted in 
multiple MVA's, including a UPS truck that landed on its side and slid across the road, and just recently 
witnessed a pedestrian get hit by a car right in front of our office. 
 
The intersection at George Rd and Memorial is extremely dangerous and something needs to be done. 
 
The sidewalk in front of our building has become a parking space for cars that don't feel like parking in 
the 7-11 parking lot and we are afraid another pedestrian will be hit again. Something needs to be done 
to make the street overall safer for everyone. 
 



 

 pg. 40 TPO Board Meeting and Public Hearing, June 8, 2022 

We would be happy to talk with you about what has happened over the past 2 years to give you a better 
picture. 
 
Thank you and I look forward to attending the hearing tonight. 
Cindy Davis-Grout & Chessica Mace, Owners/Operators, Paws Paradise FL, LLC., 813-533-2733 
www.pawsparadisefl.com / pawsparadisefl@gmail.com 
 
From: turnzilla@gmail.com 
To: Cheryl Wilkening 
Subject: Support the Transportation Improvement Program 
Date: Wednesday, June 8, 2022 12:51:48 PM 
Dear County Transportation Board, 
I strongly urge you to support and fund the Transportation Improvement Program. We need this to 
enhance the walkeable and livable nature of our neighborhoods here in Tampa, and ensure everyone 
gets access to the growth and opportunities that will come with our growing city. In particular, I strongly 
support: 
Advance the Heights Mobility Project with dedicated transit lanes on Florida Ave. and Tampa St. 
Fund trails and sidewalks, including the Green ARTery. 
Thank you for your service, 
Brian Turnbull, 410 W Frances Ave 
 
From: Katrina Duquemin 
To: Cheryl Wilkening 
Subject: Re: Don"t want expansion! 
Date: Wednesday, June 8, 2022 12:56:05 PM 
To whom it concerns! 
STOP widening the highway! IT DOESN"T WORK AND YOU ARE WASTING RESOURCES! 
Thank you, 
Katrina Duquemin 
 
From: Kali Rabaut 
To: Cheryl Wilkening 
Subject: TIP comment 
Date: Wednesday, June 8, 2022 1:45:59 PM 
Dear TPO Board, 
Thank you for all your hard work to improve our county. There are two projects I care about 
very much for the Tampa Heights neighborhood: 
1. Advance the Heights Mobility Project with dedicated transit lanes on Florida Ave. and Tampa St. 
2. Fund trails and sidewalks, especially the Green ARTery. 
Thank you, 
Kali Rabaut, Tampa Heights resident 
 
From: Lauren Adriaansen 
To: Cheryl Wilkening 
Subject: Comment for TIP meeting on 6/8 
Date: Wednesday, June 8, 2022 3:06:08 PM 
Hello, 
I have an unexpected issue that makes me unable to attend tonight's TIP Public Hearing, so I 

http://www.pawsparadisefl.com/


 

 pg. 41 TPO Board Meeting and Public Hearing, June 8, 2022 

am emailing instead. 
I urge the TPO to reject any plans to widen I-275 or I-4 further. 
Per your own Racial Justice resolution, "we support ending racial discrimination in transportation 
planning, which includes ensuring more robust access to all modes of transportation with a more 
intentional focus on the needs of African American and other historically disenfranchised communities 
in Hillsborough County". Widening the scar that is I-275 does nothing to alleviate the damages of the 
past and will only continue to worsen them, paving over homes and increasing pollution, traffic 
accidents, and general congestion in historically Black & Latin neighborhoods. 
 
Our priorities must be human-scale design & public transportation solutions, making sure citizens can 
get to places in Tampa, not just across it. FDOT had failed to keep the people of Florida and especially of 
Tampa in mind with their current plans & the TIP should be a course correction for our county. 
Thank you and God bless 
Lauren Adriaansen, Zip: 33603 
 
From: nayayoung thjca.org 
To: Cheryl Wilkening; CohenH@hcflgov.net; Kimberly Overman; KempP@HCFLGov.net; "Mariella 
Smith"; 
MyersG@hcflgov.net; guido.maniscalco@tampagov.net; Lynn.Hurtak@tampagov.net; 
Joseph.Citro@tampagov.net; jessica.vaughn@hcps.net; Rick Fernandez 
Subject: TPO Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) Public Hearing 6/8/22 
Date: Wednesday, June 8, 2022 3:18:21 PM 
I am requesting that the TPO: 
1. Take all possible action to stop the further intrusion of Interstate walls along the eastern 
border of Tampa Heights. This was recommended by the Citizens Advisory Committee in 
January 2022. 
2. Strike the following lane movements from the DTI-Quick Fix Project (TIP Table 1) Westbound I-4 to 
Northbound I-275 (FPN 445056-1). This movement impacts VM Ybor and results in the taking of 
additional Right-of-Way and several homes Westbound I-4 to Southbound I-275 (FPN 4455056-2). 
(Strike recommended by the TPO CAC in March 2022). This movement impacts retention walls south of 
Palm Ave. to south of 7th Ave. Southbound I-275 to Eastbound I-4 (FPN 445057-1). (Strike 
recommended by the TPO CAC in March 2022). This movement impacts retention walls between 
Floribraska Ave. and Palm Ave. 
3. Advance the Heights Mobility Project with dedicated transit lanes on Florida Ave. and Tampa St. 
4. Fund trails and sidewalks, including the Green ARTery. 
Naya Young, Tampa Heights Resident 
Naya Young, Executive Director, Tampa Heights Junior Civic Association, 813-419-3688, www.thjca.org 
 
From: Jessica Charles 
To: Cheryl Wilkening; CohenH@hcflgov.net; Kimberly Overman; KempP@hcflgov.net; Mariella Smith; 
MyersG@hcflgov.net; guido.maniscalco@tampagov.net; Lynn.Hurtak@tampagov.net; 
Joseph.Citro@tampagov.net; jessica.vaughn@hcps.net; Rick Fernandez 
Subject: TPO Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) Public Hearing 6/8/22 
Date: Wednesday, June 8, 2022 3:28:18 PM 
I am requesting that the TPO: 
1. Take all possible action to stop the further intrusion of Interstate walls along the eastern 
border of Tampa Heights. This was recommended by the Citizens Advisory Committee in 
January 2022. 

http://www.thjca.org/


 

 pg. 42 TPO Board Meeting and Public Hearing, June 8, 2022 

2. Strike the following lane movements from the DTI-Quick Fix Project (TIP Table 1) Westbound I-4 to 
Northbound I-275 (FPN 445056-1). This movement impacts VM Ybor and results in the taking of 
additional Right-of-Way and several homes Westbound I-4 to Southbound I-275 (FPN 4455056-2). 
(Strike recommended by the TPO CAC in March 2022). This movement impacts retention walls south of 
Palm Ave. to south of 7th Ave. Southbound I-275 to Eastbound I-4 (FPN 445057-1). (Strike 
recommended by the TPO CAC in March 2022). This movement impacts retention walls between 
Floribraska Ave. and Palm Ave. 
3. Advance the Heights Mobility Project with dedicated transit lanes on Florida Ave. and 
Tampa St. 
4. Fund trails and sidewalks, including the Green ARTery. 
Jessica Charles, a friend of Tampa Heights residents 

 
From: Kitty Wallace 
To: Cheryl Wilkening; CohenH@hcflgov.net; KempP@HCFLGov.net; MyersG@hcflgov.net; 
guido.maniscalco@tampagov.net; Lynn.Hurtak@tampagov.net; 
joseph.citro@tampagov.net; jessica.vaughn@hcps.net; Rick Fernandez; overmank@hcflgov.net; 
smithma@hcflgov.net 
Cc: lenayoung211@yahoo.com 
Subject: Fwd: TPO Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) Public Hearing 6/8/22 
Date: Wednesday, June 8, 2022 3:52:11 PM 
Message: 
I am requesting that the TPO: 
1. Take all possible action to stop the further intrusion of Interstate walls along the eastern border of 
Tampa Heights. This was recommended by the Citizens Advisory Committee in January 2022. 
2. Strike the following lane movements from the DTI-Quick Fix Project (TIP Table 1) 
Westbound I-4 to Northbound I-275 (FPN 445056-1). This movement impacts VM Ybor and results in the 
taking of additional Right-of-Way and several homes Westbound I-4 to Southbound I-275 (FPN 4455056-
2). (Strike recommended by the TPO CAC in March 2022). This movement impacts retention walls south 
of Palm Ave. to south of 7th Ave. Southbound I-275 to Eastbound I-4 (FPN 445057-1). (Strike 
recommended by the TPO CAC in March 2022). This movement impacts retention walls between 
Floribraska Ave. and Palm Ave. 
3. Advance the Heights Mobility Project with dedicated transit lanes on Florida Ave. and Tampa St. 
4. Fund trails and sidewalks, including the Green ARTery. 
 
Kitty Wallace, Tampa Heights Community Garden Coordinator 

From: Zulema Ramos 
To: Cheryl Wilkening 
Subject: Public Transit in Hillsborough County 
Date: Wednesday, June 8, 2022 3:56:57 PM 
Dear Hillsborough TPO Board members and staff, thank you for facilitating today's meeting. 
 
The state of transit is dire for many riders in this city. It can mean the difference between 
making it to a hospital, and dying on the street. While volunteering with many different 
organizations I have witnessed a dead man lying in a bush because he couldn't afford the debt 
that comes with calling 911, and there wasn't a bus available to get to help. 
 



 

 pg. 43 TPO Board Meeting and Public Hearing, June 8, 2022 

As a college student at the university of Tampa, I remember the days when I was stuck alone 
in the city because a class or work schedule made me late for the last bus, headed for my old 
home in Lutz. Many jobs require work long past midnight. 
 
Human trafficking victims would also have a much better chance of getting away from their 
captors. Transportation is a right, that when honored, can help the lives and futures of the 
people you are supposed to work for. 
 
In addition, gas prices are higher than they have ever been in my lifetime while the pay at 
many establishments is staying the same. Families are having to choose what costs to cut. This 
effects their ability to pay for the also increasing costs of child care, food, housing, and other 
human rights. "For every ten million dollars of transit investment made, business sales 
increase by thirty million dollars."(1) 
 
If public transit were free, we would see less accidents and deaths, "which include the loss of 
30,000 people and the maiming of many more every year in road crashes."(1) 
 
If you all changed the way we traveled in this county there would be less air pollution, and 
less criminalized acts of survival (2). "Currently in America, public transit use results in a 
reduction of 450,000,000 gallons of gas being burned..." "A study done by the city of 
Copenhagen linked a healthier lifestyle with a lower mortality rate, a happier disposition, and 
more productivity at work."(1) If public transit were solar powered imagine how much better 
our kids would be able to breathe. 
 
Taxes wouldn't even have to increase. We could easily use the bloated police and sherriff's 
budget to transport hardworking folks all over this county, and state (2). We need 
transportation not tazers. As Hillsborough TPO Board members and staff, ask the Mayor of 
Tampa, the Tampa City Council, and the Hillsborough County Commission, to defund the 
police and refund the community. Have a wonderful rest of the week. 
1. https://www.smartcitiesdive.com/ex/sustainablecitiescollective/top-10-benefits-
publictransportation/1063096/ 
2. https://www.brennancenter.org/our-work/analysis-opinion/community-organizations-
haveimportant-role-lowering-crime-rates 
Sincerely, 
Zulema Ramos 33614 
B.A. Philosophy & History 



 
 

Committee Reports 
 

Meeting of the Livable Roadways Committee (LRC) on June 22 
The LRC approved the following action items: 
 Public Participation Plan Amendments 2022 
 Comments on ETDM Project #14503 Suncoast Parkway Widening - The LRC moved to 

transmit the following comments: 
o Rec 1: Include any “widening” be replaced with “capacity increase” and include 

prioritizing alternatives such as rail and rapid transit. 
o Rec 5: Include additional, long-term environmental impacts due to the “capacity 

increase” be evaluated.  
o Rec 7: Add language to include all airborne contaminates, following all health 

and safety protocols. 
o Add language that the additional capacity must be compatible with the 

Hillsborough County LRTP and community needs. 
The LRC heard status reports on: 

• HART Budget for FY23 

• Hillsborough County Corridor Preservation Best Practices Report 

• Tampa Vision Zero Implementation Through Maintenance 
 

Meetings of the Bicycle Pedestrian Advisory Committee (BPAC) on June 22 and July 27 
The BPAC approved the following action item: 
 Public Participation Plan Amendments 2022 

The BPAC heard the following status reports: 

• Hillsborough County Corridor Preservation Best Practices Report 

• Tampa Vision Zero Implementation Through Maintenance 
The BPAC met with the Tri-County BPAC and discussed the Upper Tampa Bay Trail Gap at a 
workshop on July 27, 2022.  Members asked about the timing of the current study; public 
outreach is expected in fall 2022.   Members also discussed the future of the nonmotorized 
count program and the proposed US Bike Route 15 through Pasco and Hillsborough Counties. 
 
   



 

Meeting of the Transportation Disadvantaged Coordinating Board (TDCB) of June 24 
The TDCB approved the following action items: 
 Public Participation Plan Amendments 2022 
 TDCB Grievance Procedures 
 TDCB Annual Bylaws Review – The TDCB requested an amendment to change the 

quorum requirements from five (5) persons to a majority of the sitting board.  
The TDCB heard status reports on: 

• Sunshine Line Update 

• TBARTA Regional Rapid Transit Development Concept of Operations 

• HART Transit Development Plan 
 

Meetings of the Citizens Advisory Committee (CAC) of July 13 and August 3 
The CAC voted to forego its July recess and hold an optional meeting to clear the backlog of status 
reports deferred from previous meetings. The committee heard status reports on July 13: 

• County Corridor Preservation Best Practices Report – The CAC appreciated learning 
from peer metros to better assess effectiveness. 

• Tampa Vision Zero Implementation Through Maintenance – Members were excited to 
learn more about the City’s public-private partnerships as a means of reducing the cost 
burden of much needed improvements, and requested more information about how the 
CAC can help deliver safety funds. 

• CAC Organizational Survey. The committee was presented with several proposals to 
address the representational deficiencies of membership, namely geographic and 
demographic, for consideration and future discussion. Some ways to address the 
deficiencies include expanding membership from 21 seats to potentially 60 or more; 
creating more seats reserved for underrepresented geographic areas and demographic 
groups; and moving the committee start time to the evening to be more accessible.  

The CAC approved the following action item on August 3: 

 Public Participation Plan (PPP) Amendments - The CAC recommended that the TPO 
update the list of print media outlets in the PPP; requested to add information about 
when projects cannot be unilaterally rescheduled or removed from the Transportation 
Improvement Plan (TIP), per the Florida State Statutes; commended the TPO for 
improving its public engagement strategies; and suggested additional strategies which 
the TPO staff agreed to utilize, such as increased outreach to persons with disabilities 
and community groups, rebranding the TIP and providing more public education about it, 
and redesigning roadside signs to make them simpler to read.  

The CAC also heard a presentation on the Freight Supply Chain Resilience Study, and did not 
approve the report after suggesting the report should consider the Vision Zero mission. Several 
committee members cautioned that the TPO should not create a Freight Advisory Committee, 
as this could duplicate efforts occurring at both the regional and state level. 

The CAC heard status reports on August 3: 



 

• HART FY2023 Budget - Concern was expressed that the American Rescue Plan (ARP) 
funding constitutes a large share of HART’s funding and committee members wonder 
what may happen when that funding expires. The committee requested that HART staff 
return at a later date and provide information about why some line items in the agency’s 
budget have increased and how the agency would invest surtax funds if the 
Transportation Sales Surtax Referendum is approved by voters. 

• CAC Organizational Structure - The committee was encouraged to provide feedback on 
proposals presented during the July meeting. While there was no action, there was 
general agreement that evening start times are preferable, and that the hybrid meeting 
format should remain as long as there are safeguards in place to prevent members from 
abusing that privilege. Regarding geographical and demographic representation, there 
was general agreement that more diversity is a goal that we should pursue. Several 
members expressed concern about expanding membership to 60 seats, with some 
remarking that membership should be capped at 30. Members requested that, at the 
next meeting, staff present five specific proposals covering start time, format, the 
number of seats, number reserved for geographies and demographics, and term limits. 

 
Meeting of the Intelligent Transportation Systems Committee (ITS) of July 14 
The ITS Committee heard status reports on: 

• Freight Supply Chain Resilience Study – Members appreciated the study and 
commented on fuel impacts during Hurricane Irma and disruption to communication 
systems. 

• FDOT District 7 Smart Corridors Plan – Members discussed speed management on the 
interstates and the challenges for enforcement. There are opportunities for speed control 
and a possibility of a pilot project for variable speed limit signs on I-75. Temple Terrace 
and Plant City expressed interest in knowing more about the bike and pedestrian counts. 

• One.Network Traffic Management Platform – One.Network is a traffic management 
platform for coordinating roadway interruptions due to incidents, events and work zone 
activities. One platform is used for data input, centralization and data sharing between 
the different jurisdictions. Members of the public can create customized maps and 
routes, and sign up to be notified of any future planned events.   

• I-4 Florida’s Regional Advanced Mobility Elements (FRAME) Project and FDOT 
Connected and Automated Vehicles (CAV) Program – FRAME deployment is underway 
and includes work zone traffic management, wrong way driving warning, traffic incident 
management, speed harmonization, freight management aspect and predictive analytics 
feature that predicts crash risk based on real-time data. The system can provide 
information to roadside units (RSUs) which can broadcast information to nearby 
vehicles, notifying of any incidents.  
  

Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) on August 1 
The TAC approved the following action item: 
 Public Participation Amendments were approved unanimously. There was discussion on 

ways to demonstrate compliance with the improved procedures for informing the public 



 

on TIP amendments, including pictures of sign postings and sharing public comment 
received on project webpages. 

 The committee heard the presentation on Freight Supply Chain Resilience Study. There 
was appreciation for the methodology and comprehensiveness of the study but the 
committee wanted an opportunity to review the recommendations with the inclusion of 
additional input from the Health Department. A motion was made to accept the draft 
recommendations with an understanding that a second review and approval action will 
be taken at a future meeting. 

The TAC heard status reports on: 

• Tampa International Airport Master Plan Process 

• The 56th/50th Street Corridor Planning Study was well received. The focus on speed 
reduction through design was commended. Members were interested in future updates 
on design, funding, and construction. 

• The HART FY2023 Budget item was delayed until the following month due to technical 
difficulties in the Plan Hillsborough Room 

 
 
 
 

 
 



Board & Committee Agenda Item 

Agenda Item 

Committee Appointments 

Presenter 

None – Consent Agenda 

Summary 

The Livable Roadways Committee (LRC) shall be composed of representatives of 
local government departments, transportation agencies and other organizations.  
They may be elected officials, appointed officials, organization members, 
designated representatives or staff, but may not be staff or consultants to the TPO. 
The following have been nominated to serve on the LRC: 

• Omar Alvarado, by HART
• Glorimar Belangia, by Hillsborough County Schools
• Gus Ignas, as an at-large member representing Transit Users

Recommended Action 

That the TPO confirm the above nominations 

Prepared By 

Cheryl Wilkening, TPO Staff 

Attachments 

None 

Plan Hillsborough 
planhillsborough.org 

planner@plancom.org 
813 - 272 - 5940 

601 E Kennedy Blvd 
18th floor 

Tampa, FL, 33602

http://www.planhillsborough.org/
mailto:planner@plancom.org


Board & Committee Agenda Item 

Agenda Item: 
Storm Evacuation and Shelter-in-Place Study Report 
Presenter: 
Allison Yeh, TPO Staff and Karen Kiselewski, Cambridge Systematics 
Summary: 
A critical component of transportation agencies’ policy and program decision-making 
is system resilience to disruption. The TPO’s Storm Evacuation Forecast & Shelter-in-
Place Scenarios Study supplements the ongoing work of Emergency Management in 
the County and Cities by providing a high-level analysis of Hillsborough’s evacuation 
practices today. The study evaluated best practices in evacuation regionally and 
nationally, assessed potential evacuation enhancement options in Hillsborough 
County, and developed a set of recommendations and next steps for the TPO and 
other agencies to consider supporting emergency evacuations in Hillsborough County. 

The overall goal of this study was to assess and identify potential strategies that 
improve evacuation without undertaking expensive road widening projects. The 
objectives are to enhance the transportation experience to meet evacuation needs 
safely, efficiently, and effectively for all affected people.  

The project team will provide an overview of the study and recommendations. Issues 
were identified in part based on stakeholder and public input, such as congestion 
during evacuations, transportation evacuation operations, and event-related 
communications. Further, congested “hotspots” from past hurricane evacuations and 
potential operational strategies were reviewed, and the analysis included traffic 
modeling to evaluate various evacuation strategies. Traffic operations strategies that 
were evaluated include traffic signal coordination, circuitous routes, phased 
evacuations, emergency shoulder use, and reversible lanes. Communication 
strategies include dynamic message signs, targeted messaging, and collaboration and 
coordination. The presentation will conclude with recommendations for the TPO and 
other agencies to consider for improving storm evacuation and sheltering.    

Recommended Action: 
Accept the report 
Prepared By: 
Allison Yeh, AICP, LEED GA 
Attachments: 
Final Report 
Study Fact Sheet 
Presentation 

Plan Hillsborough 
planhillsborough.org 

planner@plancom.org 
813 - 272 - 5940 

601 E Kennedy Blvd 
18th floor 

Tampa, FL, 33602

https://planhillsborough.org/storm-evacuation-forecast-shelter-in-place-scenarios-study/
https://planhillsborough.org/storm-evacuation-forecast-shelter-in-place-scenarios-study/
https://planhillsborough.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/07/Evac-Shelter-Study-Final-Report-06302022v2.pdf
https://planhillsborough.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/07/Evacuation-Route-Study_Project-Info_Fact-Sheet-June-V7.pdf
https://planhillsborough.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/07/Storm-Evacuation-MPO-Policy-Board-July-2022.pdf
http://www.planhillsborough.org/
mailto:planner@plancom.org


Board & Committee Agenda Item 

Agenda Item: 
Amendment to the Fellowship Agreement with USF Department of Urban and 
Regional Planning 
Presenter: 
Consent 
Summary: 

The Hillsborough TPO annually sponsors one graduate student fellowship at the 
University of South Florida’s (USF’s) Department of Urban and Regional Planning 
(DURP). The TPO is proud to have been partaking in this opportunity for the past 
several years, benefiting from the assistance of a half-time intern while expanding on-
the-job educational opportunities to a graduate student. 

Staff has identified that the TPO’s GIS mapping and analysis activities could be 
supported cost-effectively by having an additional fellow/intern focusing on GIS.  As a 
result, the original agreement needs to be amended to allow for funding of this second 
intern with the TPO.  It is an additional $13,250.00 for the 2022-2023 academic year. 
USF uses these funds to provide a stipend to the student and matches the contribution 
with a tuition waiver for full time study. The funding for this additional fellow was 
included in the Unified Planning Work Program adopted by the Board in May. 

Recommended Action: 
Authorize the Executive Director to sign the amendment to the agreement with USF 
for the placement of a second fellow. 
Prepared By: 
Meghan D. Betourney, SPHR 
Attachments: 

Existing signed agreement with USF for placement of student intern for 2021-2023 

Proposed amendment to the agreement with USF for 2022-2023 

Plan Hillsborough 
planhillsborough.org 

planner@plancom.org 
813 - 272 - 5940 

601 E Kennedy Blvd 
18th floor 

Tampa, FL, 33602

http://www.planhillsborough.org/
mailto:planner@plancom.org


DocuSign Envelope ID: 808DDE93-CEEA-46B8-ABDE-382F566D2110

8/4/2021



DocuSign Envelope ID: 4FC289F7-3A33-4339-8CB4-8A51BB6D87BADocuSign Envelope ID: 81262304-0776-43F0-86A8-919267AB3E2DDocuSign Envelope ID: 1A0184A7-B564-411F-8DDD-208D322C301EDocuSign Envelope ID: 83F94506-6FE2-436D-8AA3-3D81CAAFD0FADocuSign Envelope ID: 9C3D5D47-2E1D-40A0-BFAD-28D5E3AE68B4DocuSign Envelope ID: 0387DBC5-1AA3-4882-9FFE-8DA4521C9D06DocuSign Envelope ID: 808DDE93-CEEA-46B8-ABDE-382F566D2110



DocuSign Envelope ID: 4FC289F7-3A33-4339-8CB4-8A51BB6D87BADocuSign Envelope ID: 81262304-0776-43F0-86A8-919267AB3E2DDocuSign Envelope ID: 1A0184A7-B564-411F-8DDD-208D322C301EDocuSign Envelope ID: 83F94506-6FE2-436D-8AA3-3D81CAAFD0FADocuSign Envelope ID: 9C3D5D47-2E1D-40A0-BFAD-28D5E3AE68B4DocuSign Envelope ID: 0387DBC5-1AA3-4882-9FFE-8DA4521C9D06DocuSign Envelope ID: 808DDE93-CEEA-46B8-ABDE-382F566D2110



THE UNIVERSITY OF SOUTH FLORIDA BOARD OF 
TRUSTEES, A PUBLIC BODY CORPORATE

By: ____________________________

Name: Ralph C. Wilcox           

Its: Provost & Executive Vice President

DocuSign Envelope ID: 4FC289F7-3A33-4339-8CB4-8A51BB6D87BADocuSign Envelope ID: 81262304-0776-43F0-86A8-919267AB3E2DDocuSign Envelope ID: 1A0184A7-B564-411F-8DDD-208D322C301EDocuSign Envelope ID: 83F94506-6FE2-436D-8AA3-3D81CAAFD0FADocuSign Envelope ID: 9C3D5D47-2E1D-40A0-BFAD-28D5E3AE68B4DocuSign Envelope ID: 0387DBC5-1AA3-4882-9FFE-8DA4521C9D06DocuSign Envelope ID: 808DDE93-CEEA-46B8-ABDE-382F566D2110



DocuSign Envelope ID: 4FC289F7-3A33-4339-8CB4-8A51BB6D87BADocuSign Envelope ID: 81262304-0776-43F0-86A8-919267AB3E2DDocuSign Envelope ID: 1A0184A7-B564-411F-8DDD-208D322C301EDocuSign Envelope ID: 83F94506-6FE2-436D-8AA3-3D81CAAFD0FADocuSign Envelope ID: 9C3D5D47-2E1D-40A0-BFAD-28D5E3AE68B4DocuSign Envelope ID: 0387DBC5-1AA3-4882-9FFE-8DA4521C9D06DocuSign Envelope ID: 808DDE93-CEEA-46B8-ABDE-382F566D2110



DocuSign Envelope ID: 4FC289F7-3A33-4339-8CB4-8A51BB6D87BADocuSign Envelope ID: 81262304-0776-43F0-86A8-919267AB3E2DDocuSign Envelope ID: 1A0184A7-B564-411F-8DDD-208D322C301EDocuSign Envelope ID: 83F94506-6FE2-436D-8AA3-3D81CAAFD0FADocuSign Envelope ID: 9C3D5D47-2E1D-40A0-BFAD-28D5E3AE68B4DocuSign Envelope ID: 0387DBC5-1AA3-4882-9FFE-8DA4521C9D06DocuSign Envelope ID: 808DDE93-CEEA-46B8-ABDE-382F566D2110



$1,472.07
$1,472.07
$1,472.07
$1,472.07
$1,472.07
$1,472.07
$1,472.07
$1,472.07

September 2021 
October 2021 
November 2021 
Decembe 2021 
January 2022 
February 2022 
March 2022 
April 2022 
May 2022 $1,472.11

Administrative matters: 

Rick Barnett 

Budget Analyst 

College of Arts and Sciences, Dean’s Office 

University of South Florida 

4202 E. Fowler Ave. – CPR107 

Tampa, FL 33620 

Rbarnet2@usf.edu 813-974-3384

USF School of Public Affairs contact: 
Dr. Evangeline Linkous
University of South Florida
School of Public Affairs/MURP 
4202 E Fowler Ave, SOC107 
Tampa, FL 33620
elinkous@usf.edu

Addendum to USF & Hillsborough County Metropolitan Planning Organization - Affiliation Agreement

Hillsborough County Metropolitan Planning Organization
Funding and Payment Schedule 

2021- 2022 Academic Year

The MPO will provide funds to cover one student stipend plus USF overhead of 6% for one Master of Urban 

and Regional Planning student over the USF academic year for the period from August 23, 2021 to May 6, 
2022. The total cost to the MPO will be$13,248.67, payable at intervals noted below. This is based on the 
student working 20 hours per week at an hourly rate of $16.89 per hour, within the current salary range of 
the grad student CBA.

Calculation is as follows: $16.89/hour x 20 hours per week x 37 weeks plus 6% overhead

The USF College of Arts and Sciences will provide the student with a tuition waiver and health insurance 
for full-time study during the Fall 2021 and Spring 2022 semesters. Tuition waivers cover 

approximately 80% of the cost of attendance. 

Payment schedule will be as follows: 

Total $13,248.67

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1A0184A7-B564-411F-8DDD-208D322C301EDocuSign Envelope ID: 83F94506-6FE2-436D-8AA3-3D81CAAFD0FADocuSign Envelope ID: 9C3D5D47-2E1D-40A0-BFAD-28D5E3AE68B4DocuSign Envelope ID: 0387DBC5-1AA3-4882-9FFE-8DA4521C9D06DocuSign Envelope ID: 808DDE93-CEEA-46B8-ABDE-382F566D2110

mailto:rschatman@forwardpinellas.org
mailto:mhafen@usf.edu


Academic Affairs MOU/MOA/ Contract Signature Form 

Title: 

College/Unit:  Partner(s):  

Primary Contact:  Date:   

Email:  Phone:  

Obtain Signatures as applicable: Printed Name: Signature: Date 

Signed: 

1) College Dean/ Other

2) UGS Dean/GRS Dean

3) Office of Institutional Effectiveness

4) Innovative Education

5) RMA / Finance Official  

6) Controller’s Office

7) Research & Innovation

8) a) USF World

b) Restricted Party Screening Review

9) Regional Chancellor

10) Information Governance

11) Other ______________________________

12) General Counsel

13) Vice Provost

Strategic Planning, Performance & Accountability

5/13/2021 

Type of Agreement (to be completed by primary contact) 

New 

International 

Curricular 

For Credit 

Renewal (Date of original:  ) 

Domestic 
Research Collaboration 

Not for Credit 

Student Exchange 

Faculty Exchange Other (Specify:  ) 

Financial account type: (if applicable) 

E & G 

Cost Recovery / Market Rate 

Existing Auxiliary (Prior number:  ) 

New Auxiliary 

Hillsborough County MPO - Amendment

Arts and Sciences Hillsborough County Metropolitan Planning Organization

Evangeline Linkous 7/15/2022

Elinkous@usf.edu 813-974-3347

6/11/2021

01075

Magali Michael

Kevin Toso

Jennifer Condon

Director, School of Public Affairs

Robin Ersing
Brittany Dix See Stamp

Terry Chisolm

DocuSign Envelope ID: A3FC4710-6E32-49AA-8E74-52D45F840787

7/15/2022

7/15/2022

7/15/2022

7/15/2022

DocuSign Envelope ID: B05B1A55-2B58-4A6F-80B3-A7B31EC51956

7/18/2022



FIRST AMENDMENT TO 
Agreement for Placement of Student Interns 

THIS FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE Agreement for Placement of Student Interns (the “Amendment”) 
is made and entered into on the date of last signature (the “Effective Date”) by and between UNIVERSITY 
OF SOUTH FLORIDA BOARD OF TRUSTEES, a public body corporate (“USF”), and Hillsborough 
County Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) who agree as follows: 

WHEREAS, the parties have entered into that certain Affiliation Agreement dated effective August 
23, 2021 (“Agreement”); and 

WHEREAS, the parties are mutually desirous of amending the Agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants contained herein and 
for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which being hereby acknowledge, it is 
agreed as follows: 

1. The above recitals are accurate and are hereby incorporated herein. Terms used herein but
not otherwise defined shall have the meanings ascribed to them in the Agreement.

2. Section 1 of the Agreement shall be replaced in its entirety as follows:

The MPO agrees to provide internship opportunities for USF students when the 
MPO has a need for intern services. In advance of the internship experience, 
the parties will agree on the number of students to participate under this Agreement.  

3. The Addendum to the Agreement shall be deleted in its entirety and such addendum shall be 
replaced with Exhibit “2” attached hereto.

4. Except as modified hereby, all other terms and conditions contained in the Agreement are hereby 
confirmed, renewed and shall remain in full force and effect during the Term thereof.

5. The parties agree that this Amendment shall be effective as the effective date herein.

[Signature page to follow] 

DocuSign Envelope ID: A3FC4710-6E32-49AA-8E74-52D45F840787DocuSign Envelope ID: B05B1A55-2B58-4A6F-80B3-A7B31EC51956



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have duly executed this Amendment. 

_____________________________________ 
_____________________________________ 

By: _____________________________________ 

Name: __________________________________ 

UNIVERSITY OF SOUTH FLORIDA 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES, a public body 
corporate  

By:  ______________________________ 

Name: ____________________________ 

Its: _______________________________ Its: ______________________________________ 

DocuSign Envelope ID: A3FC4710-6E32-49AA-8E74-52D45F840787DocuSign Envelope ID: B05B1A55-2B58-4A6F-80B3-A7B31EC51956

Ralph C. Wilcox

Provost & Executive Vice President



EXHIBIT 2  

MPO 

Funding and Payment Schedule  

2021-2022 & 2022-2023 Academic Year 

The Hillsborough County Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) will provide funds to cover a student 
stipend plus USF overhead of 6% for one Masters of Urban and Regional Planning student over the USF 
academic year for the period from August 23, 2021- May 4, 2022 and two Masters or Urban and 
Regional Planning students from August 23, 2022 - May 5, 2023. The total cost to the MPO will be 
$13,250 each academic year, per student, which totals $13,250 for the first year and $26,500 for the 
second academic year, payable at intervals noted below.  

The USF College of Arts and Sciences will provide each student with a tuition waiver for full time study 
during the Fall 2021 & 2022 and Spring 2022 &2023 semesters. Tuition waivers cover approximately 80% 
of the cost of attendance.  

Payment schedule will be as follow 

September 24, 2021 $3,312.50 
November 26, 2021 $3,312.50 
February 11, 2022 $3,312.50 
May 13, 2022   $3,312.50 
September 23, 2022 $6,625.00 
November 25, 2022 $6,625.00 
February 10, 2023 $6,625.00 
May 12, 2023  $6,625.00 

MPO contact: 
Meghan D. Betourney, SPHR 
Phone: 813-565-9386 
betourneym@plancom.org 

USF contacts: 
Programmatic matters: 
Evangeline Linkous, Ph.D. 
Program Director, MURP 
USF School of Public Affairs 
Phone: 813-974-7982 
elinkous@usf.edu 

Administrative matters: 
Rick Barnett 
Budget Analyst – College of Arts & Sciences Dean’s 
Office Phone: 813-974-3384 
Rbarnet2@usf.edu 

DocuSign Envelope ID: A3FC4710-6E32-49AA-8E74-52D45F840787DocuSign Envelope ID: B05B1A55-2B58-4A6F-80B3-A7B31EC51956

mailto:betourneym@plancom.org
mailto:elinkous@usf.edu


Board & Committee Agenda Item 

Agenda Item: 
General Planning Consultant Contract Extensions 
Presenter: 
Consent 
Summary: 
Every five years, the TPO procures a pool of consultants that have expertise with a 
wide variety of transportation planning topics, to assist the TPO by preparing reports, 
analyses, and related work identified in the Unified Planning Work Program, on an 
as-needed basis through the issuance of work orders. 

The current General Planning Consultant contracts were approved by the TPO Board 
in July and August of 2020, and are effective for two years with three optional one-
year renewals.   

This year, as the annual one-year renewal is considered, a need for changes to the 
contract language has been identified by the Florida Department of Transportation 
(FDOT).  At the direction of the Federal Highway Administration, FDOT has reviewed 
all MPO consultant contracts around the state to ensure that very specific terms have 
been included in the contracts.    

At FDOT’s direction, staff proposes to update the language of the 2022-2023 GPC 
contracts to specifically identify FDOT’s 10.65% Disadvantaged Business Enterprise 
(DBE) goal as aspirational and race-neutral, as well as the contractor’s obligation to 
enter DBE commitments and payments in the State of Florida’s Equal Opportunity 
Contracting system.  These language changes can be found on page 9 of the 
attachment. Staff has also updated the SECTION XVIII - DURATION OF 
AGREEMENT to end the contracts as of June 30, 2023, at FDOT’s direction, and will 
conduct a new procurement over the next year. 

Recommended Action: 
Authorize the Chair to sign the extensions of the GPC contracts with the updated 
language 
Prepared By: 
Meghan D. Betourney, SPHR 
Attachments: 

GPC Contract Extension 2022-2023 

Plan Hillsborough 
planhillsborough.org 

planner@plancom.org 
813 - 272 - 5940 

601 E Kennedy Blvd 
18th floor 

Tampa, FL, 33602

http://www.planhillsborough.org/
mailto:planner@plancom.org


HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY 

METROPOLITAN PLANNING 

ORGANIZATION 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

AGREEMENT 

General Transportation Planning 

Consultant Services 

[Date] 2020August 2022 



 

 

Hillsborough County Metropolitan Planning Organization 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  

 
THIS AGREEMENT is entered into this __ day of ______, 20220, by and between the Hillsborough 
County Metropolitan Planning Organization, hereinafter referred to as the “MPO”, and 
CONSULTANT NAME, hereinafter referred to as “CONSULTANT”. 
 

W I T N E S S E T H: 
 
For and in consideration of the mutual agreements hereinafter contained, the MPO hereby 
retains CONSULTANT, and CONSULTANT hereby covenants to provide the professional services 
described herein in connection with the Hillsborough County Metropolitan Planning 
Organization’s General Transportation Planning Consultant Services. 
 
SECTION I - MPO OBLIGATIONS 
The MPO agrees that it shall furnish to CONSULTANT any data and other work products readily 
available in the MPO files pertaining to the services to be performed under this Agreement.  
 
The Executive Director of the Metropolitan Planning Organization, hereinafter referred to as the 
“DIRECTOR”, shall issue written authorization to proceed, hereinafter referred to as “Notice to 
Proceed”, to CONSULTANT for the individual task assignment to be performed hereunder which 
Notice to Proceed shall specify a completion time for the work. In case of emergency, the 
DIRECTOR reserves the right to issue an oral Notice to Proceed to CONSULTANT with the 
understanding that a written Notice to Proceed shall follow immediately thereafter. 
 
DIRECTOR shall not be obligated to assign any minimum amount of individual task assignments 
to CONSULTANT during the life of this Agreement and CONSULTANT agrees that it will not make 
any claim for damages or loss of profits due to the amount of individual task assignments 
assigned pursuant to this Agreement. 

 
The MPO will furnish, without charge, the following information to the CONSULTANT for the 
performance of Services: 
 
A. All criteria and full information as to the MPO’s requirements for CONSULTANT’s 

performance pursuant to this Agreement including objectives, constraints, budgetary 
limitations, and time frames. 

B. Drawings, specifications, schedules, reports, socio-economic, traffic, and planning data 
and other information prepared by and/or for the MPO by others which are available to the 
MPO and which the MPO considers pertinent to the CONSULTANT’s responsibilities, pursuant 
to this Agreement and CONSULTANT shall have the right to rely upon the accuracy and 
completeness of any such materials and/or information. 
 
 
 



 

 

SECTION II - PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
Upon delivery of a Notice to Proceed for individual task assignments from the DIRECTOR, 
CONSULTANT agrees to perform professional services described in Exhibit “A” hereto, 
hereinafter referred to as “Services”. Individual task assignments made to CONSULTANT shall be 
in writing on forms acceptable to the DIRECTOR which shall be included as part of the Notice to 
Proceed required by Section I of this Agreement, and may include data and other work product 
and progress requirements to be met at designated stages of completion. 
 
In connection with Services to be rendered pursuant to this Agreement, CONSULTANT further 
agrees to: 
 
A. Comply with any federal, state and local laws or ordinances applicable to the work. 
B. Cooperate fully with the DIRECTOR in the scheduling and coordination of all phases of the 

work. 
C. Report the status of the work to the DIRECTOR upon request and hold all pertinent data and 

other work products open for inspection by the DIRECTOR or his authorized agent at any time. 
D. Submit for review, data and other work products representative of the work’s progress at the 

designated stages of completion, if stipulated in the Notice to Proceed. Submit for 
DIRECTOR’s approval the final work products upon incorporation of any modifications 
requested by the Director during any previous review. 

E. Confer with the DIRECTOR at any time during the term of this Agreement concerning the 
further development and utilization of data and other work products generated by 
CONSULTANT pursuant to this Agreement as to interpretation and corrections of errors and 
omissions. CONSULTANT shall not be compensated for the correction of CONSULTANT’S 
errors and/or omissions. 

 
The CONSULTANT shall ensure that all work products, contractual services documents and 
support forms have been prepared on PC compatible hardware, and software approved by the 
Director. 

 
The CONSULTANT shall have proven familiarity with Geographic Information Systems (GIS) 
applications for transportation planning tasks. All GIS products shall be compatible with the 
Hillsborough County City-County Planning Commission’s, hereinafter referred to as the “Planning 
Commission”, GIS hardware and software. All GIS deliverables shall include: 
 

• A Map Package (.mpk) for each map produced utilizing ESRI products and all data layers 
necessary to recreate the completed map; and 

• A brief summary of methodology for each map produced, including the original name and 
source of data, and any data queries or selection parameters used to create or depict 
pertinent topic data layers within the map. 

 
All final graphics and documents delivered to the MPO shall be in a photo ready reproducible 
format. In addition, all documents shall be supplied to the MPO in their original, editable, 



 

 

electronic format. This includes maps, tables, graphics, photos, and other supporting information 
used to produce the required deliverables. 
 
SECTION III - TIME FOR COMPLETION 
The individual task assignment to be rendered by CONSULTANT under Section II of this 
Agreement shall commence upon delivery of a written Notice to Proceed from the DIRECTOR 
subsequent to the execution of this Agreement, and shall be completed within the time specified 
in the Notice to Proceed. CONSULTANT shall not be responsible for failure to perform or for 
delays in the services arising out of factors beyond the reasonable control or without the fault or 
negligence of CONSULTANT. 
 
Nothing in this Agreement shall preclude the DIRECTOR from granting a reasonable extension of 
the time specified in the Notice to Proceed where appropriate to ensure full and proper 
completion of an individual task assignment. CONSULTANT and the MPO hereby agree that any 
decision by the DIRECTOR to grant or not grant an extension of time for completion of an 
individual task assignment shall not be a cause for claim by CONSULTANT. Any extension of time 
granted by the DIRECTOR shall be in writing and shall be incorporated as an addendum to the 
previously issued Notice to Proceed. 
 
SECTION IV - PERSONNEL 
A. CONSULTANT shall designate a qualified individual acceptable to the DIRECTOR to serve as 

CONSULTANT’s project manager for each individual task assignment. This individual shall be 
fully responsible for the day-to-day activities required for performance of the individual task 
assignment pursuant to a Notice to Proceed and shall serve as the primary contact for the 
DIRECTOR or designated MPO Project Manager. 

 
B. The DIRECTOR shall designate a qualified member of the MPO staff to serve as the MPO’s 

project manager for each individual task assignment. This individual shall be fully responsible 
for the day-to-day activities required for performance of the individual task assignment 
pursuant to a Notice to Proceed and shall be the primary contact for CONSULTANT. 

 
C. CONSULTANT shall immediately notify the DIRECTOR in the event that CONSULTANT is no 

longer able to perform Services under this Agreement with any of the personnel listed in 
CONSULTANT’s written technical proposal, and identify such personnel and his or her 
qualifications. 

 
D. CONSULTANT shall notify the DIRECTOR of any proposed replacement of personnel, listed in 

CONSULTANT’s written technical proposal, to perform Services under this Agreement at least 
thirty (30) days prior to such replacement advising of the personnel to be replaced and the 
proposed replacement personnel. 

 
E. If requested by the MPO or the DIRECTOR, CONSULTANT shall submit to the DIRECTOR within 

five (5) days of such request the qualifications of personnel proposed as replacements to 
personnel to perform Services under this Agreement. 



 

 

 
F. The MPO and the DIRECTOR reserve the right to reject any proposed replacement personnel 

to perform Services under this Agreement. In such an event, CONSULTANT shall propose 
alternate replacement personnel and shall submit to the DIRECTOR the qualifications of such 
personnel at least thirty (30) days prior to the proposed replacement. 

 
G. In the event that CONSULTANT is no longer able to perform Services under this Agreement 

with any of the personnel listed in CONSULTANT’s written technical proposal, deemed by the 
DIRECTOR to be necessary for the performance of an individual task assignment or the 
Services, and is unable to provide replacement personnel acceptable to the MPO or the 
DIRECTOR, this shall be a cause for cancellation of a Notice to Proceed or termination of this 
Agreement. 

 
H. The MPO and the DIRECTOR reserve the right to direct CONSULTANT to remove any of its 

personnel from the performance of any of the Services under this Agreement.  If such removal 
is for cause, the costs of such removal shall be borne by CONSULTANT. However, if such 
removal is not for cause, the cost of such removal shall be borne by the MPO.  

 
I. CONSULTANT agrees not to contact any members of the MPO Board regarding MPO matters 

without first contacting the DIRECTOR. 
 
SECTION V - COMPENSATION 
The MPO agrees to pay, and CONSULTANT agrees to accept, for individual task assignment for 
Services rendered pursuant to this Agreement, including all or a portion of the Services described 
in Exhibit “A” hereto, as assigned by the DIRECTOR, and all incidental work thereto, the Lump 
Sum Fee negotiated by the DIRECTOR and CONSULTANT for any individual task assignments to 
CONSULTANT pursuant to a Notice to Proceed. Such Lump Sum Fee shall be based on the method 
of compensation outlined in Exhibit “B” hereto. The hourly rates for each job classification and 
factors for overhead, fringe benefits, and operating margin approved by the MPO Board for 
CONSULTANT are shown in Exhibit “C” hereto. The Lump Sum Fee shall constitute full 
compensation for all CONSULTANT costs associated with performance of the Services hereunder, 
including but not limited to, labor, overhead, computer time, and fringe benefits costs; out-of-
pocket expenses such as communications, postage, printing, reproduction, etc.; and travel 
expenses such as airfare, car rental, lodging, meals, etc. and shall also include CONSULTANT’s 
profit margin in connection with the Services to be rendered pursuant to this Agreement. 
 
SECTION VI - RETAINAGE 
There will be retainage on this Agreement amounting to ten percent (10%) of all submitted 
invoices. This amount will be released by the Director upon satisfactory completion and delivery 
of all Services and deliverable products for each individual task assignment as provided in Section 
XXIV of this Agreement. 
 
 
SECTION VII - CHANGES TO SERVICES IDENTIFIED BY A NOTICE TO PROCEED 



 

 

In the event of a need to change the scope of the Services identified by a Notice to Proceed, the 
scope, time for completion and compensation for such work shall be described in a written 
negotiated change order which shall be incorporated as an addendum to the previously issued 
Notice to Proceed. Such written change order shall be effective and CONSULTANT shall modify 
its work under a Notice to Proceed to conform with the written change order upon delivery of 
such written change order to CONSULTANT. In the event that the DIRECTOR determines that 
there is a need to change the Services identified by a Notice to Proceed and a written change 
order cannot be negotiated to the satisfaction of the DIRECTOR and CONSULTANT, the DIRECTOR 
may cancel the previously issued Notice to Proceed. 

SECTION VIII - RIGHT OF DECISIONS 
All Services shall be performed by CONSULTANT  to the reasonable satisfaction of the DIRECTOR, 
who shall decide all questions, difficulties, and disputes of whatever nature, including reuse of 
documents pursuant to Section X of this Agreement, which may arise under or by reason of this 
Agreement, the prosecution and fulfillment of the Services hereunder, and the character, quality, 
and amount of value therein. The DIRECTOR’s decisions upon all claims, questions and disputes 
shall be final, conclusive and binding upon the parties hereto unless such determination is clearly 
arbitrary or unreasonable. Adjustments of compensation and time for completion of an individual 
task assignments pursuant to a Notice to Proceed, due to any major changes in the Services, 
which might become necessary or be deemed desirable as the work progresses, shall be as 
provided in Section VII of this Agreement. In the event CONSULTANT does not concur with the 
decisions of the DIRECTOR, CONSULTANT may present any such objections in writing to the MPO 
in a manner consistent with Section IV of this Agreement. The DIRECTOR and CONSULTANT shall 
abide by the decisions of the MPO. This paragraph does not constitute a waiver of either party’s 
right to proceed in a court of competent jurisdiction. 
 
SECTION IX - OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS 
Upon payment in accordance with the terms of this Agreement, all data and other work products 
developed by CONSULTANT pursuant to this Agreement shall become the property of the MPO 
without restrictions or limitations upon their use and shall be made available by CONSULTANT at 
any time upon request by the MPO; provided, however, that notwithstanding anything to the 
contrary in this Agreement, any preexisting proprietary rights including any application files 
owned by or licensed to CONSULTANT or source files owned by third party vendors to 
CONSULTANT shall remain the sole and exclusive property of CONSULTANT and/or such third 
party vendors. Reuse of such data by the MPO for any purpose other than that for which prepared 
shall be at the MPO’s sole risk. When all Services or any individual task assignment contemplated 
under this Agreement and identified in a Notice to Proceed are complete, all of the above data 
shall be delivered to the DIRECTOR within the time for completion specified in the Notice to 
Proceed.  
 
 
SECTION X - REUSE OF DOCUMENTS 
CONSULTANT may not reuse data or products developed under this Agreement without the 
written permission of the DIRECTOR; provided, however, CONSULTANT may reuse, without the 



 

 

permission of the DIRECTOR, data or products included within the work product which were 
previously developed by CONSULTANT and which are of general applicability in its industry or 
proprietary to CONSULTANT. 
 
SECTION XI - COURT APPEARANCES AND CONFERENCES 
Nothing in this Agreement shall obligate CONSULTANT to prepare for or appear in litigation on 
behalf of the MPO except in consideration of additional compensation. The amount of such 
compensation shall be mutually agreed upon and described in a Supplemental Agreement 
subject to approval by the MPO Board. Except as otherwise provided by law, only upon said 
approval of a Supplemental Agreement and subsequent delivery of written authorization from 
the DIRECTOR shall CONSULTANT be obliged to make Court appearances on behalf of the MPO. 
 
SECTION XII - NOTICES 
Any notices, reports or other written communication from CONSULTANT shall be considered 
delivered when posted by certified mail or delivered in person to the DIRECTOR. Any notices, 
reports or other communications from the MPO to CONSULTANT shall be considered delivered 
when posted by certified mail to CONSULTANT at the last address left on file with the MPO or 
delivered in person to said CONSULTANT or CONSULTANT’s authorized representative. 
 
SECTION XIII – CANCELLATION OR SUSPENSION OF A NOTICE TO PROCEED 
The DIRECTOR shall have the authority to cancel or suspend a Notice to Proceed at the sole 
discretion of the DIRECTOR. In the event the DIRECTOR cancels or suspends a Notice to Proceed, 
CONSULTANT shall be compensated for all Services rendered consistent with the terms of this 
Agreement and the Notice to Proceed up to the time delivery of written notification of such 
cancellation or suspension except in the case of a cancellation or suspension of a Notice to 
Proceed based on a notification of noncompliance which is not cured or declaration of default as 
provided in Section XIX of this Agreement. This compensation shall be determined on the basis 
of the percentage of the total Services, which have been performed at the time of delivery to 
CONSULTANT of such notice. In the event partial payment has been made for professional 
Services not performed, CONSULTANT shall return such sums to the MPO within ten (10) days 
after delivery of written notice that such sums are due. 
 
SECTION XIV - AUDIT AND INSPECTION OF RECORDS; PUBLIC RECORDS 
A. Maintenance of Records 

CONSULTANT shall maintain appropriate records with respect to wages and salaries and 
other reimbursable costs hereunder during the course of the Services and for three (3) years 
after final payment under this Agreement. Such records supported by payrolls, invoices, and 
other documents pertaining in whole or in part to the Services shall be clearly identified, 
readily accessible and, to the extent feasible, kept separate and apart from all other 
documents related to the Services. The system of accounting shall be in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles and practices, consistently applied. These records 
are maintained for information only. 

 
B. Accessibility of Records; Public Records 



 

 

CONSULTANT shall permit the authorized representatives of the MPO and the MPO’s funding 
agencies to inspect all data and records relating to its performance under this Agreement. 
These rights of inspection shall extend for a period of three (3) years following final payment 
under this Agreement. 
 

IF THE CONSULTANT HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE APPLICATION OF 
CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO THE CONSULTANT’S DUTY TO PROVIDE 
PUBLIC RECORDS RELATING TO THIS CONTRACT, CONTACT THE CUSTODIAN OF 
PUBLIC RECORDS AT (813) 273-3774 ext.371; WilkeningC@plancom.org; 601 
E. Kennedy Blvd., 18th Floor, Tampa FL 33602). 

 
While providing services to the MPO under this Agreement, CONSULTANT will comply with 
Florida’s public records law, Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, and further agrees to: 1. Keep and 
maintain public records required by the MPO to perform the service; and 2. Upon request 
from the MPO’s custodian of public records, provide the MPO with a copy of the requested 
records or allow the records to be inspected or copied within a reasonable time at a cost that 
does not exceed the cost provided in Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, or as otherwise provided 
by law; and 

 
C. Ensure that public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records 

disclosure requirements are not disclosed except as authorized by law for the duration of the 
contract term and following completion of the contract if the CONSULTANT does not transfer 
the records to the MPO; and 

 
D. Upon completion of the contract, transfer, at no cost, to the MPO all public records in 

possession of the CONSULTANT or keep and maintain public records required by the MPO to 
perform the service. If the CONSULTANT transfers all public records to the MPO upon 
completion of the contract, the CONSULTANT shall destroy any duplicate public records that 
are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure requirements. If the 
CONSULTANT keeps and maintains public records upon completion of the contract, the 
CONSULTANT shall meet all applicable requirements for retaining public records. All records 
stored electronically must be provided to the MPO, upon request from the MPO’s custodian 
of public records, in a format that is compatible with the information technology systems of 
the MPO. 

 
SECTION XV - SUBCONTRACTING 
CONSULTANT shall not subcontract, assign, or transfer any work under this Agreement without 
the prior written consent of the DIRECTOR. Work shall be performed by personnel listed in 
CONSULTANT’s written technical proposals or replacement personnel as provided in this 
Agreement. When applicable and upon receipt of such consent in writing, CONSULTANT shall 
cause the names of the firms responsible for the major portions of each separate specialty of the 
work to be inserted in the pertinent documents or data. 

 

mailto:WilkeningC@plancom.org


 

 

CONSULTANT will require in any subcontracts pertaining to the Services described herein that 
the subconsultant will permit the MPO all the rights and privileges of this Agreement, including, 
but not limited to, the MPO’s right to secure materials or services from the subconsultant which 
might be a part of the subconsultant’s work product. 
 
It is the policy of the Hillsborough County MPO that disadvantaged businesses, as defined in 49 
Code of Federal Regulations, Part 26, shall have an opportunity to participate in the performance 
of MPO contracts in a nondiscriminatory environment. Pursuant to 49 CFR 26.21(a)(1) the 
Hillsborough County MPO has adopted the Florida Department of Transportation Disadvantaged 
Business Enterprise (DBE) Program for use on US DOT-assisted contracts. FDOT triennially 
establishes a statewide race neutral aspirational goal l of 10.65% that a percentage of that a 
percentage of US DOT-assisted projects be awarded to DBEs. The current DBE goal is 10.65%. It 
is the contractor’s obligation to enter DBE commitments and payments into the EOC system. 
A copy of the Hillsborough County MPO's DBE Policy Statement and the FDOT's DBE Policy 
Program can be viewed in the Planning Commission library or online at 
www.hillsboroughmpo.org. CONSULTANT shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, 
national origin, or sex in the performance of this Agreement. CONSULTANT shall carry out 
applicable requirements of 49 CFR part 26 in the award and administration of DOT-assisted 
contracts. Failure by the contractor to carry out these requirements is a material breach of this 
contract, which may result in the termination of this contract or such other remedy as the 
recipient deems appropriate, which may include, but is not limited to: withholding of payments 
to CONSULTANT under this Agreement; Assessing sanctions; Assessing liquidated damages; 
and/or cancellation, termination or suspension of the Agreement in whole or in part; and/or 
suspension or debarment of CONSULTANT from eligibility to contract with the MPO in the future 
or to receive bid packages or request for proposal packages. The Florida Department of 
Transportation maintains a directory identifying all firms eligible to participate as DBEs as well as 
supportive services to assist with identification and use of DBEs. For more information, contact 
the FDOT Equal Opportunity Office at 
http://www.fdot.gov/equalopportunity/dbesbeprograms.shtm. 
 
SECTION XVI - REPRESENTATIONS 
CONSULTANT represents that no companies or persons, other than bona fide employees working 
solely for CONSULTANT have been retained or employed to solicit or secure this Agreement or 
have been paid or guaranteed payment of any fees, commissions, percentage fees, gifts or any 
other considerations contingent upon or resulting from the award or making of this Agreement. 
CONSULTANT also represents and agrees that no Planning Commission or MPO personnel, 
whether a full-time or part-time employee, has or shall be retained or employed in any capacity, 
as long as they are in the Planning Commission’s or MPO’s employment and for two (2) years 
thereafter, by CONSULTANT to accomplish the work contemplated under the terms of this 
Agreement. For breach or violation of this section, the MPO shall have the right to terminate this 
Agreement without liability. 
 
SECTION XVII - TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT 

http://www.fdot.gov/equalopportunity/dbesbeprograms.shtm


 

 

It is expressly understood and agreed that in addition to other provisions of this Agreement 
providing for termination by the MPO, the MPO may terminate this Agreement, in total or in 
part, without cause or penalty, by thirty (30) days’ prior notification in writing to CONSULTANT, 
by certified mail, return receipt requested. In the event of a termination of this Agreement 
pursuant to this Section or Section IV of this Agreement, the MPO’s sole obligation to 
CONSULTANT shall be payment in accordance with Section V of this Agreement, for those units 
or sections of the work previously authorized by a Notice to Proceed. Such payment shall be 
determined on the basis of the hours or the percentage of the total work performed by 
CONSULTANT up to the time of termination. In the event partial payment has been made for 
professional Services not performed, CONSULTANT shall return such sums to the MPO within ten 
(10) days after delivery of written notice by certified mail, return receipt requested, that said 
sums are due. Upon termination, the MPO may, without penalty or other obligations to 
CONSULTANT, elect to employ other persons to perform the same or similar Services. 
 
SECTION XVIII - DURATION OF AGREEMENT 
This Agreement shall remain in full force and effect until June 30, 2023.  for a period of two years 
after its date of execution or until completion of all Services, whichever occurs last, unless 
terminated by mutual consent of the parties hereto or as otherwise provided, in this Agreement. 
The MPO reserves the right to renew this Agreement in one-year extensions for up to three 
additional years, with mutual written agreement of the parties as provided in Section XXV of this 
Agreement. The DIRECTOR is hereby authorized to execute said extensions on behalf of the MPO, 
provided that, with the exception of the expiration date, the terms of this Agreement are 
unchanged by any such extensions. 
 
If CONSULTANT ceases to exist as a corporation, the MPO has the right to re-negotiate or 
terminate this Agreement. 
 
SECTION XIX - DEFAULT 
In the event CONSULTANT fails to comply with the provisions of this Agreement, the DIRECTOR 
may declare CONSULTANT in default if CONSULTANT fails to cure such noncompliance within 
thirty (30) days of delivery of written notification, by certified mail, return receipt requested. In 
such an event, CONSULTANT shall only be compensated for those Services specified in Exhibit 
“A” that are identified in a Notice to Proceed, which has been fully completed as of the date of 
default. In the event partial payment has been made for such professional Services identified in 
a Notice to Proceed that have not been fully completed, CONSULTANT shall return such sums to 
the MPO within ten (10) days after delivery of written notice, by certified mail, return receipt 
requested, that said sums are due. In the event of litigation to enforce this requirement, the 
prevailing party shall be entitled to reasonable attorney’s fees and court costs. 
 
A declaration of default under this Agreement shall constitute a basis for termination of this 
Agreement by the MPO. 
 
Failure by the MPO at any time to enforce any of the provisions of this Agreement or to take any 
course of action allowed by this Agreement shall not be construed as a waiver of any right the 



 

 

MPO may have pursuant to this Agreement. Such a failure to enforce or take any course of action 
allowed by this Agreement shall not affect the validity of this Agreement or any rights the MPO 
may have pursuant to this Agreement. 
 
SECTION XX - INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE 
CONSULTANT shall indemnify and hold harmless the MPO, and its officers and employees from 
liabilities, damages, losses, and costs, including, but not limited to, reasonable attorneys’ fees, to 
the extent caused by the negligence, recklessness, or intentionally wrongful conduct of 
CONSULTANT and other persons employed or utilized by CONSULTANT in the performance of the 
contract. 
 
CONSULTANT shall maintain the following insurance during the term of this Agreement: 
 
A. Automobile Liability Insurance covering all owned, non-owned and hired vehicles used in 

connection with the work in an amount not less than $500,000 combined single limit per 
occurrence for bodily injury and property damage. 

B. Professional Liability Insurance in the amount of $1,000,000 providing for all sums, which 
CONSULTANT shall become legally obligated to pay as damages for claims arising out of the 
Services, performed by CONSULTANT or any person employed by CONSULTANT in connection 
with this Agreement. 

C. General Liability Insurance, on a commercial basis, in an amount not less than $1,000,000 
combined single limit per occurrence for bodily injury and property damage. The policy must 
be endorsed to show the MPO as additional insured. 

D. Worker’s Compensation Insurance in compliance with Florida’s statutory requirements, as 
presently written or hereafter amended. 
 

All insurance policies must be issued by companies with A.M. Best ratings of A- or better, Class III 
and authorized to do business under the laws of the State of Florida. 
 
CONSULTANT shall furnish certificates of insurance to the MPO as Exhibit “G” to this Agreement, 
which certificates shall clearly indicate that CONSULTANT has obtained insurance in the type, 
amount, and classification as required for strict compliance with this Agreement and that no 
material change or cancellation of this insurance shall be effective without thirty days (30) prior 
written notice to the MPO. 
 
The certificate must contain an additional clause as follows: The MPO and its members, officers 
and employees, the Planning Commission and its members, officers and employees have been 
named as additional insured as respects general and auto liability coverage. 
 
Compliance with the foregoing requirements shall not relieve CONSULTANT of the liabilities and 
obligations under this Section or under any other portion of this Agreement, and the MPO shall 
have the right to inspect the original insurance policies in the event that submitted certificates 
of insurance are inadequate to ascertain compliance with required coverages. 
 



 

 

SECTION XXI - CERTIFICATION OF WAGE RATES 
In accordance with Florida Statute 287.055, CONSULTANT hereby certifies that wage rates and 
other factual unit costs, as submitted in support of the compensation provided in Section V and 
Exhibits “B” & “C”, are accurate, complete and current as of the date of this Agreement. 
 
SECTION XXII - PUBLICITY, NEWS RELEASES AND CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION 
CONSULTANT will not, during or after performance of this Agreement, disseminate any 
information outside its organization regarding the Services without prior written approval from 
the DIRECTOR. CONSULTANT shall not divulge any confidential information communicated to it 
or used by it in connection with this Agreement, except as required by law. 
 
SECTION XXIII - CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
CONSULTANT covenants that it presently has no interest and shall not acquire any interest, direct 
or indirect, which would conflict in any manner with the performance of Services. CONSULTANT 
further covenants that in the performance of this Agreement, no person having any such interest 
shall knowingly be employed by CONSULTANT. 
 
During the term of this Agreement, CONSULTANT shall not act as an agent for others in any 
proceeding, application or matter before the MPO Board. 
 
No member, officer or employee, of the Planning Commission or the MPO during his tenure or 
for two years thereafter, shall have any interest, direct or indirect in this Agreement or the 
proceeds thereof. 
 
CONSULTANT agrees that it and its employees shall be bound by applicable local, state and 
federal laws regarding this subject of Conflict of Interest. 
 
SECTION XXIV – FINAL ACCEPTANCE 
When CONSULTANT completes an individual task assignment pursuant to a Notice to Proceed, 
CONSULTANT shall so advise the DIRECTOR in writing and request the release of retainage 
pursuant to Section VI of this Agreement. Within thirty (30) days of delivery of such notice, the 
Director shall release retainage or give CONSULTANT notice in writing of any individual task 
assignment, which, in the DIRECTOR’s sole judgment, have yet to be completed. Upon 
completion of such Services, CONSULTANT shall notify the DIRECTOR, and within the above 
specified time period the DIRECTOR shall release retainage, which shall constitute final 
acceptance of the specified individual task assignment. Final acceptance shall not constitute a 
waiver or abandonment of any rights or remedies available to the MPO under any other section 
of this Agreement. 
 
SECTION XXV - ENTIRETY OF AGREEMENT 
This Agreement embodies the entire agreement and understanding between the parties hereto, 
and there are no other agreements and understandings, oral or written with reference to the 
subject matter herein that are not incorporated herein and superseded hereby. 
 



 

 

No alteration, change, or modification of the terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless made 
in writing, signed by both the MPO and CONSULTANT. 
 
This Agreement, regardless of where executed, shall be governed by and constructed according 
to the laws of the State of Florida, and venue shall be in Hillsborough County, Florida. 

 
  



SECTION XXVI - EXHIBITS 
The following Exhibits are attached hereto and incorporated herein as integral parts of this 
Agreement, and CONSULTANT agrees to comply with all terms contained therein: 

“A” Scope of Services 
“B” Method of Compensation 
“C” Approved Hourly Rates per Classification and Additive Percentages 
“D” Hillsborough County EEO Requirements 
“E” Federal Transit Administration Civil Rights Assurances 
“F” CONSULTANT Certifications and Affidavits 
“G” CONSULTANT Certificates of Insurance 

IN WITNESS WHEREIN the parties hereto have executed this Agreement this ______ day of 
________________, _____. 

ATTEST: 

Hillsborough County 
Metropolitan Planning Organization Reviewed as to Form and 

Legal Sufficiency 
By: By:  

MPO Chairman MPO Attorney 

ATTEST: 

CONSULTANT 

By: By: 

(title) (witness) 



 
 

Board & Committee Agenda Item 

Agenda Item 

Public Participation Plan Amendments (2022)  

Presenter 

Davida Franklin, TPO staff  

Summary 

Engaging the public is critical to the Transportation Planning Organization’s (TPO) 
success. Working with the community ensures TPO plans, and products better reflect 
the public’s values and preferences. The Public Participation Plan (PPP) helps balance 
the professional and technical expertise brought to projects with the community’s input 
and helps the TPO gain the broad support needed to ensure that transportation plans 
and programs are implemented. 

At least once every two years, the TPO reviews its public participation and produces a 
Measure of Effectives (MOE) Report. The MOE was presented to committees last 
month and recommendations were made to improve the PPP: 

• Increase digital and social media tools to increase engagement 

• Institutionalize proactive outreach for TIP amendments 

• Provide clarity about the TPO’s roles and responsibilities in the planning process 

• Use focus groups more often and consider target demographics 

• Build culture awareness 

Those changes will be highlighted in today’s presentation and help set the stage for 
engaging the public in the update of the Long Range Transportation Plan (LRTP) to 
the year 2050. 

Recommended Action 

Approve the Public Participation Plan Amendments 

Prepared By 

Davida Franklin, TPO staff 

Attachments 

Presentation slides 

2020 Public Participation Plan 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Plan Hillsborough 
planhillsborough.org 

planner@plancom.org 
813 - 272 - 5940 

601 E Kennedy Blvd 
18th floor 

Tampa, FL, 33602 

https://planhillsborough.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/08/2022-Public-Participation-Plan-Amendments-v2.pdf
https://planhillsborough.org/wp-content/uploads/2020/12/Public-Participation-Plan_2020_FINAL.pdf
http://www.planhillsborough.org/
mailto:planner@plancom.org


Board & Committee Agenda Item 

Agenda Item: 
TPO Apportionment Plan  
Presenter: 
Elizabeth Watkins, TPO Staff 
Summary: 
At the May 2022 TPO Board meeting, the Board directed staff to propose a 
membership apportionment scenario that retains the current members, while 
addressing population representation, reducing the potential for Government in the 
Sunshine violations, and ideally increasing the proportion of elected officials.  

The new scenario proposes that the seats on the board remain unchanged, but that 
the transportation authorities should be represented by a member of the authority’s 
board. This change will allow TPO Board members to consult with transportation 
authority staff freely about matters that may come to the TPO Board for 
consideration.  Topics that may come to the TPO Board for consideration include the 
funding of any transportation project that appears in the Transportation Improvement 
Program. 

An additional option for the Board’s consideration would be to specify that 
transportation authority board members serving on the TPO Board should be elected 
officials.  This step would increase the proportion of elected vs. non-elected officials 
serving on the board, which currently is low in comparison to other Florida MPOs.  
This step would likely to result in all seven BOCC members serving on the TPO 
Board, which is consistent with proportional representation of population directed by 
Florida Statutes. The remaining two seats would be filled by two elected officials from 
Tampa, or one from Tampa and one from Temple Terrace (representing HART). 

The TPO Apportionment Plan is typically effective for ten years, though it may be 
amended at any time with the approval of the Governor and all local governments. 

Recommended Action: 
Approve the TPO Apportionment Plan 

Prepared By: 

Elizabeth Watkins, TPO Staff 
Attachments: 
Presentation slides 
Draft TPO Apportionment Plan 

Plan Hillsborough 
planhillsborough.org 

planner@plancom.org 
813 - 272 - 5940 

601 E Kennedy Blvd 
18th floor 

Tampa, FL, 33602

https://planhillsborough.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/08/Apportionment-Plan_August-Board.pdf
http://www.planhillsborough.org/
mailto:planner@plancom.org


 

DRAFT – August 2022 
 

 

 

 

Hillsborough County MPO 
d/b/a Hillsborough TPO 

Membership Apportionment Plan 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Hillsborough Transportation Planning Organization 

601 East Kennedy Blvd., 18th Floor 

P.O. Box 1110 

Tampa, FL 33601 

(813) 272-5940 



 

DRAFT – August 2022 
 

Contents 
Authorizing Resolution .................................................................................................................................. 3 

Introduction .................................................................................................................................................. 5 

TPO Membership Apportionment Plan ........................................................................................................ 6 

Hillsborough TPO Planning Area ............................................................................................................... 6 

TPO Membership ...................................................................................................................................... 7 

Current Membership ............................................................................................................................ 7 

Proposed Membership ......................................................................................................................... 7 

Summary ................................................................................................................................................... 9 

Supporting Documentation ........................................................................................................................ 10 

Attachment A - Minutes from the TPO’s meeting of August 10, 2022 Authorizing the Proposed 
Apportionment Plan................................................................................................................................ 11 

Attachment B - Resolutions or Motions from Member Governments Endorsing Proposed 
Apportionment Plan................................................................................................................................ 12 

Attachment C - MPO Membership Apportionment Plan Process .......................................................... 13 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



 

DRAFT – August 2022 
 

Authorizing Resolution 
RESOLUTION 2022-1 

HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY 

METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION 

 

MEMBERSHIP APPORTIONMENT PLAN 

WHEREAS, the Hillsborough County Metropolitan Planning Organization is the agency 
designated to conduct a continuing, coordinated, and comprehensive transportation planning process in 
Hillsborough County; and 

WHEREAS, Section 134 of Title 23 of the United States Code requires the designation of 
MPOs in urbanized areas, as defined by the United States Bureau of the Census; and 

WHEREAS, the Hillsborough County Metropolitan Planning Organization met on 
August 10, 2022 to review its voting composition and agreed on the changes presented herin; and 

WHEREAS, Section 339.175(4)(a), Florida Statues, requires the Governor to review the 
composition of the Metropolitan Planning Organizations (MPO) membership in conjunction with the 
decennial census. 

NOW, THEREFORE NOW BE IT RESOLVED, that the Hillsborough County 
Metropolitan Planning Organization approves the submittal of a MPO Membership Apportionment Plan 
to the Governor’s Office. 

DONE, ORDERED AND ADOPTED THIS 20TH DAY OF AUGUST 2022 

 

HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY 
METROPOLITAN PLANNING  
ORGANIZATION 
 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
COMMISSIONER HARRY COHEN 
CHAIRMAN 

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_________________________________ 
CAMERON CLARK 
MPO ATTORNEY 



 

DRAFT – August 2022 
 

Introduction  
 

To carry out federal transportation planning requirements, Title 23 of the United States Code provides 
that a Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) be designated for each urbanized area with a 
population of more than 50,000 individuals. In response, the Hillsborough Transportation Planning 
Organization (TPO), formerly the Metropolitan Planning Organization, was created in 1974 to meet the 
requirements of federal law governing the expenditure of federal transportation funds by state and local 
agencies in Hillsborough County.  

The designation of MPOs is accomplished by agreement between the Governor and the affected local 
governments. In addition, section 339.175, Florida Statutes, provides requirements for MPO 
membership composition and the apportionment of voting membership. This statute further requires 
the Governor to review the membership composition of each MPO in conjunction with the decennial 
census and to apportion it as necessary to comply with these requirements. 

On August 10, 2022, the Hillsborough County TPO reviewed its composition and acted to approve this 
membership apportionment plan for submittal.  



 

DRAFT – August 2022 
 

TPO Membership Apportionment Plan 
 

Hillsborough TPO Planning Area  
The Hillsborough TPO’s planning area is the Hillsborough County boundary. This includes the City of 
Tampa, City of Temple Terrace, City of Plant City, and unincorporated Hillsborough County. Map 1 shows 
the planning area, the jurisdictions, and their estimated populations for 2020 which were used to 
apportion the TPO membership proposed in this plan. 

 

Map 1 MPO Planning Boundaries and Jurisdictions 

The Hillsborough TPO has been part of a multi-county urbanized area since the Census Bureau’s merger 
of the urbanized areas in Hillsborough, Pinellas, and Pasco Counties following the 1990 Census.  The 
MPOs and TPOs of West Central Florida, including Hillsborough, Pinellas, Pasco, Polk, Hernando/Citrus, 
and Sarasota/Manatee, are party to the longest-standing regional compact for coordinated 
transportation planning in Florida, with the chairpersons meeting regularly starting in the 1990s, and a 
formal interlocal agreement signed in the early 2000s and regularly updated since then. Also called out 
in FS 339.175, the MPO Chairs Coordinating Committee of West Central Florida recently rebranded as 
the Sun Coast Transportation Planning Alliance (SuncoastTPA.org) and continues to jointly prepare 
multicounty transportation plans and priorities.  A subcommittee of the SCTPA, the Transportation 



 

DRAFT – August 2022 
 

Management Area Leadership Group, provides additional attention and focus on the tri-county area of 
Hillsborough, Pinellas, and Pasco.   

TPO Membership 
Current Membership 
Currently, sixteen (16) voting and one (1) non-voting members serve on the TPO Board. This 
composition was agreed to by the local governments in a membership reapportionment plan approved 
by the Governor in 2013.  

Table 1 Current TPO Membership 

Jurisdiction/Agency Voting Members Percent of Total 
TPO Votes 

Unincorporated Hillsborough County (elected) 5 31% 
City of Tampa (elected) 3 19% 
City of Plant City (elected) 1 6% 
City of Temple Terrace (elected) 1 6% 
Hillsborough County School Board (elected) 1 6% 
Hillsborough Area Regional Transit Authority (staff) 1 6% 
Planning Commission (appointed) 1 6% 
Tampa Hillsborough Expressway Authority (staff) 1 6% 
Hillsborough County Aviation Authority (staff) 1 6% 
Tampa Port Authority  (staff) 1 6% 
Florida Department of Transportation1 (staff) 0 0% 

 

Proposed Membership 
The proposed TPO Board membership in this Apportionment Plan retains the existing sixteen (16) voting 
members with one (1) non-voting advisor (see Table 2). There is no change in represented jurisdictions 
or agencies. 

The primary change is the transportation authorities should be represented by a member of the 
authority’s board. This change will allow TPO Board members to consult with transportation authority 
staff freely about matters that may come to the TPO Board for consideration. Topics that may come to 
the TPO Board for consideration include the funding of any transportation project that appears in the 
Transportation Improvement Program. 

 

 

 

  

 
1 Florida Department of Transportation serves as non-voting technical advisor to the TPO Board per FS F.S. 
339.175(4)(a)). 



 

DRAFT – August 2022 
 

 

Table 2 Membership Reapportionment  

 

 

  

 
2 Florida Department of Transportation serves as non-voting technical advisor to the TPO Board per FS F.S. 
339.175(4)(a)). 

Jurisdiction/Agency Voting 
Members 

Percent of Total TPO 
Votes 

Unincorporated Hillsborough County (elected) 
Board of County Commissioners 
Board of County Commissioners 
Board of County Commissioners 
Board of County Commissioners 
Board of County Commissioners 

5 31% 

City of Tampa (elected) 
Office of the Mayor 

City Council 
City Council 

3 19% 

City of Plant City (elected) 
City Commission 

 

1 6% 

City of Temple Terrace (elected) 
Office of the Mayor 

1 6% 

Hillsborough County School Board (elected) 
School Board Member 

1 6% 

Hillsborough Area Regional Transit Authority 
(elected/appointed) 

Board Member 

1 6% 

Planning Commission (appointed) 
Board of County Commissioners Appointee 

1 6% 

Tampa Hillsborough Expressway Authority 
(elected/appointed) 

Board Member 

1 6% 

Hillsborough County Aviation Authority (elected/appointed) 
Board Member 

1 6% 

Tampa Port Authority (elected/appointed) 
Board Member 

1 6% 

Florida Department of Transportation2 (staff) 0 0% 



 

DRAFT – August 2022 
 

Summary 
 

Table 2 shows the proposed TPO Membership Apportionment Plan. It meets all applicable Federal and 
State requirements, including: 

1. It provides for representation of at least 75% of the affected population (Section 134(d)(1)(A), 
USC.) 

2. As a transportation management area (over 200,000 in population), it provides for 
representation of agencies that administer or operate major modes of transportation. (Section 
134(d)(2)(B), USC.) 

3. The number of members was determined on an equitable geographic-population ratio basis, 
based on an agreement among the affected units of general-purpose local government. (S. 
339.175(3)(a), F.S.) 

4. The proposed membership includes 16 voting members and 1 non-voting advisors, which is not 
fewer than 5 and not more than 25. (S. 339.175(3)(a), F.S.) 

5. All voting members are elected officials of general-purpose governments and an elected School 
Board member except those representing a statutorily authorized planning board. (S. 
339.175(3)(a), F.S.) 

6. The County Commission represents at least 20% of the voting membership. (S. 339.175(3)(a), 
F.S.) 

7. The Florida Department of Transportation is recommended as ex-officio (nonvoting) advisor. (S. 
339.175(4)(a), F.S.) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



 

DRAFT – August 2022 
 

 

Supporting Documentation 
 

Attachment A Minutes from the TPO’s meeting of August 10, 2022 authorizing the Proposed 
Apportionment Plan 

Attachment B Resolutions or Motions from Member Governments Endorsing Proposed Apportionment 
Plan 

Attachment C MPO Membership Apportionment Plan Process 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



 

DRAFT – August 2022 
 

Attachment A - Minutes from the TPO’s meeting of August 10, 2022 Authorizing the 
Proposed Apportionment Plan 
 

<Insert Minutes>  



 

DRAFT – August 2022 
 

Attachment B - Resolutions or Motions from Member Governments Endorsing Proposed 
Apportionment Plan 
 

<Insert Resolutions> 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

DRAFT – August 2022 
 

Attachment C - MPO Membership Apportionment Plan Process 

 

Source: MPO Program Management Handbook 



Board & Committee Agenda Item 

Agenda Item: 
FDOT Electric Vehicle Plan 
Presenter: 
April Combs, FDOT  
Summary: 
The Florida Department of Transportation is preparing an Electric Vehicle Charging 
Investment Plan. The Plan is the framework for how the Department plans to 
implement the National Electric Vehicle Infrastructure (NEVI) Program. Over the life 
of the five-year program the Department is estimated to receive $198 million to 
address EV charging needs for passenger vehicles and light duty trucks. Funds may 
be used to purchase and install EV charging infrastructure, operating expenses, 
purchase and installation of traffic control devices located in the right-of-way, on-
premises signage, development activities, and mapping and analysis activities.  

Recommended Action: 
None, for information only  
Prepared By: 
Connor MacDonald, Hillsborough TPO 
Attachments: 
FDOT EV Infrastructure Master Plan 
 

\ 

Plan Hillsborough 
planhillsborough.org 

planner@plancom.org 
813 - 272 - 5940 

601 E Kennedy Blvd 
18th floor 

Tampa, FL, 33602

https://highways.dot.gov/newsroom/president-biden-usdot-and-usdoe-announce-5-billion-over-five-years-national-ev-charging
https://fdotwww.blob.core.windows.net/sitefinity/docs/default-source/planning/policy/electric-vehicle/florida's-evidp_2022-07-29_final_v2.pdf?sfvrsn=21099b3e_2
http://www.planhillsborough.org/
mailto:planner@plancom.org


 
 

Board & Committee Agenda Item 

Agenda Item 
FDOT District 7 Safety Program Update 
Presenter 
Peter Hsu, FDOT District 7 Safety Engineer 
Summary 
FDOT District 7 continues to update its safety program focus areas based on crash 
trends.  Mr. Hsu will provide an overview of the District 7 office’s recent and upcoming 
safety projects. 
Recommended Action 
None; for information 
Prepared By 
Beth Alden, TPO Director 
Attachments 
Presentation slides 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Plan Hillsborough 
planhillsborough.org 

planner@plancom.org 
813 - 272 - 5940 

601 E Kennedy Blvd 
18th floor 

Tampa, FL, 33602 

https://planhillsborough.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/08/D7-Hillsborough-TPO-Aug-10-Safety-Presentation-7-22-22.pdf
http://www.planhillsborough.org/
mailto:planner@plancom.org


 
 

Board & Committee Agenda Item 

Agenda Item: 
Bylaws Amendment for Transportation Disadvantaged Coordinating Board 

Presenter: 
Joshua Barber, TPO Staff  
Summary: 
The Florida Commission for the Transportation Disadvantaged requires local 
coordinating boards to annually review and (re)adopt their bylaws. Local coordinating 
board bylaws are to establish procedures including membership, staff support, 
duties, subcommittees, and communication with other organizations.  
 
The bylaws of all the TPO committees, including the TDCB, are incorporated into one 
set of TPO Bylaws that applies to the organization as a whole.  The TDCB 
subsection of these bylaws was amended during the Covid-19 pandemic to reduce 
the required quorum from a majority of the seated members to five (5) members.  
With the lifting of Local and State Declarations of Emergency, it is the expectation of 
the Florida Attorney General that members of the TPO Board and its committees 
return to attending meetings in person, unless there is a medical emergency or other 
significant circumstance which prevents a member from being physically present. 
 
Given the lifting of declarations of emergency, and the TDCB’s desire to ensure 
decisions are made by a majority of members, the TDCB in its annual review of its 
bylaws requested that the TPO amend the bylaws to return the quorum to a simple 
majority of the seated members.   
 
Recommended Action: 
No action; first reading  
 
Prepared By: 
Joshua Barber, TPO Staff 

Attachments: 
TPO Bylaws Proposed August 2022 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Plan Hillsborough 
planhillsborough.org 

planner@plancom.org 
813 - 272 - 5940 

601 E Kennedy Blvd 
18th floor 

Tampa, FL, 33602 

http://www.planhillsborough.org/
mailto:planner@plancom.org


   
 
 

1 

 
BY-LAWS OF 

THE HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY  
TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION 

AND ITS COMMITTEES 
Amended June 8September 14, 2022 

 
 
1.0 PURPOSE:  These By-laws are adopted by the Hillsborough County Metropolitan 

Planning Organization to govern the performance of the MPO’s duties as well as 
those of MPO committees and to inform the public of the nature of the MPO’s internal 
organization, operations and other related matters. 

1.1 DOING BUSINESS AS:  Consistent with the Fictitious Name Act (s.865.09, 
F.S.), and as registered with the Florida Department of State, the MPO will 
conduct business as the “Hillsborough Transportation Planning 
Organization,” hereinafter called the “TPO”. 

 
2.0 DEFINITIONS: 
 

2.1 EMERGENCY:  Any occurrence or threat thereof, whether accidental or 
natural, caused by man, in war or in peace, which necessitates immediate 
action because it results or may result in substantial injury or harm to the 
population or the TPO or substantial damage to or loss of property or public 
funds. 

 
2.2 GOOD CAUSE:  A substantial reason which is put forward in good faith. 

 
2.3 INTERESTED PERSON:  Any person who has or may have or who 

represents any group or entity which has or may have some concern, 
participation or relation to any matter which will or may be considered by the 
TPO. 

 
2.4 MEMBER(S):  The TPO consists of sixteen (16) official members, with FDOT 

designated as a non-voting advisor.  Each member government or authority 
may also appoint an alternate member, who may vote at any TPO meeting 
in place of a regular member.  TPO committee membership is as provided in 
these By-laws. 

 
2.5 PUBLIC HEARING:  A meeting of the TPO convened for the purpose of 

receiving public testimony regarding a specific subject and for the purpose of 
taking action on amendment to or adoption of a plan or program.  A public 
hearing may be convened with less than a quorum present; however, no 
official action other than adjournment or continuation of the public hearing to 
another time may be taken unless a quorum is present. 

 
2.6 REGULAR MEETING:  The regular scheduled meeting of the TPO at which 

all official business may be transacted. 
 



   
 
 

2 

2.7 SPECIAL MEETING:  A meeting of the TPO held at a time other than the 
regularly scheduled meeting time.  All official business may be transacted at 
a special meeting. 

 
2.8 WORKSHOP:  A conference where members are present and are meeting 

to discuss a specific subject.  A workshop may be convened with less than a 
quorum present; however, no official action other than adjournment or 
continuation of the workshop to another time may be taken.  

 
3.0 MPO OFFICERS:  There shall be a Chair and a Vice-Chair.  All officers shall be 

voting members of the TPO. 
 
3.1 TENURE:  All officers shall hold office for one (1) year or until a successor is 

elected.  However, any officer may be removed by a majority of the total 
members. No officer may serve for more than two years consecutively. 

 
3.2 SELECTION:  At the regular meeting in December, the members shall 

nominate one or more candidates to fill each office.  Immediately following 
the close of nominations, the TPO shall vote to fill each office, with the vote 
for each office being taken in the order in which candidates for that office 
were nominated, until one is elected.  New officers shall take office 
immediately upon the conclusion of the election of officers. 

 
3.3 VACANCY IN OFFICE:  A vacant office shall be filled by the TPO at its first 

regular meeting following the vacancy. The officer so elected shall serve the 
remainder of their predecessor’s term in office.   

 
3.4 DUTIES:  The officers shall have the following duties: 

 
3.4.1 CHAIR:   The Chair shall: 
 
(a) Preside at all regular and special meetings, workshops and public 

hearings. 
(b) Represent the TPO on the West Central Florida MPO Chairs 

Coordinating Committee (CCC), doing business as Suncoast 
Transportation Planning Alliance (SCTPA), and the Florida MPO 
Advisory Council (MPOAC). 

(c) Establish such ad hoc committees as the Chair may deem necessary 
and appoint their members and chairs. 

(d) Call special meetings and workshops and public hearings. 
(e) Sign all contracts, resolutions, and other official documents of the 

TPO, unless otherwise specified by the By-laws or Policies. 
(f) Express the position of the TPO as determined by vote or consensus 

of the TPO. 
(g) See that all actions of the TPO are taken in accordance with the By-

laws, Policies and applicable laws. 
(h) Perform such duties as are usually exercised by the Chair of a 

commission or board, and perform such other duties as may from time 
to time be assigned by the TPO. 

 



   
 
 

3 

3.4.2 Vice-Chair:  The Vice-Chair shall, during the absence of the Chair or 
the Chair’s inability to act, have and exercise all of the duties and 
powers of the Chair, and shall perform such other duties as may from 
time to time be assigned to the Chair by the TPO. 
 

4.0 COMMITTEES: 
 

4.1 AD HOC COMMITTEES:    
 

4.1.1 Chair and Expiration:  An ad hoc committee shall consist of a 
committee chair, who shall be a member of the TPO.  All ad hoc 
committees shall have an expiration time identified by the Chair at the 
time of creation or shall dissolve at the expiration of the Chair’s term. 

 
4.1.2 Purpose:  The purpose of establishing ad hoc committees is to 

facilitate the accomplishment of a specific task identified by the 
Chair. 

 
4.2 STANDING COMMITTEES: 

 
4.2.1 Appointment of Committee Members:  Members and alternate 

members of all committees shall be appointed by action of the 
TPO.  Members representing an organization on a committee, as 
specified in the committee membership list, shall be nominated in 
writing by their organization.  Members representing the citizens of 
Hillsborough County, and not representing any particular entity as 
specified in the committee membership list, shall be recommended 
for membership by action of the committee on which they would 
like to serve.  Using the same procedure, alternate members may 
be designated to act on behalf of regular members with all the 
privileges accorded thereto. The TPO shall not appoint committee 
applicants who are affiliated with private TPO consultants or 
contractors. If such an affiliation occurs, an existing committee 
member shall be deemed to have resigned. 
 

4.2.2 Termination of Committee Membership:  Any member of any 
committee may resign at any time by notice in writing to the Chair.  
Unless otherwise specified in such notice, such resignation shall 
take effect upon receipt thereof by the Chair.  Each member of 
each committee is expected to demonstrate his/her interest in the 
committee’s activities through attendance of the scheduled 
meetings, except for reasons of an unavoidable nature.  In each 
instance of an unavoidable absence, the absent member should 
ensure that his/her alternate will attend.  The TPO may review, and 
consider rescinding, the appointment of any member of any 
committee who fails to attend three (3) consecutive meetings.   In 
each case, the TPO will warn the member in writing, and if 
applicable the member’s nominating organization, thirty days in 
advance of an action to rescind membership.  The TPO Chair may 
immediately terminate the membership of any committee member 



   
 
 

4 

for violations of standards of conduct, defined as conduct 
inconsistent with Section 7.0 of these By-laws. At a minimum, 
committee member attendance will be reviewed annually.  In the 
case of members representing an organization on a committee as 
specified in the committee membership list, the individual’s 
membership may also be rescinded by the nominating 
organization, by letter to the Chair. 
 

4.2.3 Officers of Standing Committees:  The committee shall hold an 
organizational meeting each year for the purpose of electing a 
committee chair (unless designated by the TPO), a committee vice-
chair, and, at the discretion of the committee chair, an officer-at-large.  
Officers shall be elected by a majority vote of a quorum of the 
members.  Except as otherwise provided in these By-laws, officers 
shall serve a term of one year starting with the next meeting.  The 
powers and duties of the committee chair shall be to preside at all 
meetings; to express the position of the committee as determined by 
vote or consensus of the committee; and to ensure that all actions of 
the committee are taken in accordance with the bylaws and 
applicable law.  The committee vice chair shall have these same 
powers and responsibilities in the absence of the committee chair.  
The officer-at-large shall, during the absence of both the committee 
chair and the committee vice-chair or their inability to act, have these 
same duties and responsibilities, and in addition shall perform other 
duties as may from time to time be assigned by the committee chair. 
 

4.2.4 Conduct of Committee Meetings:  Sections 5 through 9, excluding 
Section 8.1, of these TPO By-laws shall be used for the conduct of all 
TPO committee meetings.   

 
4.2.5 Standing Committee Sub-Committees:  An TPO standing 

committee or the MPO may establish such sub-committees to a 
standing committee as deemed necessary to investigate and report 
on specific subject areas within the scope of the standing 
committee.  Such sub-committees shall be of limited duration and 
shall dissolve at such time as designated at the time of 
establishment or upon completion of the task(s) specified at the time 
of establishment.  These TPO By-laws shall be used for the conduct 
of such sub-committees meetings in the same manner as the TPO 
committees. 
 

4.2.6 TPO Technical Advisory Committee (TAC):  Established pursuant 
to Section 339.175, Florida Statutes, the TAC shall be responsible for 
considering safe access to schools in the review of transportation 
project priorities, long-range transportation plans and transportation 
improvement programs and shall advise the TPO on such matters.  In 
addition, the TAC shall be responsible for assisting in the 
development of transportation planning work programs; coordinating 
transportation planning and programming; review of all transportation 
studies, reports, plans and/or programs, and making 



   
 
 

5 

recommendations to the TPO that are pertinent to the subject 
documents based upon the technical sufficiency, accuracy, and 
completeness of and the needs as determined by the studies, plans 
and/or programs.  The TAC shall coordinate its actions with the 
School Board of Hillsborough County and other local programs and 
organizations within Hillsborough County that participate in school 
safety activities and shall also coordinate its actions with the 
appropriate representatives of the Florida Department of 
Transportation.  

 
TAC Membership:  The TAC shall be composed of technically 
qualified representatives for the purpose of planning, programming 
and engineering of the transportation system within the Hillsborough 
County Transportation Planning Organization area boundary. 
 
The membership shall be composed of: three (3) members from 
Hillsborough County, two (2) members from City of Tampa, two (2) 
members from the Hillsborough County City-County Planning 
Commission, one (1) member from the Tampa Hillsborough 
Expressway Authority, one (1) member from the Hillsborough Area 
Regional Transit Authority, one (1) member from Environmental 
Protection Commission, one (1) member from the Tampa Port 
Authority, one (1) member from City of Temple Terrace, one (1) 
member from the Tampa Bay Regional Planning Council, one (1) 
member from the Florida Department of Environmental Protection, 
one (1) member from City of Plant City, one (1) member from the 
Hillsborough County Aviation Authority, one (1) member from the 
Tampa Bay Area Regional Transportation Authority, one (1) member 
from the Tampa Historic Streetcar, Inc., one (1) member from the 
Department of Health-Hillsborough and one (1) member from the 
Florida Trucking Association. 
 
Terms of Membership: Members shall serve terms of indefinite length 
at the pleasure of their respective nominating organizations and the 
TPO. 
 

4.2.7 TPO Citizens Advisory Committee (CAC):  The CAC shall be 
responsible for providing information and overall community values 
and needs into the transportation planning program of the TPO; 
evaluating and proposing solutions from a citizen’s perspective 
concerning alternative transportation proposals and critical issues; 
providing knowledge gained through the CAC into local citizen group 
discussions and meetings; and establishing comprehension and 
promoting credibility for the TPO Program. 

 
CAC Membership:  The CAC shall be composed of appointed citizens 
(transportation agency staff are not eligible) who together shall 
represent a broad spectrum of social and economic backgrounds and 
who have an interest in the development of an efficient, safe and cost-



   
 
 

6 

effective transportation system.  Minorities, the elderly and persons 
with disabilities must be adequately represented on the CAC.   

 
All members must be residents of Hillsborough County.  Membership 
will be as follows:  one (1) member nominated by each member of the 
Board of County Commissioners serving on the TPO, one (1) member 
nominated by each member from the City of Tampa serving on the 
TPO, one (1) member from the City of Temple Terrace nominated by 
the Mayor of the City of Temple Terrace, one (1) member from the 
City of Plant City nominated by the Mayor of the City of Plant City, 
one (1) member nominated by each respective Chairperson of the 
Hillsborough County Aviation, Tampa-Hillsborough Expressway, 
Tampa Port and Hillsborough Area Regional Transit Authorities, one 
(1) member representing the transportation disadvantaged 
nominated by the Chairman of the Transportation Disadvantaged 
Coordinating Board, one (1) member nominated by the Chairperson 
of the Hillsborough County City-County Planning Commission and 
one (1) member nominated by the School Board member serving on 
the MPO.  In addition, there shall be six (6) at-large members 
nominated by local organizations representing the following 
constituencies or through application directly to the CAC as provided 
in Section 4.2.1. These shall comprise one (1) person of Hispanic 
ethnicity, one (1) person of African-American descent, one (1) person 
under the age of 30, one (1) woman, one (1) person to represent 
neighborhoods, and one (1) person to represent the business 
community. 

 
Terms of appointment shall be for a two-year period with an 
opportunity for reappointment thereafter, unless the official who 
appointed the member leaves office or the TPO board during the term 
of the member’s appointment.  In that case, the member shall be 
deemed to have resigned from the CAC and the new official shall 
have the right to appoint a new member or reappoint the same 
member.  A member of the committee whose term has expired shall 
continue to serve until they are reappointed or replaced.  The terms 
of appointment notwithstanding, CAC members shall serve at the 
pleasure of the TPO. 

4.2.8 TPO Policy Committee:  The TPO Policy Committee shall be 
responsible for the review and in-depth discussion of items and 
issues proposed to come before the TPO and for development of 
recommendations to the TPO, as appropriate, regarding such items 
and issues in order to facilitate the accomplishment of the TPO’s 
responsibilities to manage a continuing, cooperative and 
comprehensive transportation planning process and the development 
of transportation plans and programs. 

 
Membership:  The Policy Committee shall be composed of at least 
five (5) members of the TPO who shall serve on a voluntary basis.  
Volunteers for membership will be solicited at the TPO meeting at 



   
 
 

7 

which the Chair is elected and at any TPO meeting thereafter if the 
total membership of the Policy Committee falls below five (5).  Those 
TPO members requesting to be made Policy Committee members in 
response to such solicitation or upon the initiative of an individual 
TPO member shall be so appointed by action of the TPO and shall 
serve terms that last until the next TPO meeting at which the Chair is 
elected. 

 
4.2.9 Transportation Disadvantaged Coordinating Board (TDCB):  The 

primary purpose of the TDCB is to assist the TPO in identifying local 
service needs and providing information, advice, and direction to the 
Community Transportation Coordinator (CTC) on the coordination of 
services to be provided to the transportation disadvantaged pursuant 
to Section 427.0157, Florida Statutes. 

 
 The following agencies or groups shall be represented on the TDCB 

as voting members: 
• an elected official serving on the Hillsborough County TPO who 

has been appointed by the TPO to serve as TDCB Chairperson; 
• a local representative of the Florida Department of 

Transportation; 
• a local representative of the Florida Department of Children & 

Families; 
• a local representative of the Public Education Community, 

which could include, but is not limited to, a representative of 
Hillsborough County Public Schools, School Board 
Transportation Office or Head Start Program; 

• a local representative of the Florida Division of Vocational 
Rehabilitation or the Division of Blind Services, representing the 
Department of Education; 

• a person recommended by the local Veterans Service Office 
representing the veterans in the county; 

• a person who is recognized by the Florida Association for 
Community Action (President) as representing the economically 
disadvantaged in the county; 

• a person over sixty years of age representing the elderly 
citizens in the county; 

• a person with a disability representing the disabled citizens in 
the county;  

• two citizen advocates in the county, one of whom must be a 
user of the transportation services of the coordinated 
transportation disadvantaged system as their primary means of 
transportation; 

• a local representative for children at risk; 
• the chairperson or designee of the local mass transit system's 

board except when they are also the CTC; 
• a local representative of the Florida Department of Elder Affairs; 
• a local representative of the local for-profit transportation 

industry; 



   
 
 

8 

• a local representative of the Florida Agency for Health Care 
Administration; 

• a local representative of the Regional Workforce Development 
Board; 

• a representative of the local medical community, which may 
include, but is not limited to, kidney dialysis centers, long term 
care facilities, assisted living facilities, hospitals, local health 
department or other home and community based services, and; 

• A local representative of the Agency for Persons with 
Disabilities 

 
TDCB Terms of Appointment.  Except for the TDCB Chairperson, 
the members of the TDCB shall be appointed for three (3) year 
terms which shall be staggered equally among the membership.  
The TDCB Chairperson shall serve until elected term of office has 
expired or is otherwise replaced by the TPO. 
 
TDCB Duties.  The TDCB shall perform the following duties which 
include those specified in Chapter 41-2, Florida Administrative 
Code and Section 427.0157, Florida Statutes. 

a. Maintain official meeting minutes, including an attendance 
roster, reflecting official actions and provide a copy of same 
to the Commission for the Transportation Disadvantaged 
and the TPO Chairperson; 

b. Review and approve the CTC’s memorandum of agreement 
and the transportation disadvantaged service plan; 

c. On a continuing basis, evaluate services provided under the 
transportation disadvantaged service plan.  Not less than 
annually provide the TPO with an evaluation of the CTC’s 
performance relative to the standards adopted by the 
Commission for the Transportation Disadvantaged and the 
TPO.  Recommendations relative to performance and the 
renewal of the CTC's memorandum of agreement with the 
Commission for the Transportation Disadvantaged shall be 
included in the report; 

d. In cooperation with the CTC, review and provide 
recommendations to the Commission for the Transportation 
Disadvantaged and the TPO on all applications for local, 
state, or federal funds relating to transportation of the 
transportation disadvantaged in the county to ensure that 
any expenditures within the county are provided in the most 
cost effective and efficient manner; 

e. Review coordination strategies for service provision to the 
transportation disadvantaged in the county to seek 
innovative ways to improve cost effectiveness, efficiency, 
safety, working hours, and types of service in an effort to 
increase ridership to a broader population.  Such strategies 
should also encourage multi-county and regional 
transportation service agreements between area CTCs and 



   
 
 

9 

consolidation of adjacent counties when it is appropriate 
and cost effective to do so; 

f. Appoint a Grievance Subcommittee to process, investigate, 
resolve complaints, and make recommendations to the 
TDCB for improvement of service from agencies, users, or 
potential users, of the systems in the county. This 
Subcommittee shall meet as often as necessary to resolve 
complaints in a timely manner; 

g. In coordination with the CTC, jointly develop applications for 
funds that may become available; 

h. Prepare quarterly reports outlining the accomplishments 
and activities or other areas of interest to the Commission 
for the Transportation Disadvantaged and the TPO; 

i. Consolidate the annual budget of local and federal 
government transportation disadvantaged funds estimates 
and forward them to the Commission for the Transportation 
Disadvantaged.  A copy of the consolidated report shall also 
be used by the TDCB for planning purposes; 

j. Develop and maintain a vehicle inventory and utilization 
plan of those vehicles purchased with transportation 
disadvantaged funds for inclusion in the transportation 
disadvantaged service plan for the Commission for the 
Transportation Disadvantaged; 

k. Assist the TPO in preparing a Transportation 
Disadvantaged Element in their Transportation 
Improvement Program (TIP);  

l. Assist the CTC in establishing eligibility guidelines and 
priorities with regard to the recipients of nonsponsored 
transportation disadvantaged services that are purchased 
with Transportation Disadvantaged Trust Fund moneys; 

m. Work cooperatively with regional workforce boards 
established in Chapter 445, Florida Statutes, to provide 
assistance in the development of innovative transportation 
services for participants in the welfare transition program. 

 
4.2.10 TPO Intelligent Transportation Systems (ITS) Committee:  The 

ITS Committee is responsible for assisting in the development of 
Intelligent Transportation System (ITS) planning work programs, as 
well as reviewing ITS related studies, reports, plans, projects 
(including consistency with regional architecture and other 
standards and/or programs) and making recommendations to the 
TPO and/or other agencies.  ITS Committee recommendations to 
the TPO shall be based upon the technical sufficiency, accuracy, 
and completeness of studies, plans and/or programs.  The ITS 
Committee shall coordinate its actions with the appropriate 
representatives of the Florida Department of Transportation. 

 
ITS Committee Membership:  The ITS Committee shall be 
composed of members technically qualified in the planning, 
programming, engineering and/or implementation of intelligent 



   
 
 

10 

transportation systems or projects within the Hillsborough County 
Metropolitan Planning Organization area boundary or in the case of 
the member nominated by the Environmental Protection 
Committee, technically qualified in the area of air quality impacts of 
transportation.  The membership shall be composed of: one (1) 
member each from Hillsborough County, the City of Tampa, the 
Environmental Protection Commission, Tampa-Hillsborough 
Expressway Authority, Hillsborough Area Regional Transit 
Authority, the USF Center for Urban Transportation Research, the 
City of Plant City and the City of Temple Terrace as well as a non-
voting advisor from the FDOT.  Members and Alternate Members 
shall serve terms of indefinite length at the pleasure of their 
respective governmental bodies or agencies and the TPO. 

 
4.2.11 TPO Bicycle/Pedestrian Advisory Committee (BPAC):  The 

BPAC shall be responsible for making recommendations to the 
TPO, Hillsborough County, City of Tampa, City of Plant City, City of 
Temple Terrace, the Hillsborough County Environmental Protection 
Commission, the Florida Department of Transportation, the 
Southwest Florida Water Management District, and others, on 
matters concerning the planning, implementation and maintenance 
of a comprehensive bikeway and pedestrian system.  In addition, 
the BPAC shall be responsible for studying and making 
recommendations concerning the safety, security, and regulations 
pertaining to bicyclists and pedestrians. The BPAC shall coordinate 
its actions with the appropriate representatives of the Florida 
Department of Transportation. 

 
BPAC Membership:  The BPAC shall be composed of up to twenty- 
five members. One member shall represent each of the following 
entities, except as noted: City of Tampa (three seats), City of 
Temple Terrace, City of Plant City, Hillsborough County (three 
seats), University of South Florida USF, the Environmental 
Protection Commission of Hillsborough County, the Hillsborough 
County City-County Planning Commission, HART, and the Florida 
Health Department. The remaining members shall be citizen 
representatives.  
 
All members of this Committee shall serve for a two-year term, 
ending on June 30th of its respective year.  Without restriction, each 
member can be appointed to serve an unlimited number of two-year 
terms. 

 
4.2.12 TPO Livable Roadways Committee (LRC):  The LRC shall be 

responsible for integrating Livable Roadways principles into the 
design and use of public rights-of-way and the major road network 
throughout Hillsborough County.  The LRC seeks to accomplish this 
responsibility by: making recommendations to create a 
transportation system that balances design and aesthetics with 
issues of roadway safety and function; ensuring that public policy 



   
 
 

11 

and decisions result in a transportation system that supports all 
modes of transportation, with a special emphasis on pedestrian and 
bicycle infrastructure and transit infrastructure and service; 
providing information and assistance to the TPO, local 
governments and transportation agencies relating to the mission of 
the Committee; and enhancing coordination among TPO member 
agencies and public participation in the transportation planning 
process. The LRC shall coordinate its actions with the appropriate 
representatives of the Florida Department of Transportation. 

 
LRC Membership:  The LRC shall be composed of representatives 
of local government departments, transportation agencies and 
other organizations.  They may be elected officials, appointed 
officials, organization members, designated representatives or 
staff, but may not be staff to the TPO. Members will represent the 
following:  City of Plant City; City of Tampa Parks and Recreation 
Department, Public Works, Transportation Division, or Urban 
Development Department (up to two members); City of Temple 
Terrace; Hillsborough County Planning and Infrastructure (up to two 
members); Hillsborough Area Regional Transit; Hillsborough 
County TPO Board Member (appointed by the TPO to serve as 
chair of the committee); Hillsborough County City-County Planning 
Commission; Tampa Hillsborough Expressway Authority and five 
members from professional organizations whose mission is 
consistent with the principles of Livable Roadways (such as 
American Planning Association; American Society of Landscape 
Architects; Urban Land Institute; Institute of Transportation 
Engineers; Congress for New Urbanism and American Institute of 
Architects); University of South Florida; New North Transportation 
Alliance; Tampa Downtown Partnership; Westshore Alliance; 
Person with disabilities; Neighborhood representative; Transit user 
representative; Citizen advocate for livable communities and/or 
multimodal transportation; and School District and/or School Parent 
representative. 

5 MEETINGS: 
 

5.1 SCHEDULE OF MPO MEETINGS:  
 

5.1.1 Regular Meetings:  Regular meetings shall take place on the first 
Tuesday of each month, unless otherwise decided by the TPO and 
shall be held in the Chamber of the Hillsborough County Board of 
County Commissioners or at another suitable location designated 
by the Chair.   

5.1.2 Special Meetings and Workshops:  Special meetings and 
workshops shall be held at the call of the Chair or majority of 
officers. Special meetings and workshops shall convene at a time 
designated by the Chair and shall be held in the Chambers of the 
Hillsborough County Board of County Commissioners or at another 
suitable location designated by the Chair. 



   
 
 

12 

5.1.3 Public Hearings:  Public hearings of the TPO shall be held at a 
time designated by the Chair.  A public hearing can be continued 
until a date and time certain, with due allowance of time for public 
notice of the continuation of the public hearing.  Public hearings 
shall be held in the Chambers of the Hillsborough County Board of 
County Commissioners or at another suitable location designated 
by the Chair. 

 
5.2 SCHEDULE OF STANDING COMMITTEE MEETINGS:  Each standing 

committee shall meet monthly, with the exception of the Intelligent 
Transportation Systems Committee and the Transportation Disadvantaged 
Coordinating Board which shall meet every two months, at a regular date and 
time designated by the Chair. 
 

5.3 SCHEDULE OF AD HOC COMMITTEE MEETINGS:  Each ad hoc committee 
shall meet at the call of the committee chair.  Ad hoc committee meetings 
shall not be scheduled during the times reserved for TPO meetings.  Ad hoc 
committee meetings shall be held at a suitable location designated by the 
committee chair. 

 
5.4 NOTICE OF MPO AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS:  The Executive Director 

of the TPO shall be responsible for providing written public notice of all TPO 
meetings, public hearings and committee meetings.  Except in case of 
emergencies, written notice of any meeting shall be given at least five (5) days 
prior to the meeting.  In case of emergency, notice of such meeting shall be 
given to each member as far in advance of the meeting as possible and by 
the most direct means of communications.  In addition, notice of such 
emergency meeting shall be given to the media, utilizing the most practicable 
method.  Written notice of any meeting shall state the date, time and place of 
the meeting, a brief description of the agenda for the meeting, and shall be 
provided in accordance with the requirements of Florida law and the TPO’s 
Public Participation Plan. 

 
5.5 AGENDA OF MPO AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS:  The agenda for all TPO 

regular and special meetings, workshops and public hearings shall be 
established by the Chair with the assistance of the Executive Director.  
Members or the Executive Director may request that an item be placed on the 
agenda by communicating such request to the Executive Director at least ten 
(10) days prior to the meeting date.  The Chair shall consider with the 
Executive Director on a month to month basis whether there shall be a 
consent agenda.   

 
The agenda for each committee meeting shall be established by the 
committee chair and shall be prepared by the Executive Director or 
designated TPO support staff.  Members of a committee or the Executive 
Director may request that an item be placed on a committee agenda by 
communicating such request to the TPO support staff assigned to the 
committee, or the Executive Director at least ten (10) days prior to the 
committee meeting date. 

 



   
 
 

13 

The agenda shall list the items in the order they are to be considered.  For 
good cause stated in the record, items on the agenda may be considered out 
of order with the approval of the TPO Chair or the committee chair.   
 
The agenda for any TPO or committee meeting shall be delivered to each 
member at least five (5) days prior to the meeting date and shall be mailed 
or delivered to interested persons at that time, except in case of an 
emergency meeting, where the agenda will be provided to members, and 
interested parties as far in advance of such meetings as practicable. 
 

5.6 RULES OF ORDER:  Except where they are inconsistent with the By-laws, 
Roberts Rule of Order shall be used for the conduct of all TPO and committee 
meetings.  

 
5.7 QUORUM:  A simple majority of the total non-vacant membership of the TPO 

or TPO committee shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business 
at all regular and special meetings and public hearings, except seven (7) 
members shall constitute a quorum for the CAC, five (5) members shall 
constitute a quorum for the TDCB and nine (9) members shall constitute a 
quorum for the LRC and BPAC.  Public hearings may be conducted with less 
than a quorum, but no action, other than as noted at the end of this section, 
shall be taken unless a quorum is present.  When a quorum is present, a 
majority of those present may take action on matters properly presented at 
the meeting. Workshops may be conducted with less than a quorum, but no 
official action may be taken.  A majority of the members present, whether or 
not a quorum exists, may adjourn any meeting or continue any public hearing 
to another time. 

 
5.8 CONDUCT OF MEETINGS: 

 
5.8.1 Chair Participation:  The presiding TPO Chair, or committee chair, 

shall not be deprived of any rights and privileges by reason of being 
presiding Chair, but may move or second a motion only after the 
gavel has been passed to the Vice-Chair or another member. 

 
5.8.2 Form of Address:  Each member shall address only the presiding 

Chair for recognition; shall confine his/her remarks to the question 
under debate; and shall avoid personalities or indecorous language 
or behavior. 

 
5.8.3 Public Participation:  Any member of the public may address the 

TPO or TPO committee at a regular or special meeting, public 
hearing, or public participation type workshop, after signing in with 
the TPO Staff for a specific item.  When recognized by the Chair, a 
member of the public shall state their name, address, the person on 
whose behalf they are appearing and the subject of their testimony.  
Each member of the public shall limit his or her presentation to three 
(3) minutes unless otherwise authorized by the Chair. 

 



   
 
 

14 

5.8.4 Limitation of Testimony:  The Chair may rule testimony out of order 
if it is redundant, irrelevant, indecorous or untimely. 

 
5.8.5 Motions:  The Chair shall restate motions before a vote is taken and 

shall state the maker of the motion and the name of the supporter. 
 

5.8.6 Voting:  Voting shall be done by voice, as a group, but a member 
shall have his/her vote recorded in the minutes of the meeting if so 
desired.  A roll call vote shall be taken if any member so requests.  
Any member may give a brief explanation of his/her vote.  A tie vote 
shall result in failure of a motion. 

 
5.8.7 Reconsideration:  A motion to reconsider an item on which vote has 

been taken may be made only by a member who voted with the 
prevailing side.  The motion to reconsider must be made on the day 
the vote to be reconsidered was taken, or at the next succeeding 
meeting of the same type of meeting at which the vote to be 
reconsidered was taken (i.e., at the next succeeding regular 
meeting if the vote to be reconsidered was taken at a regular 
meeting).  To be in order, the motion to reconsider must be made 
under the consideration of old business.  Adoption of a motion to 
reconsider requires the approval of at least a simple majority of the 
votes cast.  If a motion to reconsider is adopted, the members shall 
consider the need for additional notice to interested persons before 
a vote subject to the motion for reconsideration was taken at a 
special meeting or a public hearing for which no subsequently 
scheduled meeting will provide an opportunity for reconsideration 
of the item, then the motion to reconsider may be made at the next 
regular meeting in the manner provided. 

 
5.9 ORDER OF BUSINESS AT MEETINGS:  The order of business shall be 

determined by the Chair; however, the following is provided as a guide: 
 

5.9.1 Regular TPO Meetings: 
 

(a) Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance 
(b) Approval of minutes of prior meetings, workshops and public 

hearings. 
(c) Public input on Agenda Items, TPO Committee Reports 
(d) Presentation of the Chair’s Report 
(e) Presentation of the Executive Director’s Report 
(f) Consideration of Action Items 
(g) Consideration of Status Reports 
(h) Public input regarding general concerns 
(i) Consideration of items under old business 
(j) Consideration of items under new business 
(k) Adjournment 

 
5.9.2 Special Meetings or Workshops 

(a) Call to Order 



   
 
 

15 

(b) Consideration of individual agenda items 
(c) Adjournment 

 
5.9.3 Public Hearings 
 

(a)  Call to Order 
(b) Consideration of individual agenda items 
  1. Presentation by staff 
  2. Public comment 
  3. Board deliberation 
(c) Adjournment 

 
5.9.4 Order of Consideration of Action Items:  The order of consideration 

of any individual agenda item shall be as follows unless otherwise 
authorized by the Chair: 

 
(a) Chair introduces the agenda item. 
(b) Staff presents the agenda item. 
(c) Other invited speaker(s) make presentations. 
(d) TPO or committee members ask questions. 
(e) Motion is made, seconded and debated.   
(f) Vote is taken. 

 
The Chair may expand all time limitations established by this section. 
 
5.9 OPEN MEETINGS:   All TPO regular and special meetings, workshops and 

public hearings, TPO committee meetings, and all meetings of the 
committees are open to the public as provided by Florida’s Government-in-
the-Sunshine Law, Section 286.011, Florida Statutes. 

 
6.0 ATTENDANCE:  Members are expected to attend all regular and special meetings, 

public hearings and workshops of the TPO and its committees. 
 

6.1 EXCUSAL FROM MEETINGS:  Each member who knows that his/her 
attendance at a regular or special meeting, public hearing or workshop will 
not be possible, shall notify the Executive Director, or committee support 
staff, of the anticipated absence and the reason thereof.  The Executive 
Director, or committee support staff, shall communicate this information to 
the Chair who may excuse the absent member for good cause. 

 
7.0 CODE OF ETHICS: 
 

7.1 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS:  Members shall comply with the applicable 
provisions of the Code of Ethics for Public Officers and Employees, Part III, 
Chapter 112, Florida Statutes. 

 
7.2 REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION:  Members may request information 

readily available to the general public directly from the appropriate staff 
person.  Requests for information not readily available to the general public, 
or information which would involve the expenditure of staff time in preparation 



   
 
 

16 

or compilation, shall be made to the Executive Director, who may consult with 
the Chair for guidance. 

 
7.3 LOBBYING ACTIVITIES:  Members shall use their discretion in conducting 

private discussions with interested persons regarding TPO business, as long 
as all interested persons are treated equally.  Any written material received 
by a member in connection with a private discussion with an interested 
person shall be given to the Executive Director for distribution to other 
members and as appropriate, to staff. 

 
7.4 GOVERNMENT IN THE SUNSHINE: Members shall refrain from 

participating in any private communications regarding TPO business 
involving two or more members.  For purposes of this section, a private 
discussion is one that is not conducted in accordance with the requirements 
of Florida’s Government-in-the-Sunshine Law, Section 286.011, Florida 
Statutes. 

 
Any written material received by a member in connection with TPO Business 
shall be given to the Executive Director or the member’s committee support 
staff for distribution to other members and as appropriate, to staff. 

 
7.5 STATEMENTS BY MEMBERS:  Members will from time to time be asked to 

give their opinions regarding matters which have been or will be considered 
by the TPO or one of its committees.  No member shall be prohibited from 
stating his/her individual opinion on any matter; however, in doing so, each 
member shall take care to make clear that the opinion expressed is his/her 
own, and does not constitute the official position of the TPO or one of its 
committees. 
 

7.6 CODE OF CONDUCT: Recognizing that persons holding a position of public 
trust are under constant observation, and that maintaining integrity and 
dignity are essential for high levels of public confidence in institutions of 
government, members are expected to adhere to the following: 

 
a. Prepare for and regularly attend all meetings of the member’s group; 
b. Extend courtesy and consideration toward colleagues, citizens, and 

staff, during all discussions and deliberations; 
c. Avoid appearance of impropriety; 
d. Allow citizens, colleagues, and staff sufficient opportunity to present 

their views, within the prescribed rules of conduct of meetings; 
e. Refrain from abusive comments or intimidating language directed at 

colleagues, citizens, or staff, including gestures, body language or 
distracting activity that conveys a message of disrespect and/or lack of 
interest; 

f. Not engage in harassing behavior or unwelcome conduct of a sexual 
nature toward colleagues, citizens, or staff; 

g. Discharge their duties without prejudice toward any person or group; 
h. Not lend their influence towards the advancement of personal financial 

interests or the financial interests of family, friends, or business 
associates. 



   
 
 

17 

 
 
8.0 ADMINISTRATION:  The administration of TPO activities shall be accomplished 

through official actions of the TPO in accordance with the following guidelines:  
 

8.1 POLICIES:  The TPO shall adopt, by a vote of a majority of the total 
membership, Policies to guide the administration of the TPO.  The Policies 
shall be published in conjunction with the By-laws.  The Policies may be 
amended from time to time by a vote of a majority of the total voting 
membership of the TPO.  

 
8.2 STATUTES: The TPO shall abide by legislation authorizing and specifying 

its duties and functions and all other requirements of Florida law. 
 
8.3 STAFF:  The staff of the TPO shall consist of the Executive Director and such 

additional employees as provided by the Hillsborough County City-County 
Planning Commission.  The staff shall be directed by the Executive Director 
of the TPO.  

 
9.0 RULES OF CONSTRUCTION:  The following rules apply to the text of this 

document. 
 

9.1 The particular controls the general. 
 
9.2 The word “shall” is mandatory and not discretionary.  The word “may” is 

permissive. 
 
9.3 Words used in the present tense include the future; words used in the 

singular number shall include the plural and the plural the singular unless the 
context indicates the contrary. 

 
9.4 Words not defined shall have the meaning commonly ascribed to them. 

 
10.0 AMENDMENT:  The By-laws may be amended by two-thirds majority vote of the 

total voting membership of the TPO.  Any amendment shall be proposed at a regular 
meeting and voted upon the next regular meeting. 



1

Beth Alden

Subject: FDOT District 7 - DRAFT Cost Feasible Plan for SIS 2033-2050

 
From: Monk, Suzanne <Suzanne.Monk@dot.state.fl.us>  
Sent: Wednesday, July 27, 2022 10:29 AM 
To: Beth Alden <aldenb@plancom.org> 
Subject: D7 ‐ DRAFT ‐ SIS CFP information 
 
Good morning, Beth.  
 
As discussed yesterday, the Department needs the SIS Long Range Cost Feasible Plan (CFP) and attached presentation 
inserted into the TPO Board’s Agenda [Packet] for August.   
 
Any comments/questions received on the presentation or plan, should be forwarded to Lori Marable 
[lori.marable@dot.state.fl.us] by September 16, 2022.  
 
Please let me know if you need anything else. 
 
Thanks, 
 

Suzanne Monk, FCCM  
Government Liaison 
Florida Department of Transportation, District 7 
11201 N. McKinley Drive, Tampa, Florida 33612 
813‐975‐6721 
 

 
 



DRAFT
as of 

07/25/2022

PDE PE TOTAL ROW CON TOTAL

3695 434045-2 I-275 N of Lois Avenue N of Howard Avenue 9,000,000 1,750,000 142,900,000 MGLANE 1 Hillsborough TPO Priority #67 Hillsborough
3715 434045-3 I-275 N of Howard Avenue N of Hillsborough River 10,000,000 300,000 157,000,000 MGLANE 2 Hillsborough TPO Priority #67 Hillsborough
3735 449109-1 I-275 N of 38th Avenue N of 4th St N 247,000,000 A2-6 3 Forward Pinellas Priority #12 Pinellas
3736 449109-2 I-275 N of I-375 N of 38th Avenue N 110,000,000 A2-6 4 Forward Pinellas Priority #13 Pinellas
3755 424501-7 I-275 54th Avenue South I-375 57,580,000 57,580,000 A1-3 5 Forward Pinellas LRTP Pinellas
1497 430338-1 I-4 (EB) E of Orient Rd W of I-75 10,302,700 124,117,521 134,420,221 M-INCH 6 Hillsborough TPO LRTP Hillsborough
3271 431746-4 I-4 E of Branch Forbes Road Polk Parkway 2,995,110 2,995,110 298,096,261 298,096,261 MGLANE 7 Hillsborough TPO LRTP Hillsborough
3508 431746-3 I-4 Selmon Connector Branch Forbes Road 6,840,612 6,840,612 30,213,600 919,003,751 949,217,351 MGLANE 8 Hillsborough TPO LRTP Hillsborough
3281 437650-2 I-75 at Gibsonton Drive 50,375,697 50,375,697 M-INCH 9 Hillsborough TPO Priority #79 Hillsborough
3775 447107-5 SR 60 EB N of Spruce ST/TIA Interchange N of Memorial Highway 515,072 515,072 46,179,264 46,179,264 A2-8 10 Hillsborough TPO Priority #67 Hillsborough
3507 431821-3 I-275 N of Hillsborough Ave S of Bearss Ave 2,266,385 2,266,385 223,531,797 223,531,797 HWYCAP 11 Hillsborough TPO Priority #66 Hillsborough
3270 431821-4 I-275 at Bearss Ave S of Bearss Ave N of Bearss Ave 909,835 909,835 1,648,200 77,682,248 79,330,448 M-INCH 12 Hillsborough TPO Priority #66 Hillsborough
3289 435750-2 SR 60 Dover Road SR 39 14,563,100 98,400,670 112,963,770 A2-6 13 Hillsborough
3290 255819-1 SR 60 SR 39 Polk County Line 800,000 800,000 2,550,000 7,202,691 9,752,691 A2-6 14 Hillsborough
3267 443775-1  I-275 at Busch Blvd Florida Ave Nebraska Ave 126,000 126,000 4,332,312 4,332,312 M-INCH 15 Hillsborough TPO LRTP Hillsborough
3268 443776-1 I-275 at Fowler Ave SB I-275 Off Ramp Nebraska Ave 136,320 136,320 6,372,242 6,372,242 M-INCH 16 Hillsborough TPO LRTP Hillsborough
3269 443777-1 I-275 at Fletcher Ave SB I-275 Off Ramp NB On Ramp 126,000 126,000 2,395,368 2,395,368 M-INCH 17 Hillsborough TPO LRTP Hillsborough
1728 430056-2 US 41 S of Pendola Point/Madison Ave South of Causeway Blvd 4,900,900 20,867,635 25,768,535 A2-6 18 Hillsborough TPO Priority #84 Hillsborough
1632 419235-6 I-75 S of US 301 N of Bruce B Downs Blvd 13,662,688 13,662,688 66,911,400 2,101,343,092 2,168,254,492 MGLANE 19 Hillsborough TPO LRTP Hillsborough
1634 433793-1 I-75 N of Bruce B Downs Blvd N of I-75/I-275 Apex 26,748,000 26,748,000 35,325,500 164,072,000 199,397,500 MGLANE 20 Hillsborough TPO LRTP Hillsborough
3278 419235-5 I-75 Manatee CO/L Rd South of US 301 5,438,808 5,438,808 24,283,400 796,229,224 820,512,624 MGLANE 21 Hillsborough TPO LRTP Hillsborough
3654 256931-4 US 92/SR 600/SR687/SR694/GANDY BLVD 4th St W of Gandy Bridge 33,334,500 257,949,720 291,284,220 A2-6 22 Forward Pinellas Priority #18 Pinellas
3300 441250-2 US 92 (Gandy Bridge) West end of Gandy Bridge East end of Gandy Bridge 5,309,802 5,309,802 414,953,156 414,953,156 A2-6 23 Forward Pinellas Priority #18 (Pinellas Portion) Hillsborough
3655 441250-3 US 92 (Gandy Bridge) East end of Gandy Bridge West Shore Blvd 1,908,384 1,908,384 9,421,603 9,421,603 A2-6 24 Hillsborough TPO LRTP Hillsborough
3795 444434-1 I-4 at County Line Road S of South Frontage Road I-4 WB ramps 2,971,231 2,971,231 M-INCH 25 Operational Improvement Hillsborough/ Polk
3298 TBD US 19 Pinellas/Pasco County Line Pasco/Hernando County Line 1,000,000 1,000,000 STUDY 26 Pasco
3293 256998-1 SR 686 / Roosevelt Boulevard I-275/SR 93 W of 9th St N/MLK St N 100,323,234 100,323,234 M-INCH 27 Forward Pinellas Priority #20 Pinellas
1517 433798-1 US 19 S of Lake St Pinellas Trail (Tarpon Interchange) 8,860,000 8,860,000 87,955,250 87,955,250 N-INCH 28 Forward Pinellas LRTP Pinellas
1514 433799-1 US 19 CR 95 N of Nebraska Ave 152,082,330 152,082,330 M-INCH 29 Forward Pinellas Priority #19 Pinellas
3286 TBD I-75 North of Bruce B. Downs North of SR 52 2,000,000 2,000,000 PDE 30 Hillsborough
3661 433796-1 US 19 South of Timberlane Rd South of Lake Street (Klosterman Interchange) 113,733,138 113,733,138 SERVE 31 Forward Pinellas Priority #26 Pinellas
3662 447157-1 I-4 at McIntosh S of US 92 N of Dickey Rd 16,305,464 16,305,464 32,610,928 M-INCH 32 Hillsborough TPO LRTP Hillsborough
3663 447159-1 I-4 at Branch Forbes Rd S of US 92 Harvey Tew Rd 14,159,452 14,159,452 28,318,904 M-INCH 33 Hillsborough TPO LRTP Hillsborough
3287 TBD I-75 North of SR 52 Hernando/Sumter County Line 750,000 750,000 PDE 34 Hernando
1635 433794-1 I-75 SR 56 CR 54 12,019,000 12,019,000 52,807,457 60,094,886 112,902,343 MGLANE 35 Pasco MPO LRTP Pasco
1501 258736-3 I-75 N of CR 54 N of SR 52 23,754,000 23,754,000 10,437,000 118,769,000 129,206,000 MGLANE 36 Pasco MPO LRTP Pasco
1502 411014-3 I-75 N of SR 52 Pasco/Hernando C/L 4,848,000 4,848,000 15,002,000 317,822,916 332,824,916 MGLANE 37 Pasco MPO LRTP Pasco
1505 411011-5 I-75 Pasco/Hernando C/L S of SR 50 3,939,000 3,939,000 MGLANE 38 Hernando
1506 411012-3 I-75 S of SR 50 Hernando/Sumter C/L 4,207,000 4,207,000 MGLANE 39 Hernando
1508 411012-1 I-75 Hernando/Sumter C/L CR 476-B 2,319,000 2,319,000 MGLANE 40 Hernando
1512 430051-1 SR 50 Brooksville ByPass Lockhart Road 6,300,000 6,300,000 8,100,000 69,200,000 77,300,000 A2-6 41 Hernando
1511 433800-1 SR 50 (Cortez Blvd) Suncoast Pkwy Cobb Road 4,600,000 4,600,000 19,500,000 13,868,000 33,368,000 A2-6 42 Hernando
3288 445197-1 SR 54 at Collier Parkway 15,000,000 15,000,000 30,000,000 100,000,000 130,000,000 N-INCH 43 Priority #13 in Pasco MPO LRTP Pasco

These projects are highlighted in the presentation FY 2033 to FY 2035 (3 years)
FY 2036 to FY 2040 (5 years)
FY 2040 to FY 2045 (5 years)
FY 2045 to FY 2050 (5 years) New Band

FDOT D7 Cost Feasible Plan (CFP) with 2020 costs                                                                             

ENVID FPN FACILITY FROM TO DISTRICT 
PRIORITY (2022) COUNTY

Design Right of Way / Construction

IMPRV TYPE NOTES



Long-Range Cost Feasible Plan (CFP)
FY 2033 - 2050

Strategic Intermodal 
System (SIS)
District Seven
August 2022

Welcome to the District Seven Strategic Intermodal System 2050 Long Range Cost 
Feasible Plan presentation.

1



SIS Long Range 
CFP Development Process

We will start with discussing the SIS Long Range Cost Feasible Development Process

2



Purpose of the Long Range
Cost Feasible Plan

• Ensure consistency with the goals of the Florida 
Transportation Plan (FTP) and the objectives of the SIS 
Policy Plan

• Evaluate the SIS needs considering projected future 
revenues 

• Develop a phased plan for SIS improvements

• Meet statutory requirement of Chapter 339.64(4)(d), F.S. 

The CFP fulfills the following key purposes: 

• It ensures consistency with the goals of the Florida Transportation Plan (FTP) and 
the objectives of the SIS Policy Plan,

• It evaluates statewide and local needs considering projected future revenues to 
determine the most strategic use of SIS funds, 

• It contributes to the SIS’s overall long-range planning efforts in the form of a 
phased plan for SIS improvements, and

• It meets the statutory requirements set forth in Chapter 339.64(4)(d), F.S.. 

3



2050 SIS Cost Feasible Plan

The 2050 Cost Feasible Plan will reflect:

• Projects deferred during the previous Work Program Development 

Cycles

• Remaining project phases from the SIS 2045 Cost Feasible Plan

• Projects advanced from the SIS 2045 Multi-Modal Unfunded Needs 

Plan 

• New projects identified as priorities

When the 2050 CFP is complete it will contain:  
• Projects deferred during previous Work Program Development Cycles, 

• Projects remaining from the SIS 2045 CFP, 

• Projects advanced from the SIS 2045 Multi-Modal Unfunded Needs Plan, and 

• New projects identified as priorities

4



SIS Funding Eligibility Guidance

Is the project:

• of statewide importance? 

• contributing to the expansion 
of major SIS roadway trade 
and tourism corridors? 

• contributing to the completion 
of a SIS corridor? 

• contributing to the overall 
connectivity of the SIS? 

The Funding Eligibility Guidance is a part of the SIS planning process and receives its direction 
from the FTP and SIS Policy Plan. This guidance document contains criteria that is used to 
identify eligible SIS projects. 

This document, which also serves as a guide for the overall SIS long range planning process, 
provides direction to the CFP from a planning perspective in the form of its project selection 
criteria. The SIS Central Office Staff will be using these criteria when identifying projects for the 
Statewide CFP.

Key criteria to be considered when submitting projects for the CFP are: 
• Is the project of statewide importance,
• Does the project contribute to the expansion of major roadway trade and tourism corridors, 
• Does the project contribute to the completion of a corridor, 
• Does the project contribute to the overall connectivity of the SIS? 

• For more information, please see the Funding Eligibility Guidance Document on the 
FDOT SIS Website

(https://www.fdot.gov/planning/systems/documents/brochures/default.shtm)

5



SIS Cost Feasible Plan Funding Window

1st Five Year Plan (Adopted Work Program)
• Funded (year 1)
• Programmed for funding (years 2-5)

2nd Five Year Plan
• Planned for funding (years 6-10)

Cost Feasible Plan
• Considered financially feasible (years 11-25)

Multi-Modal Unfunded Needs Plan (MMUNP) 
Transportation projects that meet mobility needs, but where 
funding is not expected to be available during the 25-year time 
period of the SIS Funding Strategy

S
IS

 F
u

n
d

in
g

 S
tr

a
te

g
y

L
o

n
g

-R
a

n
g

e
 P

la
n

n
in

g

The SIS Funding Strategy includes three inter-related sequential documents that 
identify potential SIS capacity improvement projects in various stages of development. 
These documents are the first and second five-year plans, and the CFP. 

• All projects identified within the SIS Funding Strategy are considered financially 
feasible for implementation within the next 25-year period.

• The CFP years 11 – 25 or FY 2033 to 2050,  along with the Multi-Modal Unfunded 
Needs Plan, represent the SIS’s two long-range planning documents. 

6



2050 CFP Funding Bands and Costs

4 Funding Bands:

Band A – FY 2033 – 2035 (3 years)

Band B – FY 2036 – 2040 (5 years)

Band C – FY 2041 – 2045 (5 years)

Band D – FY 2046 – 2050 (new)

Project Costs will be in Present Day Costs (PDC)

• Conversion to Year of Expenditure (YOE) will be done by Central 
Office upon final approval

• The 2050 CFP will have 4 funding bands. 
• The first year in Band A (FY 2033) reflects the 11th year following the 1st Five-Year 

Plan and 2nd Five-Year Plan SIS Work Program.  During this update cycle we are 
adding Band D to coincide with the new planning horizon (2050). 

• The plan will be developed in Present Day Costs (PDC) and converted into Year of 
Expenditure (YOE) once approved.

7



CO

2045 CFP clean-up 
and Revenue 

Forecast review

SIS Update Meeting (April)
&

Statewide CFP Kick-off 
Meeting

Districts 
Enter New Projects into SIS-PM

District draft plan 
development period 

Districts 
Finalize their Draft Plans

Districts submit draft plans 
to CO for review

Where are we in the process? 

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug

8

Phase 1 Phase 2

Where are we in the process?

• Phase 1 CFP development process contained tasks solely executed by DOT Central 
Office. 

• Phase 2 (is where we are now) consists of District and MPO/TPO’s coordination 
and collaboration.  Districts will be responsible for developing their districtwide 
draft CFP plans. MPO/TPO’s will review the draft CFP Plan and provide comments. 
At the completion of this phase in August, districts will submit their draft CFPs to 
Central Office for review and incorporation into the Draft Statewide CFP.

8



CO 
Senior 

Management Final 
Review of the Draft 

Statewide CFP 

Districts
Review Draft 

Statewide CFP

CO 
Publish 

Final 2050 CFP 

Jan Feb Mar Apr MayDec

CO 
Development and 
review of the Draft  

Statewide CFP 

Sep Oct Nov

CO
Senior Management 
Review of the Draft 

Statewide CFP 

Districts
Submit CFP 

Revisions to CO 
for Review

Where are we going?

9Phase 4Phase 3 Phase 5

Where are we going?

• Phase 3: central office will develop the statewide draft CFP, which is rooted in the districts 
draft CFP plans, and seeks senior management input. 

• Phase 4: District, with input from MPO/TPOs, will review and revise the statewide CFP 
draft plan. Districts will submit their revision to central office at the end of this phase.

• During Phase 5 Central Office will be making final revisions, seeking approval of the draft 
statewide CFP from senior management, and publication of the final CFP in spring of 2023. 

• This schedule is subject to change and none of these dates are set in stone. If there is a 
change central office staff will notify all districts of that change. 

• Communication and coordination between Central Office, districts, and MPO/TPOs , 
should be free flowing across all phases. 

Note: Keep in mind that the dates and targets reflected in this schedule are subject to 
change, especially in later phases towards the end of the CFP update process.  We want to 
ensure that ample time is built into to the schedule for coordination which includes draft 
plan review and partner outreach.

9



Sample of Long-Range SIS Projects 
(FY 2033 – 2050)

I-275 from N of Lois Avenue to N of Howard Avenue
• PE, CST – FY 2033 - 2035

I-275 from N of Howard Avenue to N of Hillsborough River 
• PE, CST – FY 2033 - 2035

I-275 N of 38th Avenue to N of 4th Street N 
• ROW, CST – FY 2033 - 2035

I-275 from N of I-375 to N of 38th Avenue N 
• CST – FY 2033 - 2035

I-275 from N of Lois Avenue to N of Howard Avenue – PE and Construction – FY 2033 –
2035

I-275 from N of Howard Avenue to N of Hillsborough River – PE and Construction – FY 
2033 – 2035

I-275 N of 38th Avenue to N of 4th Street N - Right of Way and Construction – FY 2033 –
2035

I-275 from N of I-375 to N of 38th Avenue N  - Construction – FY 2033 – 2035

10



Sample of Long-Range SIS Projects 
(FY 2033 – 2050)

I-275 from 54th Avenue S to I-375 
• CST – FY 2033 - 2035

I-4 (EB) from E of Orient Road to W of I-75  
• ROW, CST – FY 2033 - 2035

I-4 from E of Branch Forbes Road to Polk Parkway 
• PE – FY 2033 - 2035 / CST – FY 2036 - 2040

I-4 from Selmon Connector to Branch Forbes Road 
• PE, ROW, CST – FY 2033 - 2035

I-275 from 54th Avenue S to I-375 - Construction – FY 2033 - 2035

I-4 (EB) from E of Orient Road to W of I-75  - Right of Way and Construction – FY 2033 -
2035

I-4 from E of Branch Forbes Road to Polk Parkway - PE – FY 2033 - 2035 / Construction 
– FY 2036 - 2040

I-4 from Selmon Connector to Branch Forbes Road - PE, Right of Way, and Construction 
– FY 2033 - 2035

11



Sample of Long-Range SIS Projects 
(FY 2033 – 2050)

US 41 from S of Pendola Point/Madison Avenue to South of Causeway Blvd
• ROW, CST – FY 2033 - 2035

I-75 from SR 56 to CR 54 
• PE – FY 2033-2035, CST – FY 2040 - 2045

SR 50 (Cortez Blvd) from Suncoast Parkway to Cobb Road  
• PE – FY 2033 - 2035, CST – FY 2040 - 2045

SR 54 at Collier Parkway
• PE, ROW – FY 2033 - 2035 / CST – FY 2036 - 2040

US 41 from S of Pendola Point/Madison Avenue to South of Causeway Blvd – Right of 
Way and Construction – FY 2033-2035

I-75 from SR 56 to CR 54 – PE – FY 2033-2035 and Construction – FY 2040 - 2045

SR 50 (Cortez Blvd) from Suncoast Parkway to Cobb Road – PE – FY 2033 – 2035, 
Construction - CST – FY 2040 - 2045

SR 54 at Collier Parkway – PE and Right of Way – FY 2033 - 2035 / Construction – FY 
2036 - 2040

12



Stakeholder Input

• Review existing 2045 SIS Long Range Cost Feasible Plan to 
ensure projects reflect current and future stakeholder 
priorities

• Review Draft 2050 SIS Long Range Cost Feasible Plan 
prepared by District 7

• Review current LRTP to determine what new projects should 
be added to the 2050 CFP

• Coordinate with adjacent MPO/TPOs and/or counties

• Comments should be sent to Lori and are due by August 31, 
2022

Stakeholders can do a few things to help with the development of the statewide CFP 
such as:

• Review existing 2045 CFP to ensure that the projects listed accurately reflect current 
and future stakeholder priorities. 

• Review the Draft 2050 CFP prepared by District 7 staff

• Review existing LRTPs to see if new projects should be added to the 2050 CFP

• Coordinate with adjacent MPO/TPOs and/or counties

• Comments should be sent to Lori and are due by August 31, 2022 – This date is 
subject to change.

13



Questions and Comments

Lori Marable
District Seven SIS Coordinator

813-975-6450

Lori.marable@dot.state.fl.us 

If you have any questions or comments please contact the District Seven SIS 
Coordinator, Lori Marable. 

Thank you.

14



Florida Metropolitan Planning Organization Advisory Council (MPOAC)
605 Suwannee Street, MS 28B

Tallahassee, FL 32399-0450

www.mpoac.org

850-414-4037

2021-2022

ANNUAL
REPORT

2021 - 2022  MPOAC  Annual Report 1



MESSAGE FROM THE CHAIR

ABOUT THE MPOAC

Commissioner Nick Maddox
Governing Board Chair, MPOAC

The past fiscal year, as was true for all of us, was a complex year for the MPOAC. Not only did we have 

to be creative to work through the issues presented by the global pandemic, we saw a complete 

turnover in staff. But we continued to represent the needs and interests of Florida’s 27 metropolitan 

planning organizations (MPOs) and are thrilled to have a new and dynamic staff led by Mark Reichert 

as MPOAC Executive Director. This Annual Report summarizes some of the key activities of the 

MPOAC in the past fiscal year. But these are just the tip of the iceberg. Every day, in every way, the 

MPOAC works to improve the lives of Florida’s communities through improved mobility and access 

across and between our metropolitan regions. Through policy initiatives, research projects, and 

advocacy, the MPOAC truly is the state’s preeminent forum for transportation planning.”

The Florida Metropolitan Planning Organization Advisory Council (MPOAC) represents the collective 

interests of Florida’s 27 MPOs, and assists the MPOs in carrying out the urbanized area transportation 

planning process by serving as the principal forum for collective policy discussion. The MPOAC was 

created by the Florida Legislature pursuant to Section 339.175, Florida Statutes, to augment and 

not supplant the role of the individual MPOs in the cooperative transportation planning process. 

The organization is made up of a 27 member Governing Board consisting of local elected officials 

from each of the MPOs and a Staff Directors’ Advisory Committee consisting of the staff 

directors from each of the MPOs. The MPOAC works with national organizations and 

other stakeholder groups to help shape state and national policy regarding 

metropolitan transportation issues.

“

2021 - 2022 MPOAC Annual Report2



MPOAC MISSION STATEMENT

NATIONAL POLICY DEVELOPMENT
AND EDUCATION

Fiscal Year 2021/2022 was a big year for policy development and education 

on the national stage. The Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act (IIJA), 

also known as the Bipartisan Infrastructure Law (BIL), was signed into law 

in November 2021. The law reauthorizes the federal transportation program, 

including sections pertaining to MPOs, and provides over $350 billion for 

new transportation investments nationwide over the five-year life of the 

law. The MPOAC worked closely with its national partners, the Association of 

Metropolitan Planning Organizations (AMPO) and the National Association 

of Regional Councils (NARC), to ensure the best result for MPOs across 

Florida and the nation. Since approval, the MPOAC has remained engaged 

in the regulatory process, tracking guidance documents as they are released 

and notifying the MPOAC membership of opportunities and

issues as they arise. 

The MPOAC improves transportation planning and education by engaging 

and equipping its members to deliver results through shared innovations, 

best practices, enhanced coordination, communication and advocacy.

2021 - 2022  MPOAC  Annual Report 3



STATE POLICY DEVELOPMENT AND EDUCATION

The MPOAC remained engaged in the policy development and education process at the state 

level during Fiscal Year 2021/2022. A summary of legislation signed into law following the 

2021 Florida legislative session was developed and made available to MPOAC members 

and partners. The MPOAC Governing Board approved the MPOAC Legislative Priorities 

and Policy Positions for 2022 and sent them to members of the Florida Legislature, 

the Governor, and partners across the state. The MPOAC Executive Director tracked 

legislation during the 2022 legislative session and sent a weekly update on 

legislative activities to inform the membership.

The MPOAC undertook a variety of activities to support Florida’s MPOs through research. 

MPOAC staff developed a summary of federal transportation performance measurement 

targets in Florida, tracked changes in the US Census Urban Area criteria, and conducted 

research on statewide associations of MPOs and their use of Unified Planning Work Programs 

(UPWPs). MPOAC staff secured funding from the FDOT Research Center to conduct a 

research project identifying the various practices and methodologies used by Florida’s 27 

MPOs to develop their List of Project Priorities (LOPP). 

RESEARCH

2021 - 2022 MPOAC Annual Report4



STATE POLICY DEVELOPMENT AND EDUCATION MEMBER SERVICES

OPERATIONS

The MPOAC supported its members in a variety of ways, including through direct engagement. In 

fact, the MPOAC Executive Director spent much of his time attending meetings of MPO alliances 

like the Sun Coast Transportation Planning Alliance (SCTPA), the Central Florida MPO Alliance 

(CFMPOA), and the Coordinated Urban Transportation Studies (CUTS) in Southwest Florida. 

MPOAC staff also attended federal certification reviews for the Sarasota/Manatee MPO, the Lee 

County MPO and the Space Coast TPO. The MPOAC developed a resiliency contact list so that 

MPO staff members with resiliency responsibilities can easily connect with each other on 

this important subject area. 

Fiscal Year 2021/2022 was a topsy-turvy year for the MPOAC. The MPOAC hired a new Executive Director 

and Executive Assistant. We were very fortunate to bring aboard two experienced professionals in Mark 

Reichert and Lisa Stone and the future looks bright with these two on board. The MPOAC also unveiled 

a new website with a modern design and improved functionality. The MPOAC adopted a new Unified 

Planning Work Program (UPWP) for Fiscal Year 2022/2023, began an update of the agency’s Bylaws, 

and put the pieces in place to begin an update of the Strategic Directions Plan during the next fiscal 

year. The Freight Committee expanded its mission to include Rail (becoming the Freight and Rail 

Committee) and the Noteworthy Practices Working Group regrouped after a pandemic hiatus and will 

move forward with renewed energy.

During the time the MPOAC was without staff, the Office of Policy Planning within FDOT was assisting 

with the daily operations of the MPOAC. During this time, FDOT Credit Union account bank statements 

were discovered in the name of the MPOAC. Account activity occurred during the time when no 

MPOAC staff were employed thus raising the suspicion of the department. The Office of Inspector 

General (OIG) was notified of the issue resulting in an investigation. Fortunately, no wrongdoing was 

discovered. The OIG determined the funds directed to or from the FDOT Credit Union account were 

business related.  However, several internal control concerns were identified by the OIG. As a result, the 

MPOAC is working to revise its internal control structure to ensure full transparency to the Governing 

Board and Staff Directors Advisory Committee. This includes revising its Bylaws and the development 

of a Policy and Procedures Manual. Both of which will be adopted in Fiscal Year 2022/2023. 

2021 - 2022  MPOAC  Annual Report 5



STATEWIDE PLANNING

It was a busy year for statewide planning. The MPOAC participated in updates of the Strategic 

Intermodal System (SIS) plan, the Florida Transportation Plan (FTP), and the State Passenger and 

Freight Rail Plan. The MPOAC also worked with the FDOT on a variety of statewide policy planning 

efforts including the update of the MPO Long-Range Transportation Plan (LRTP) financial guidelines, 

the implementation of a Consolidated Planning Grant (CPG) program in Florida, and the advancement 

of transportation safety through its participation on the Safe Mobility for Life Coalition. The MPOAC 

managed to secure funding for several freight projects around the state using the Freight Priorities 

Program (FPP) Project List developed by the MPOAC Freight and Rail Committee. The MPOAC also 

worked with the Federal Highway Administration to coordinate the delivery of the Florida Advancing 

Transportation Performance Management and Decision-Making Seminar, an important training 

program focusing on transportation performance management (TPM).  

2021 - 2022 MPOAC Annual Report6



PARTNER ENGAGEMENT

The MPOAC engaged with its planning partners to advance the state of transportation in 

Florida and the nation. The MPOAC Executive Director is an ex officio member of the Florida 

Public Transit Association (FPTA) and has a standing presentation slot on their policy board 

agenda. The Executive Director met with national colleagues to discuss issues related to 

metropolitan planning at AMPO and NARC annual meetings. The MPOAC became a member 

of the Mileage-Based User Fee Alliance (MBUFA) to work with colleagues at the national level 

to advocate for a sustainable funding source for transportation infrastructure. The Executive 

Director presented at the Miami Road User Charging (RUC) Conference. At the state level, the 

MPOAC Executive Director attended the Florida Metropolitan Planning Partnership meetings, 

FDOT/FHWA/FTA/MPOAC Quarterly meetings, and presented at the Florida League of Cities 

Annual Conference.

2021 - 2022  MPOAC  Annual Report 7



2021 - 2022 MPOAC Annual Report8

FLORIDA METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION ADVISORY COUNCIL

GOVERNING BOARD

STAFF DIRECTORS’ ADVISORY COMMITTEE

Commissioner William Dozier
Bay County TPO

Commissioner Sandy Johnson
Broward MPO

Commissioner James W. Herston
Charlotte County-Punta Gorda MPO

Commissioner William McDaniel Jr.
Collier MPO

Commissioner Robert Bender
Florida-Alabama TPO

Commissioner David Eggers
Forward Pinellas

Commissioner Harvey Ward
Gainesville MTPO

Commissioner Terry Burroughs
Heartland Regional TP

Commissioner Jeff Kinnard
Hernando/Citrus MPO

Commissioner Harry Cohen
Hillsborough TPO

Commissioner Susan Adams
Indian River County MPO

Commissioner Dan Robuck
Lake-Sumter MPO

Councilmember Fred Forbes
Lee County MPO

Commissioner Troy McDonald
Martin MPO

Commissioner Mayra Uribe
MetroPlan Orlando

Commissioner Oliver G. Gilbert III
Miami-Dade TPO

Commissioner Wayne Bolla
North Florida TPO

Commissioner Craig Curry
Ocala/Marion County TPO

Mayor Dick Rynearson
Okaloosa-Walton TPO

Councilmember Lance Smith
Pasco County MPO

Mayor Fred Pinto
Palm Beach TPA

Mayor Pro-Tem Nat Birdsong 
Polk TPO

Commissioner Chris Cloudman
River to Sea TPO

 
Councilmember Andrea Young

Space Coast TPO

Councilmember Stephanie Morgan
St. Lucie TPO

Mary Beth Washnock
Bay County TPO

Greg Stuart
Broward MPO 

Greg Slay
Capital Region TPA

D’Juan Harris
Charlotte County-Punta Gorda MPO

 Anne McLaughlin
Collier MPO

Austin Mount
Florida-Alabama TPO

Whit Blanton
Forward Pinellas

Scott Koons
Gainesville MTPO

Patricia Steed
Heartland Regional TPO

Robert Esposito
Hernando/Citrus MPO

Beth Alden
Hillsborough TPO

Brian Freeman
Indian River County MPO

Michael Woods
Lake-Sumter MPO

Beth Beltran 
Martin MPO

Gary Huttmann
MetroPlan Orlando

Aileen Bouclé 
Miami-Dade TPO

Jeff Sheffield
North Florida TPO

Rob Balmes
Ocala/Marion County TPO 

Dawn Schwartz
Okaloosa-Walton TPO

Valerie Neilson
Palm Beach TPA

Carl Mikyska
Pasco County MPO

Parag Agrawal
Polk TPO

Colleen Nicoulin 
River to Sea TPO

Georganna Gillette
Space Coast TPO

Peter Buchwald
St. Lucie TPO

Commissioner Nick Maddox, Chair
Capital Region TPA

Don Scott, Chair
Lee County MPO

Commissioner Vanessa Baugh, Vice-Chair
Sarasota/Manatee MPO

David Hutchinson, Vice-Chair
Sarasota/Manatee MPO

Mark Reichert
MPOAC Executive Director




	Meeting of the TPO Board
	All voting members are asked to attend in person, in compliance with Florida’s Government in the Sunshine Law.  Please RSVP for this meeting. Presenters, audience, and members in exceptional circumstances may participate remotely.
	ADP8A2.tmp
	Board & Committee Agenda Item
	Agenda Item
	Committee Appointments

	ADP2049.tmp
	Board & Committee Agenda Item
	Agenda Item:
	Summary:
	Recommended Action:
	Prepared By:
	Attachments:


	ADPA7E5.tmp
	Board & Committee Agenda Item
	Agenda Item:
	Summary:
	Recommended Action:
	Prepared By:
	Attachments:


	Attach - Amendment to Fellowship Agreemt w USF 1.pdf
	MOU Sign Off Sheet - MPO (00194802xBF0F1)
	MOU Sign Off Sheet - MPO

	Attach - Amendment to Fellowship Agreemt w USF 2.pdf
	Amendment - Hillsborough MPO
	Hillsborough County TPO - amendment 07_06_22
	First Amendment - HillsCoTPO- Draft 04132022.docx (00208738xBF0F1)

	Hillsborough County TPO - amendment 07_06_22
	Exhibit 2 - Hillsborough County TPO


	ADP4144.tmp
	Board & Committee Agenda Item
	Agenda Item:
	Summary:
	Recommended Action:
	Prepared By:
	Attachments:


	ADPDD5.tmp
	Board & Committee Agenda Item
	Agenda Item:
	Summary:
	Recommended Action:
	Prepared By:
	Attachments:


	Attach - Apportionment Plan_DRAFTv3.pdf
	Authorizing Resolution
	Introduction
	TPO Membership Apportionment Plan
	Hillsborough TPO Planning Area
	TPO Membership
	Current Membership
	Proposed Membership

	Summary

	Supporting Documentation
	Attachment A - Minutes from the TPO’s meeting of August 10, 2022 Authorizing the Proposed Apportionment Plan
	Attachment B - Resolutions or Motions from Member Governments Endorsing Proposed Apportionment Plan
	Attachment C - MPO Membership Apportionment Plan Process


	Item - FDOT Electric Vehicle Plan.pdf
	Board & Committee Agenda Item
	Agenda Item:
	Summary:
	Recommended Action:
	Prepared By:
	Attachments:


	ADPD432.tmp
	Board & Committee Agenda Item

	ADP4BB6.tmp
	Board & Committee Agenda Item
	Agenda Item:
	Summary:
	Recommended Action:
	Prepared By:
	Attachments:


	ADP40D7.tmp
	Board & Committee Agenda Item
	Agenda Item:
	Summary:
	Recommended Action:
	Prepared By:
	Attachments:





